
 

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 28 July 2022 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's 
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL 

 

Membership: 

Chairman:  

Cllr J Beesley 

Vice Chairman:  
 

Cllr M F Brooke 
Cllr D Butt 
Cllr M Cox 
 

Cllr L Fear 
Cllr A Filer 
Cllr M Howell 
 

Cllr T Johnson 
Cllr M Phipps 
 

 

All Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 

 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5004 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact:  on 01202 096660 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 20 July 2022 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 

 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 

nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 

member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Election of Chairman  

 To elect a Chairman for the 2022/23 Municipal Year. 
 

 

4.   Election of Vice Chairman  

 To elect a Vice Chairman for the 2022/23 Municipal Year. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 9 - 16 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 14 April 
2022. 

 

 

7.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 

for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&I

nfo=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days 

before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

8.   Treasury Management Monitoring Report 17 - 32 

 This report sets out the monitoring of the Council’s Treasury Management 
function for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022.  

A surplus of £745k has been achieved through a reduced need to carry out 

temporary borrowing due to high cash balances generated from funding 
associated with the government’s response to the pandemic as well as 

increasing interest rates earnt on the Councils investments. 

The report also sets out the Quarter One performance for 2022/23 which 
forecasts an underspend of £840k due to the increase in interest rates. 

Further to the standard update the reports seeks approval to increase our 
borrowing headroom in line with the proposal set out in the financial 

strategy supporting the proposed 2022/23 budget as endorsed by Cabinet. 
 

 

9.   Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update 33 - 66 

 This report updates councillors on the position of the Council’s Corporate 
Risk Register. The main updates are as follows: 

 

 The format of the reporting of the Register has been updated for this 

quarter; 

 No new risks were added during the quarter; 

 No risks were removed during the quarter; 

 Material updates to the risks are summarised at sections 14-19. 

 

 

10.   Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update 67 - 72 

 This report details progress made on delivery of the 2022/23 Audit  Plan 
for the period April to June (inclusive) 2022. The report highlights that: 
 Five audit assignments have been completed, of which there were four 

‘Reasonable’ and one ‘Partial’ audit opinions; 
 Seventeen audit assignments are in progress; 
 Implementation of audit recommendations is satisfactory and none 

have required escalation to Audit & Governance Committee; 

A significant amount of work undertaken during the quarter related to 
completion of the 2021/22 Audit Plan. The ‘Chief Auditor’s Annual Report 
2021/22’ contains the outcome of this work which is being reported 

separately to this Committee. 
 

 

11.   External Audit – Progress Update 73 - 94 

 Grant Thornton, as the Council’s appointed External Auditors, have 

produced a report (Appendix A) which provides an update to Audit & 
Governance Committee on their progress to date in delivering their 

responsibilities. 
 
The report states that, as previously reported, a number of matters had 

arisen that delayed completion of their 2020/21 opinion audit. Work has 
now been substantially completed however there are two key areas that 

have impacted on the revised completion timetable of the end of February 
2022 covering pension liabilities assurance from the Pension Fund auditor 
and national infrastructure accounting issues. 

 



 
 

 

 

Grant Thornton intends to keep Audit & Governance Committee appraised 
of progress towards completion of the audit. 

 

12.   Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality by 
Officers 2021/22 

95 - 98 

 An annual review and update of the Council’s Declaration of Interests, Gifts 

& Hospitality Policy took place in March 2022. 

The recommendations arising from the Internal Audit review on compliance 

with the Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality Policy last year have all 

been implemented.  

There have been no internal or external identified instances, whistleblowing 
or reports by any other means where an undeclared interest by officers has 

led to any disciplinary action or led to reputational damage. 
 

 

13.   Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and Investigatory 

Powers Act Annual Report 2021/22 
99 - 102 

 Following an annual review process, the previous Regulation of 
Investigatory Power Act (RIPA) Policy was strengthened and includes 
provision for acquiring communications data and is now titled the BCP 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and Investigatory Powers 
Act (IPA) Policy. 

All observations arising from the inspection by the Investigatory Powers 

Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) on the use of investigatory powers have 

been addressed.  

The Council has not made use of powers under RIPA or IPA during the 
2021/22 financial year.  

The Council has completed and sent its statutory nil-return for the 2021 
calendar year to the IPCO. 
 

 

14.   Chief Internal Auditor's Annual Opinion Report 2021/22 103 - 118 

 It is the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor that during the 2021/22 

financial year: 

 arrangements were in place to ensure an adequate and effective 

framework of governance, risk management and control (internal control 

environment) and that where weaknesses were identified there was an 

appropriate action plan in place to address them; 

 the systems and internal control arrangements were effective and that 

agreed policies and regulations were complied with; 

 adequate arrangements were in place to deter and detect fraud; 

 there was an appropriate and effective risk management framework; 

 managers were aware of the importance of maintaining internal controls 
and accepted recommendations made by Internal Audit to improve 

controls;  

 the Council’s Internal Audit service was effective and compliant with all 

regulations and standards as required of a professional internal audit 

 



 
 

 

service; and that 

the arrangements, in respect of the Chief Internal Auditor, were consistent 
with all of the five principles set out in the CIPFA publication “The Role of 

the Head of Internal Audit in Public Sector Organisations”. 
 

15.   Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of Financial Regulations Report 

2021/22 
119 - 130 

 This report sets out the breaches and waivers of Financial Regulations (the 
Regulations) which have occurred during the 2021/22 financial year and 
highlights the following:  

 2021/22  2020/21 2019/20 

 
Breache

s 
Waivers  

Breache
s 

Waivers 
Breache

s 
Waivers 

Total 
(count) 

4 77 5 116 8 66 

Total (£ 
value) 

£1,347,4
29 

£6.3M 
£870,56

1 
£12.6M 

£171,62
5 

£13.8M 

The low number of breaches indicate that there was generally a good level 

of understanding of the Regulations. 

The Chief Finance Officer, or formally delegated representatives, agreed 77 
waivers totalling £6.3M.  

It was reported this time last year, for 2020/21, that the higher number of 
waivers, compared to 2019/20, was materially due to the impact of covid19. 

During the pandemic, particularly the early stages in the spring and summer 
of 2020, the number of ‘Limited supplier’ waivers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) increased because a significant number of 

suppliers were asked but could not supply a quote, or supply the goods, 
services or works to the Council. Some suppliers closed completely as a 

result of the Government’s ‘furlough’ scheme whilst others were running at 
reduced capacity. 

The lower number (77) of approved waivers in 2021/22 shows a reassuring 

drop from the exceptional covid19 impacted 2020/21 year (116). The 
comparison by £ value is more reassuring again as significantly less 

Council expenditure is now subject to an approved waiver, this means that 
a greater proportion of the Council’s total expenditure is subject to the full 
requirements set out in the Council’s Financial Regulations.  

Whilst full compliance can never be guaranteed and ‘under-reporting’ of 

breaches, in particular, is an inherent possibility, arrangements were in 

place to detect instances of non-compliance.  

An effective and transparent breaches and waiver governance process 
maximises the chances of the Council achieving value for money and 
complying with UK Procurement Legislation (Public Contract Regulations 

2015 (PCR15)) principles when procuring goods, services or works under 
PCR15 thresholds. 

 

 



 
 

 

16.   Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 and Annual Review of Local 

Code of Governance 
131 - 164 

 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015* require councils to produce an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to accompany its Statement of 

Accounts.  

This report seeks approval of the draft AGS prior to the statutory inspection 

period.  The final AGS will be approved by this committee as part of the 
Statement of Accounts sign off process and report; any changes necessary 
to the AGS in the intervening period will be highlighted in this report. 

The AGS concludes that BCP Council “has effective and fit-for-purpose 
governance arrangements in place in accordance with the governance 

framework”.  

After considering all the sources of assurance (for governance 
arrangements), BCP Corporate Management Board identified that the 

following significant governance issues existed:  

 Governance of Children’s Social Services 

 Governance Arrangements with External Bodies 

 Delay in the completion of the 2020/21 External Audit 

An action plan to address these significant governance issues has been 
produced and is being implemented. An update against the action plan will 
be brought to Audit and Governance Committee in January 2023. 

*and as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 
2021 

 

 

17.   Forward Plan refresh 165 - 168 

 This report sets out the reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance 
Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year in order to enable it to fulfil its 
terms of reference. 

 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 14 April 2022 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr J Beesley – Chairman 

Cllr L Williams – Vice-Chairman 

 
Present: Cllr M F Brooke, Cllr D Butt, Cllr M Cox, Cllr L Fear, Cllr M Phipps 

and Cllr T Johnson (in place of Cllr A Filer) 
 

  

 

 
100. Apologies  

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Filer and Rice. 
 

101. Substitute Members  
 

Formal notification had been received appointing Councillor T Johnson as 

substitute for Councillor Filer. 
 

102. Declarations of Interests  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 
103. Confirmation of Minutes  

 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2022 as circulated separately 
to the Committee were confirmed as a correct record. 

 
104. Public Issues  

 

The Committee was advised of the receipt of the following Public Question. 
 

Question 
 

REGARDING THE COUNCIL’S INTERNAL AUDIT PROCEDURES IN 
RESPECT OF CERTAIN ASSET TYPES  
 

QUESTION 

Will this overseeing Committee ascertain & confirm regarding the relevant 

balance sheet “Long-Term” & “Current” Assets – 
 

- Scope of intended internal audit verification test procedures for asset 

types including investments where - as applicable - not only physical 

existence & authorised custody but also Council title & asset impairment 
are considerations. The Core Audit Plan 2022/23 at agenda 9 is silent / not 

entirely specific regarding this. 

9

Agenda Item 6



– 2 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
 

Philip Gatrell. Question submission date: 7.4.22 
 
Response 

 

Grant Thornton, the Council’s external auditor, as a result of their work give 

their opinion on the completeness, accuracy and compliance with legislative 
requirements of the Council’s balance sheet. This includes the two asset 
categories in Mr Gatrell’s question.   

 
Internal Audit does not seek to duplicate work that Grant Thornton performs 

and conversely Grant Thornton are not able to place reliance on the work of 
internal audit and must perform their own testing.  Built up over a number of 
years there is an understanding between Internal and External Auditors on 

the scope of audit work each party covers.   
 

The Core Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 at agenda item 9, Appendix B, first 
line of the table, in the section headed Key Assurance Function, shows the 
heading Asset Management (Facilities Management\Estate Management) 

and shows a planned resource allocation of 40 days.     
 

As described in the Audit Charter the scope of each individual audit 

assignment within the plan is not ‘set in stone’ at the start of any given 
audit\financial year and instead is risk based.  In practice this means that 

prevailing risks, views and comments from a wide variety of sources 
including Internal audit’s own professional judgement, senior managers, 
councillors, external audit and public opinion\interest all feature in 

determining the scope of each audit assignment within the constraints, of 
course, of resources available.   

 
Scope determination happens in practice in the build up to an audit and 
remains dynamic throughout the audit and can be subject to change as 

issues present. 
 

The Asset Management Audit is part of the ‘Key Assurance Function’ 
section of the audit plan – this recognises that asset management is key to 
the Council achieving its stated objectives. As such there is a ‘core work 

and testing programme’, although this does not necessarily mean every 
element is covered in every audit assignment, however it does cover areas 

such as physical existence and title record keeping as identified in Mr 
Gatrell’s question.  

 

In summary therefore Mr Gatrell and the A&G Committee can be assured 
that the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan has an initial 40 days allocated to cover 

Asset Management Key Assurance audit work.   The exact scope of this 
audit work is yet to be determined and will be finalised in the lead up to the 
planned fieldwork.   

 
The Committee was advised of the receipt of the following Public 

Statement.  
 

10



– 3 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
Statement 

 
AGENDA ITEM 5 REGARDING PUBLIC ISSUE PROTOCOLS 
FOLLOWING THE INACCURATE RESPONSE TO THIS LOCAL 

RESIDENT’S RELATED QUESTION AND STATEMENT TO THE 
COMMITTEE ON 31.3.22 

 
STATEMENT 

“Public participation” isn't the “discretionary facility” defined in the response. 

It’s a stated Constitutional right. Enabling, for example, regulatory 
Committees’ scrutiny of issues otherwise escaping their awareness, 

following senior Officers’ failures to respond adequately to notice of 
significant contraventions of law & procedure.  
Consequently, the six minutes invested in Councillors’ & public initial 

recognition on 31 March aren’t dismissible as - quote - not “efficient … 
effective use of committee time”. 

Head of Democratic Services will now be referring my proposed protocol to 
the Review Group for, I trust, prompt fulfilment. Likewise the Constitution’s 
overdue correction concerning three notified misstatements of fundamental 

local authority law. 
 

Philip Gatrell. Statement submission date:12.4.22 

 
The Chairman of the Committee reminded the Committee that there was no 

debate or discussion on public questions or statements but he invited any 
individual Members wishing to discuss issues raised by the questioner 
within separate correspondence circulated by the questioner to raise any 

issues with him directly but outside the formal meeting. 
 

105. 2020/21 Statements of Accounts Update  
 

The Committee was informed that updates would continue to be received 
by the Committee about progress with sign-off of the BCP Council 

Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 with the Council’s External Auditors, 
Grant Thornton, invited to address the Committee. Reassurance was also 

provided that, in the interim periods between meetings, the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman were involved in monitoring the position in parallel 
discussions. 

 
As previously reported, the Committee was reminded of the two 

outstanding issues preventing sign-off, namely the delay by the Dorset 
Council Auditors in signing off the Dorset Pension Audit and the national 
issues relating to the way in which the Council’s infrastructure assets were 

required to be assessed within the Accounts. These were both matters 
which were firmly outside the control of BCP Council. 

 
Grant Thornton outlined the current position explaining that the required 
formal letter relating to the Pension Fund issues had been expected on 8 

April but not received and also explaining, on the infrastructure assets 
valuation issue, that national guidance was now awaited from the Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) although not now 

11



– 4 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
expected until the end of June 2022. It was reported that this latter issue 

had now become a national one with 52% of Councils now caught by the 
emerging rules and, like BCP Council, unable, for the time being, to 
conclude their Statement of Accounts. 

 
The BCP Council Chief Finance Officer advised that he was in contact with 

his counterpart at Dorset Council, which administered the Pension Fund, 
and undertook to continue to exert pressure to resolve this element as soon 
as possible. Additionally, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 

Committee advised that a further interim meeting with Grant Thornton was 
scheduled on 10 May after which the Chairman would ensure that the 

Committee received a further update on progress.  
 
Members of the Committee expressed their frustration about the 

unsatisfactory situation and, in response to questions, Grant Thornton, 
confirmed that all Councils with accounts outstanding would be affected by 

the rule changes and that, going forward to the following year, all Councils 
would be caught by the new provisions to be included within the CIPFA 
guidance. 

 
It was also explained that, although historical infrastructure asset valuation 
was a low-risk area in terms of auditing, it was possible that some 

additional work would be necessary to comply with the guidance once 
issued although this was not expected to be in place before June at the 

earliest.  
 
Reassurances were again provided that everything possible was being 

done to resolve the issue as quickly as possible but progress could not be 
made until the national position was clear and settled. Members of the 

Committee explored other options and particularly received advice about 
the possibility of issuing ‘qualified accounts’ and this was one option that 
could be considered if appropriate at a future stage in discussion with Grant 

Thornton. 
 

106. Information Governance Update  
 

The Service Director, Law and Governance, presented a report, a copy of 

which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as 
Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

 
The Committee received the annual Information Governance report for the 
period to April 2022. The report included a range of performance 

management information and monitoring data in respect of Freedom of 
Information (FOI) requests and Environmental Information Regulations 

(EIR) requests and including commentary in each case about performance 
under each heading. 
 

The Committee noted that the Council’s average response rate had been a 
commendable 86% for April to December 2021 compared to 73% in 

2019/20 and 80% in 2020/21 and against a target response rate set by the 
Information Commissioner’s Office of 90%. Although data for the fina l 

12



– 5 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
Quarter was not yet available, the incremental increase was expected to 

continue. 
 
The report also set out a schedule of service developments implemented or 

in progress in response to a total of 10 recommendations (eight medium 
priority and two low priority) identified in the Internal Audit report of March 

2022 when a ‘Reasonable’ audit opinion had been issued. It was reported 
that the Team was working closely with individual services across the 
Council to address improvement objectives and to support staff within 

service units. 
 

In terms of Governance, a particular priority had been updating the 
membership and Terms of Reference the BCP Information Governance 
Board and details were included within the report. 

 
The current composition and staffing of the Information Governance Team 

was also described. 
 
Members of the Committee highlighted a number of specific issues where 

updating of the information presented to them would be required and this 
was an ongoing process. A number of areas were also identified where 
additional contextual information would be useful. Members particularly 

welcomed the significant increase in the take-up of information governance 
training across the Council. 

 
The Committee expressed its commitment to maintaining the correct level 
of resourcing within the Team to ensure that the function continued to be 

taken seriously within the Council and requested that, although currently 
levels were reported to be satisfactory, any resourcing shortfall should be 

brought to the attention of the Committee. 
 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee 

 
(a) notes the Information Governance performance management 

information for 2021/22 (Q1 to Q3 – December 2021) contained 
in the report (including requests received under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 (FOIA), Environmental Information 

Regulations (EIRs), Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA) and other 
agency disclosure requests); 

(b) notes the current composition of the Information Governance 
Team; 

(c) notes Information Governance developments effected and/or in 

progress, and the Final Internal Audit report of March 2022.   

Voting: Unanimous 

 
107. Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update  

 

The Risk and Insurance Manager presented a report, a copy of which had 
been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 

'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

13



– 6 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
The Committee received an update on the position of the Council’s 

Corporate Risk Register with a view to providing assurance as to the 
effective management of the Council’s arrangements for risk management.  
It was reported that during Quarter 4 of 2022 the following four new risks 

had been added to the register: 
 

 CR17 – Risk to Reputation of Place and Council if summer 
arrangements are not managed.  

 CR20 – Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the climate 

emergency declaration.  

 CR21 – Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council 

and increase in service requirements. 

 CR22 - Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand.  

It was also noted that, during the Quarter, risk CR1 (Failure to respond to 
the needs arising from a changing demography) had been removed 
although, in respect of this particular risk, it was explained that this risk had 

subsequently been dispersed to service areas without diluting the 
importance and weight attached to it. 

 
In response to questions about risk CR9 (Failure to maintain a safe and 
balanced budget for the delivery of services) it was confirmed that the 

Council was actively engaged in addressing the impact on the Council and 
its residents of the cost-of-living crisis and of current events worldwide and 

that further reports on the implications of these financial pressures were 
being prepared for presentation and consideration. 
 

The Committee also received an update about the latest position in respect 
CR18 (Failure in customer interface) following discussion at the 

Committee’s previous review of the risk register. It was reported that it 
remained an area of significant pressure although data about rates of 
response to customers was showing improvement. It was explained, 

however, that the situation remained complex whilst the benefits from the 
Council’s overall transformation programme were still awaited and, in the 

meantime, significant investment was being made in increasing the level of 
customer services staff. 
 

In respect of CR19 (Failure to determine planning applications within 
statutory timescales or within agreed extensions of time) it was reported 

that improvement was now evident with a focus on mitigations as detailed 
in the report. In response to questions, it was confirmed that this included a 
recruitment campaign aimed at creating a permanent local staff base and 

on reducing the need to engage agency staff. 
 

In conclusion, the Chairman reminded the Committee of the proposal 
within the draft Forward Plan for 2022/23 to include an opportunity for the 
Committee to review the arrangements for risk management from an Audit 

and Governance perspective. 
 

14



– 7 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee notes the 

update provided relating to corporate risks including the additional 
updates received in respect of the Customer Services and Planning 
functions. 

 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
108. Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update (including Audit Charter and 

Audit Plan for 2022/23)  
 

The Head of Audit and Management Assurance presented a report, a copy 

of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears 
as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 
 

The report set out the Internal Audit Charter and Audit Plan for 2022/23 with 
proposed changes highlighted in red and it was explained that approval of 

these documents by the Audit and Governance Committee was a 
requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

The report also detailed progress made on delivery of the 2021/22 Audit 

Plan for the period January to March 2022 (inclusive). 

The report highlighted that thirteen audit assignments have been completed 
(twelve ‘Reasonable’ and one ‘Partial’ audit opinions), twenty-three audit 

assignments were in progress and that the implementation of audit 
recommendations was satisfactory. 

 
It was also confirmed that all recommendations and suggestions arising 
from a recent CIPFA validation of a self-assessment against the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) had been addressed. 
 

The Head of Audit and Management Assurance formally certified that the 
allocated resources for 2022/23 was considered adequate to deliver the 
Internal Audit Charter 2022 and the 2022/23 Audit Plan as described in his 

report.  
 
RESOLVED that Audit and Governance Committee: 
 

(a) approves the Internal Audit Charter and agrees that the Chair of 

the Audit and Governance Committee signs the document to 
record this approval (this may be a virtual sign off using email);  

 
(b) approves the Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 including the detailed 

breakdown of Quarter 1 audits; 

 
(c) notes the 2022/23 budget for the Internal Audit service which 

has been previously approved by Council; 
 

(d) notes progress made and issues arising on the delivery of the 

2021/22 Internal Audit Plan. 
 

Voting: Unanimous 

15



– 8 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
14 April 2022 

 
 

 
 

109. Forward Plan for the 2022/23 Municipal Year  
 

The Head of Audit and Management Assurance presented a report, a copy 

of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears 
as Appendix 'D' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 
 

The report set out the reports to be considered by the Audit and 
Governance Committee in the 2022/23 municipal year in order to enable it 

to fulfil its terms of reference.  
 
In the light of discussions earlier in the meeting, it was noted that an item 

on ‘Statement of Accounts’ should be recorded against every meeting 
within the Forward Plan schedule. 

 
It was also noted that, in addition to the ‘ad hoc’ reports listed on the draft 
plan, there would potentially be an item to consider the governance 

arrangements in place around the BCP Council Transformation programme 
and that this would be added into the Plan at the appropriate time. It was 
also noted that an additional opportunity for consideration of constitutional 

review may also need to be added into the Plan at the appropriate time. 
 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee approves the 
Forward Plan set out at Appendix A of the report. 
 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.15 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

16



 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
 
 

Report Subject 
 

Treasury Management Monitoring Outturn 2021/22 and 
update for Quarter 1 2022/23 

Meeting date 28 July 2022 
 

Status Public  

Executive summary 

 

This report sets out the monitoring of the Council’s Treasury 

Management function for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 
2022.  

A surplus of £745k has been achieved through a reduced need 
to carry out temporary borrowing due to high cash balances 
generated from funding associated with the government’s 

response to the pandemic as well as increasing interest rates 
earnt on the Councils investments. 

The report also sets out the Quarter One performance for 
2022/23 which forecasts an underspend of £840k due to the 
increase in interest rates. 

Further to the standard update the reports seeks approval to 
increase our borrowing headroom in line with the proposal set 

out in the financial strategy supporting the proposed 2022/23 
budget as endorsed by Cabinet. 

Recommendations 
 

It is recommended that Audit & Governance Committee: 

1) note the reported activity of the Treasury Management 

function for 2021/22 
2) note the reported activity of the Treasury Management 

function for April to June 2022 
3) note and endorse the update on borrowing set out from 

paragraph 25-35 

4) approve and recommend to Council the revised prudential 
indicators set out in table 9.  

Reasons for 
recommendations 

It is a requirement under the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Treasury Management Code 

of Practice that regular monitoring of the Treasury Management 
function is reported to Members. 

Council are required to approve any changes to the prudential 

indicators based on a recommendation from the Audit & 
Governance Committee. 

Portfolio Holder 

 

Councillor Drew Mellor, Leader, Finance & Transformation 

  

17

Agenda Item 8



 

2 
 

Corporate Director Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Service Director Adam Richens - Chief Financial Officer 

Classification For information and recommendation 
 

Report author Matthew Filmer, Assistant Chief Financial Officer  

 01202 128503  
 matthew.filmer@bcpcounci l.gov.uk 

 

Background Detail  

1. Treasury Management is defined as the management of the Council’s cash flows, 

its borrowings and investments, the management of the associated risks and the 

pursuit of the optimum performance or return consistent with those risks. 

2. The Treasury Management function operates in accordance with The Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) ‘Treasury Management in 

the Public Services’ Code of Practice (2011). 

3. The Treasury Management function manages the Council’s cash flow by 

exercising effective cash management and ensuring that the bank balance is as 

close to nil as possible. The objective is to ensure that bank charges are kept to 

a minimum whilst maximising interest earned. A sound understanding of the 

Council’s business and cash flow cycles enables funds to be managed efficiently.  

4. This report considers the treasury management activities in relation to the 

Treasury Management Strategy. Also included is a summary of the current 

economic climate, an overview of the estimated performance of the treasury 

function, an update on the borrowing strategy, investments and compliance with 

prudential indicators. 

Economic Background  

5. The 15 June 2022 Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting voted by a majority 

of 6-3 to increase rates from 1% to 1.25%, pushing them to the highest level in 

13 years.  

6. The MPC noted UK GDP growth was expected to slow sharply over the first half 

of the forecast period and, although the labour market was expected to tighten 

slightly further in the near term, the unemployment rate was projected to rise to 

5½% in three years’ time. CPI inflation was expected to average slightly over 10% 

at its peak in 2022 Q4. Conditioned on the rising market-implied path for Bank 

Rate at that time and the MPC’s forecasting convention for future energy prices, 

CPI inflation was projected to fall to a little above the 2% target in two years’ time, 

largely reflecting the waning influence of external factors, and to be well below 

the target in three years, mainly reflecting weaker domestic pressures. The risks 

to the inflation projection were judged to be skewed to the upside at these points.  

7. The UK latest inflation rate hit 9.1% in the year to May, the highest rate for 40 

years. The Bank of England has warned inflation might reach 11% within months, 

as the prices of fuel, energy and food put pressure on household budgets.  

18

mailto:matthew.filmer@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

3 
 

8. The rate is higher than the Bank of England's 2% inflation target mainly reflecting 

previous large increases in global energy and other tradable goods prices. The 

former has been greatly exacerbated by the war in Ukraine, which has also raised 

significantly the wholesale price of many agricultural commodities. The latter 

mainly reflects the impact of the pandemic, which shifted demand towards goods 

but also impaired and disrupted supply chains. 

Interest Rates  

9.  Table 1 below which is produced by the authority’s treasury consultants Link 

Asset Services sets out their current projection of interest rates over the medium 

term.  

Table 1: Interest rate projection (Link Asset Services) 

 

Treasury Management Performance 2021/22 

10. Table 2 below shows the final overall treasury management position for 2021/22. 

Investment income overachieved the budget set for 2021/22 by £260k. This was 

down to increasing interest rates being earnt on the Council investments as well 

as having higher cash balances than forecasted.  

11. The interest paid on borrowing was £485k under budget. Despite the Counci l 

taking out new PWLB borrowing of £25m in August 2021, this was at a historically 

low rate, far lower than assumed in the budget. An additional £17m was borrowed 

in November 2021 following a switch of loans held by both loans’ pools between 

the Housing Revenue Account and General Fund.   

Table 2: Treasury Management Performance 2021/22  

 
 

Actuals Budget Variance

2021/22 2021/22 2021/22

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

Interest Paid on Borrowings 2,696 3,181 (485)

Income

Investment Interest Received (305) (45) (260)

Total 2,391 3,136 (745)

19



 

4 
 

Borrowing 

12. The Council has adopted a two-pool approach to debt management, separating 

the debts of the General Fund (Pool 1) and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 

(Pool 2). The HRA pool is a combination of both the Poole and Bournemouth 

Neighbourhood HRA accounts.  

13. Table 3 below shows the closing level of borrowing for the Council’s two loans 

pool.    

Table 3: Council Borrowings as at 31 March 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 Initial Loan 

Value £'000 
 Interest Rate 

 Balance as at 

31 Mar 2022    

£'000 

Maturity Date

 General 

Fund Pool 

£'000 

 HRA Pool 

£'000 
 Source 

Short Term Borrowing

2,000           8.00% 2,000              25-Nov-2022 -                  2,000           PWLB

2,000           2,000              -                  2,000           

Long Term Borrowing

5,000           2.66% 625                 22-Aug-2023 -                  625              PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Sep-2030 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Nov-2031 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.75% 5,000              24-Sep-2032 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Nov-2032 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.75% 5,000              24-Sep-2033 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.60% 5,000              23-Feb-2035 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.72% 5,000              22-Aug-2036 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           2.80% 5,000              20-Jun-2041 5,000          -                  PWLB

5,000           2.80% 5,000              20-Jun-2041 5,000          -                  PWLB

10,000         1.83% 10,000            22-Jul-2046 10,000        -                  PWLB

2,500           6.75% 2,500              06-Mar-2056 -                  2,500           PWLB

1,500           6.75% 1,500              13-Mar-2057 -                  1,500           PWLB

1,500           5.88% 1,500              07-Mar-2058 -                  1,500           PWLB

42,488         3.48% 42,488            28-Mar-2062 -                  42,488         PWLB

43,908         3.48% 43,908            28-Mar-2062 -                  43,908         PWLB

17,000         1.54% 17,000            17-May-2068 17,000        -                  PWLB

12,500         1.56% 12,500            16-Aug-2068 12,500        -                  PWLB

12,500         1.55% 12,500            16-Aug-2069 12,500        -                  PWLB

193,896       189,521          62,000        127,521       

49,000         2.83% 48,747            24-May-2068 48,747        -                  Phoenix Life Limited

22,625         2.26% + RPI Annually 16,289            17-Oct-2039 16,289        -                  Prudential Assurance Co

3,673           0.00% 255                 01-Apr-2023 255             -                  Salix

271,194       256,812          127,291      129,521       

20



 

5 
 

14. Table 4 below shows the closing level of the Council Capital Financing 

Requirement and how that is made up of actual external borrowing and what the 

level of under borrowing. 

Table 4: Council Capital Financing Requirement 31 March 2022 

 

 

Investments 

15. During the year, cash surpluses are invested by the Treasury Management team 

through direct dealing or money brokers with approved counterparties. The 

Council’s counterparty list i.e. the list of organisations that it has been agreed that 

the Council can invest with has become increasingly restricted in recent years 

due to the economic climate and the criteria used to select appropriate 

organisations.  

16. A full list of investments held by the authority as of 31 March 2022 is shown in 

Table 5 below. 

Table 5: Investment Summary as at 31 March 2022 

 
 

General Fund HRA Total

£000 £000 £000

External Borrowing 127,291 129,521 256,812

Internal Borrowing (under borrowing) 216,107 3,710 219,817

Capital Financing Requirement 343,398 133,231 476,629

Investments Maturity Date
Principal Amount 

£
Interest %

Fixed Term Deposits

Landesbank Hessen Thuringen 19-Apr-2022             25,150,000 0.73%

Cornwall Council 25-Apr-2022             10,000,000 0.60%

Close Brothers 24-May-2022             15,000,000 0.40%

Goldman Sachs International Bank 17-Jun-2022             15,000,000 0.47%

Goldman Sachs International Bank 30-Jun-2022               9,000,000 0.52%

Goldman Sachs International Bank 16-Aug-2022             13,000,000 1.20%

Close Brothers 29-Sep-2022             10,000,000 1.20%

Sub Total 97,150,000

Call Account

Santander UK 120 day notice 22,825,000 0.50%

HSBC Sterling Liquidity Fund instant access 29,975,000 0.56%

Total 149,950,000

21



 

6 
 

17. The Treasury Management function has continued to achieve higher average 

returns of 0.20% for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 for its combined 

investment compared to the SONIA overnight rate of (0.15%).  

 

Treasury Management Performance 2022/23 

18. Table 6 below shows the overall treasury management position for 2022/23. The 

current forecast is an underspend of £840k on interest receivable budgets 

reflecting the increase in interest rates and still being in receipt of a number of 

significant grants from central government.  

Table 6: Treasury Management performance 2022/23 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Forecast Budget Variance

2022/23 2022/23 2022/23

£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure

Interest Paid on Borrowings 3,199 3,199 0

Income

Investment Interest Received (885) (45) (840)

Total 2,314 3,154 (840)

22



 

7 
 

Borrowing 

19. Table 7 below shows the closing level of borrowing for the Council’s two loans 

pool.    

Table 7: Council Borrowings as at 30 June 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Initial Loan 

Value £'000 
 Interest Rate 

 Balance as at 

30 June 2022    

£'000 

Maturity Date

 General 

Fund Pool 

£'000 

 HRA Pool 

£'000 
 Source 

Short Term Borrowing

2,000           8.00% 2,000              25-Nov-2022 -                  2,000           PWLB

3,673           0.00% 128                 01-Apr-2023 128             -                  Salix

5,673           2,128              128             2,000           

Long Term Borrowing

5,000           2.66% 625                 22-Aug-2023 -                  625              PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Sep-2030 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Nov-2031 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.75% 5,000              24-Sep-2032 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.45% 5,000              24-Nov-2032 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.75% 5,000              24-Sep-2033 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.60% 5,000              23-Feb-2035 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           4.72% 5,000              22-Aug-2036 -                  5,000           PWLB

5,000           2.80% 5,000              20-Jun-2041 5,000          -                  PWLB

5,000           2.80% 5,000              20-Jun-2041 5,000          -                  PWLB

10,000         1.83% 10,000            22-Jul-2046 10,000        -                  PWLB

2,500           6.75% 2,500              06-Mar-2056 -                  2,500           PWLB

1,500           6.75% 1,500              13-Mar-2057 -                  1,500           PWLB

1,500           5.88% 1,500              07-Mar-2058 -                  1,500           PWLB

42,488         3.48% 42,488            28-Mar-2062 -                  42,488         PWLB

43,908         3.48% 43,908            28-Mar-2062 -                  43,908         PWLB

17,000         1.54% 17,000            17-May-2068 17,000        -                  PWLB

12,500         1.56% 12,500            16-Aug-2068 12,500        -                  PWLB

12,500         1.55% 12,500            16-Aug-2069 12,500        -                  PWLB

193,896       189,521          62,000        127,521       

49,000         2.83% 48,491            24-May-2068 48,491        -                  Phoenix Life Limited

22,625         2.26% + RPI Annually 16,097            17-Oct-2039 16,097        -                  Prudential Assurance Co

271,194       256,237          126,716      129,521       

23



 

8 
 

Investments 

20. A full list of investments held by the authority as at 30 June 2022 is shown in 

Table 8 below. 

Table 8: Investment Summary as at 30 June 2022 

 
 

21. The Treasury Management function has continued to achieve higher average 

returns of 0.81% for the period 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022 for its combined 

investment compared to the SONIA overnight rate of (0.86%).  

Prudential Indicators 

22. The Treasury Management Prudential Code Indicators were set as part of the 

2021/22 & 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy. It can be confirmed that all 

indicators have been complied with during all of 2021/22 and the period 1 April 

2022 to 31 June 2022. 

Compliance with Policy 

23. The Treasury Management activities of the Council are regularly audited both 

internally and externally to ensure compliance with the Council’s Financial 

Regulations. The recent internal audit in January 2022 rated the Treasury 

Management function as “Reasonable” assurance which means that there is a 

sound control framework which is designed to achieve the service objectives, with 

key controls being consistently applied.  

24. The Treasury Management Strategy requires that surplus funds are placed with 

major financial institutions but that no more than 25% (AA- Rated Institutions) or 

20% (A to A- Rated) of the investment holding is placed with any one major 

financial institution at the time the investment takes place. It can be confirmed 

that the Treasury Management Strategy has been complied with during all of 

2021/22 and the period 1 April 2022 to 30 June 2022. 

Investments Maturity Date
Principal Amount 

£
Interest %

Fixed Term Deposits

Landesbank Hessen Thuringen 18-Jul-2022             25,150,000 1.00%

Goldman Sachs International Bank 16-Aug-2022             13,000,000 1.20%

Santander UK 24-Aug-2022 22,825,000 0.74%

Close Brothers 29-Sep-2022             10,000,000 1.20%

National Bank of Canada 11-Nov-2022             10,000,000 1.57%

Sub Total 80,975,000

Call Account

HSBC Sterling Liquidity Fund instant access 27,595,000 1.14%

Total 108,570,000

24



 

9 
 

Update on changing regulations associated with debt 

25. DLUHC have made it clear that local authorities taking on excessive risk and any 

non-compliance with the framework will see increased interventions from 

government potentially leading to caps on borrowing. DLUHC also made it clear 

that they planned to better constrain the risks associated with complex capital 

transactions. This included credit arrangements, such as PFI deals or income 

strips, and financial derivatives. These types of arrangement can carry more risk 

than traditional forms of financing and require the right expertise to support 

effective decisions and risk management. 

26. As part of this tightening DLUHC on the 12 May 2022 announced as part of its 

Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, the proposal to address excessive risk arising 

from local authority investment and borrowing, while supporting local freedoms 

for investment. They propose a set metrics for local authorities including the 

following: 

 proportionality of debt compared to the financial resources at the disposal 

of the authority. 

 proportion of capital assets which are investments taken out to generate 

net financial return or profit. 

 Whether the authority is meeting its statutory duty to make sufficient 

provision for debt repayment. 

 proportion of debt held where the counterparty is not local or central 

government including credit arrangements and loans. 

 Any other metric specified by regulations made by the secretary of state 

27. The proposals set out above also coincide with a further update to Public Works 

Loan Board (PWLB) guidance to address lending to authorities where there is a 

more than negligible risk of non-repayment. HM Treasury will be reviewing 

authorities that raise concerns and could mean limiting the loan term length 

generally offered or restricting lending altogether. 

28. The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill published on the 11 May 2022 proposes 

to amend the LG Act 2002 to give the Secretary of State powers to issue a “risk 

mitigation direction”. This could be issued if a council receives a section 114 

notice, receives a capitalisation direction, or breaches one of the five capital risk 

thresholds set out above. Such directions could direct asset sales and limit 

council borrowing levels. 

Increase the Councils Debt Threshold (Capital Financing 
Requirement) 

29. As part of the financial strategy supporting the development of the 2022/23 

budget the council in September 2021 approved a revision to its self-imposed 

debt threshold. This change recognised that our borrowing of £457m as of 31 

March 2021, represented 160% of our Net Revenue Expenditure (NRE), and was 

towards the lower end of the third quarter when compared to upper tier authorities 

including metropolitan boroughs. The decision was to move our debt threshold to 

257% of our NRE which would move the council to the mid-point average and 

25



 

10 
 

support a debt level of £855m. There were two main drivers for extending the 

Council's debt threshold. 

1) To enable service-based capital expenditure to be financed from debt with the 

cost spread over the time-period that will benefit from the expenditure.  

2) To support the big plan objective including the delivery of regeneration and 

housing business cases which will provide an ongoing resource base for the 

authority, as a minimum, once the borrowing is repaid. 

30. As at the 31 March 2022 the Council has increased its current actual borrowing 

position to £487m and has now committed over the five-year period to 31 March 

2027 to using all the current £855m threshold including those decisions outlined 

in May 2022 Cabinet and Council reports. This includes decisions in respect of 

the Futures Fund £50m, Carters Quay £46m, Green Futures Fund £20m, SEND 

Capital £10m, the multi-year investments in the Council New Build and Housing 

Acquisition Strategy, and the capitalisation of neighbourhood highway 

maintenance up to and including 2025/26. 

31. The proposal now is to increase the Council debt threshold to £1.334bn which 

will represent 387% of our NRE and position us at the top of the 3rd quarter when 

compared to upper tier authorities including metropolitan boroughs (see 

Appendix 1). This headroom will provide the Council with a further £479m to 

support delivery of its Big Plan. It will be allocated based on prudent business 

cases that take account of risk, support the levelling up agenda, and will be 

particularly focused on the delivery of housing or extra care housing related 

schemes, be that via the councils housing revenue account, or any BCP 

FuturePlaces Ltd or Bournemouth Development Company LLP led projects. It will 

not be invested in any commercial for yield activity. 

32. Self-imposed debt levels are set against the Councils Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR). Such levels are a requirement of the CIPFA Prudential Code 

and link into the prudential indicators agreed by Council based on 

recommendations of the Audit and Governance Committee who are responsible 

for the Treasury Management Strategy. 

33. The recommended new indicators are as follows: 

Table 9: Revised Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity 

 

34. Recognising the acute financial challenges in the Councils current and future year 

budgets and demonstrating fiscal discipline it is recommend that no further 

borrowing is undertaken which is not supported by a self-funding business case. 

Therefore, it is recommended that no further commitments to debt be taken on 

which would require the general fund budget of the council to finance the revenue  

implications of taking on that additional debt. 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£m £m £m £m

Operational boundary               797               855            1,334            1,334 

Authorised limit               847               905            1,384            1,384 

26



 

11 
 

35. The Chief Financial Officer supports utilising the opportunity afforded by 

borrowing on the basis that as a principle it ensures the cost of various capital 

projects are spread over the time periods that are anticipated to benefit from the 

investment. But all estimates for capital expenditure must prove to be affordable, 

prudent, and sustainable. In addition, schemes such as those to reduce 

homelessness or create extra care housing schemes should significantly reduce 

the annual operating expenditure of the authority. Schemes such as the Poole 

Bay beach master plan meet a key principle of the council’s capital strategy by 

levering in high levels of inward investment via government grant funding. Over 

and above this any schemes should ensure they adhere to the ever-tightening 

regulatory framework set down by government and be supported by strong, 

robust financial business cases. To emphasise the point already made in the 

report the CFO would not support any further debt being undertaken which would 

require the general fund budget of the council to finance the revenue implications 

of taking on that additional debt. Councillors also need to be cognisant of the 

perception created if Council was to choose to have debt levels above those of 

similar local authorities. 

Summary of Financial/Resource Implications  

36. Financial implications are as outlined within the report. 

Summary of Legal Implications  

37. There are no known legal implications. 

Summary of Equalities and Diversity Impact 

38. The Treasury Management activity does not directly impact on any of the services 

provided by the Council or how those services are structured. The success of the 

function will have an impact on the extent to which sufficient financial resources 

are available to fund services to all members of the community. 

Summary of Risk Assessment 

39. The Treasury Management Policy seeks to consider and minimise various risks 

encountered when investing surplus cash through the money markets. The aim 

in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management is to 

place a greater emphasis on the security and liquidity of funds rather than the 

return gained on investments. The main perceived risks associated with treasury 

management are discussed below.   

Credit Risks 

40. Risk that a counterparty will default, fully or partially, on an investment placed 

with them. There were no counterparty defaults during the year to date, the 

Council’s position is that it will invest the majority of its cash in the main UK Banks 

which are considered to be relatively risk adverse and have been heavi ly 

protected by the UK Government over the last few years. The strategy is being 

constantly monitored and may change if UK Bank Long Term ratings fall below 

acceptable levels. 

 

27



 

12 
 

Liquidity Risks 

41. Aims to ensure that the Council has sufficient cash available when it is needed. 

This was actively managed throughout the year and there are no liquidity issues 

to report. 

Re-financing Risks 

42. Managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments (borrowings) as and 

when they mature. The Council continues to monitor premiums and discounts in 

relation to redeeming debt early. Only if interest rates result in a discount that will 

benefit the Council would early redemption be considered. 

Interest Rate Risks 

43. Exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments. The 

Council is protected from rate movements once a loan or investment is agreed 

as the vast majority of transactions are secured at a fixed rate.   

Price Risk 

44. Relates to changes in the value of an investment due to variation in price. The 

Council does not invest in Gilts or any other investments that would lead to a 

reduction in the principal value repaid on maturity. 

Background papers 

45. Treasury Management report to Full Council on 22 February 2022 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4812/Public%20reports%20p

ack%2022nd-Feb-2022%2019.00%20Council.pdf?T=10  

Appendices  

Appendix 1 - BCP Council Debt Benchmarking 

Appendix 2 – Details of capital commitment against the debt ceiling 

 

28

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4812/Public%20reports%20pack%2022nd-Feb-2022%2019.00%20Council.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g4812/Public%20reports%20pack%2022nd-Feb-2022%2019.00%20Council.pdf?T=10


COMPARISON GROUP: ALL UPPER TIER AUTHORITIES (INC. LONDON BOROUGHS)

Source data: CER C 2021-22: Prudential system information by authority & category, England, 2021-22

Local Authority Revenue Account (RA) (Budget) Return 2021-22

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT (CFR) BENCHMARKING

APPENDIX 1: Benchmarking - Capital Financing Requirement (Debt)

387%

BCP 31.3.25
264%

BCP 31.3.26
261%

BCP 31.3.24
249%

BCP 31.3.23
200%

BCP 31.3.22
157%

0%

200%

400%

600%

800%

1000%

1200%

1400%

1600%

W
ar

ri
n

gt
o

n

Th
u

rr
o

ck

B
ar

ki
n

g 
&

 D
ag

en
h

am

Sl
o

u
gh

So
u

th
w

ar
k

Le
ed

s

W
es

tm
in

st
e

r

H
ar

in
ge

y

N
ew

h
am

So
u

th
 T

yn
es

id
e

Lu
to

n

En
fi

e
ld

H
al

to
n

B
ir

m
in

gh
am

N
o

tt
in

gh
am

C
ro

yd
o

n

P
o

rt
sm

o
u

th

B
ar

n
sl

e
y

La
m

b
et

h

W
o

ki
n

gh
am

W
o

lv
e

rh
am

p
to

n

R
ea

d
in

g

R
o

th
e

rh
am

G
at

e
sh

e
ad

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
 H

u
ll

To
rb

ay

St
o

ke
-o

n
-T

re
n

t

Yo
rk

D
er

b
y

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
gh

B
re

n
t

H
av

e
ri

n
g

N
o

rt
h

 T
yn

es
id

e

N
ew

ca
st

le
 u

p
o

n
 T

yn
e

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
e

rl
an

d

Te
lf

o
rd

 &
 W

re
ki

n

B
ar

n
e

t

Ea
lin

g

H
ar

ro
w

B
la

ck
p

o
o

l

Sh
ef

fi
el

d

P
ly

m
o

u
th

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

 &
 C

h
el

se
a

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

M
ilt

o
n

 K
ey

n
es

St
o

ck
p

o
rt

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
 &

 F
u

lh
am

M
an

ch
es

te
r

Su
tt

o
n

Is
lin

gt
o

n

D
u

d
le

y

Tr
af

fo
rd

R
ed

b
ri

d
ge

So
lih

u
ll

Sw
in

d
o

n

Su
n

d
e

rl
an

d

B
at

h
 &

 N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
So

m
e

rs
e

t

So
u

th
e

n
d

-o
n

-S
e

a

C
am

d
e

n

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
 T

h
am

e
s

C
en

tr
al

 B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

So
u

th
am

p
to

n

Is
le

 o
f 

W
ig

h
t

Sa
lf

o
rd

K
ir

kl
ee

s

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

Sa
n

d
w

el
l

B
ri

st
o

l

C
am

b
ri

d
ge

sh
ir

e

D
o

n
ca

st
e

r

D
ar

lin
gt

o
n

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 (
3

1
.0

3
.2

5
)

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 (
3

1
.0

3
.2

6
)

B
la

ck
b

u
rn

 w
it

h
 D

ar
w

e
n

R
ed

ca
r 

&
 C

le
ve

la
n

d

C
o

rn
w

al
l

Li
ve

rp
o

o
l

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 (
3

1
.0

3
.2

4
)

R
o

ch
d

al
e

O
ld

h
am

W
ig

an

H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

B
ra

ck
n

el
l F

o
re

st

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

C
h

es
h

ir
e

 W
e

st
 &

 C
h

es
te

r

C
o

ve
n

tr
y

Le
w

is
h

am

M
id

d
le

sb
ro

u
gh

B
ri

gh
to

n
 &

 H
o

ve

Le
ic

es
te

r

W
in

d
so

r 
&

 M
ai

d
e

n
h

ea
d

W
ak

e
fi

e
ld

B
ra

d
fo

rd

W
es

t 
B

e
rk

sh
ir

e

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 (
3

1
.0

3
.2

3
)

B
ex

le
y

N
o

rt
h

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e

W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e

H
ac

kn
e

y

B
u

ry

Ea
st

 R
id

in
g 

o
f 

Yo
rk

sh
ir

e

W
ilt

sh
ir

e

N
o

tt
in

gh
am

sh
ir

e

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
Li

n
co

ln
sh

ir
e

C
h

es
h

ir
e

 E
as

t

W
es

t 
N

o
rt

h
am

p
to

n
sh

ir
e

C
al

d
er

d
al

e

Su
rr

e
y

Li
n

co
ln

sh
ir

e

Su
ff

o
lk

W
al

sa
ll

K
n

o
w

sl
ey

So
u

th
 G

lo
u

ce
st

er
sh

ir
e

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 (
3

1
.0

3
.2

2
)

C
u

m
b

ri
a

H
ar

tl
ep

o
o

l

So
m

e
rs

e
t

St
af

fo
rd

sh
ir

e

D
o

rs
et

 U
A

K
e

n
t

D
u

rh
am

N
o

rf
o

lk

Ta
m

e
si

d
e

La
n

ca
sh

ir
e

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

D
er

b
ys

h
ir

e

Es
se

x

W
ir

ra
l

B
o

lt
o

n

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 u

p
o

n
 T

h
am

es

D
ev

o
n

St
o

ck
to

n
-o

n
-T

e
es

St
 H

el
e

n
s

N
o

rt
h

 S
o

m
e

rs
e

t

B
u

ck
in

gh
am

sh
ir

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l

H
e

rt
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

M
er

to
n

W
es

t 
Su

ss
ex

B
ed

fo
rd

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e

G
lo

u
ce

st
er

sh
ir

e

Se
ft

o
n

H
am

p
sh

ir
e

W
ar

w
ic

ks
h

ir
e

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e

Ea
st

 S
u

ss
ex

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

R
u

tl
an

d

Le
ic

es
te

rs
h

ir
e

N
o

rt
h

 N
o

rt
h

am
p

to
n

sh
ir

e

4th 3rd 2nd 1st

CFR 31.03.22 as a % of Budgeted Net Revenue Expenditure 2021/22

Indicator of Financial Stress

Higher Risk → Lower Risk 
(4th quartile) (1st quartile)

BCP ESTIMATE 31.3.26
£850,771

BCP ESTIMATE 31.3.25
£844,338

BCP ESTIMATE 31.3.24
£810,666 BCP ESTIMATE 31.3.23

£688,169

BCP ESTIMATE 31.3.22
£487,182

£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

£3,500,000

£4,000,000

B
ir

m
in

gh
am

 (
£

4,
79

6
,1

8
9

)

Le
ed

s

So
u

th
w

ar
k

W
ar

ri
n

gt
o

n

M
an

ch
es

te
r

C
ro

yd
o

n

Sh
ef

fi
el

d

En
fi

e
ld

N
ew

h
am

Th
u

rr
o

ck

N
o

tt
in

gh
am

K
e

n
t

C
o

rn
w

al
l

Su
rr

e
y

H
ar

in
ge

y

B
ar

ki
n

g 
&

 D
ag

en
h

am

La
m

b
et

h

Es
se

x

Li
ve

rp
o

o
l

N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
e

rl
an

d

La
n

ca
sh

ir
e

W
es

tm
in

st
e

r

B
ar

n
sl

e
y

W
o

lv
e

rh
am

p
to

n

C
am

b
ri

d
ge

sh
ir

e

B
re

n
t

B
ar

n
e

t

B
ri

st
o

l

Ea
lin

g

N
o

rf
o

lk

N
ew

ca
st

le
 u

p
o

n
 T

yn
e

H
e

rt
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

P
o

rt
sm

o
u

th

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
 H

u
ll

R
o

th
e

rh
am

Lu
to

n

St
o

ke
-o

n
-T

re
n

t

N
o

tt
in

gh
am

sh
ir

e

St
o

ck
p

o
rt

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 @
 3

1
.0

3
.2

6

G
re

e
n

w
ic

h

B
ra

d
fo

rd

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 @
 3

1
.0

3
.2

5

K
ir

kl
ee

s

Sl
o

u
gh

G
at

e
sh

e
ad

Su
ff

o
lk

D
er

b
y

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 @
 3

1
.0

3
.2

4

H
am

p
sh

ir
e

So
u

th
 T

yn
es

id
e

D
u

d
le

y

Sa
n

d
w

el
l

Su
n

d
e

rl
an

d

Li
n

co
ln

sh
ir

e

St
af

fo
rd

sh
ir

e

P
ly

m
o

u
th

Is
lin

gt
o

n

D
ev

o
n

To
w

e
r 

H
am

le
ts

W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e

C
en

tr
al

 B
e

d
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

M
ilt

o
n

 K
ey

n
es

Sa
lf

o
rd

C
am

d
e

n

B
C

P
 E

st
im

at
e

 @
 3

1
.0

3
.2

3

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
gh

W
ilt

sh
ir

e

H
av

e
ri

n
g

H
ar

ro
w

R
ea

d
in

g

R
ed

b
ri

d
ge

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w

C
h

es
h

ir
e

 W
e

st
 &

 C
h

es
te

r

H
al

to
n

D
er

b
ys

h
ir

e

N
o

rt
h

 T
yn

es
id

e

Le
ic

es
te

r

D
u

rh
am

W
o

ki
n

gh
am

W
ig

an

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

K
e

n
si

n
gt

o
n

 &
 C

h
el

se
a

Tr
af

fo
rd

D
o

n
ca

st
e

r

W
es

t 
Su

ss
ex

C
u

m
b

ri
a

So
u

th
am

p
to

n

W
ak

e
fi

e
ld

Ea
st

 R
id

in
g 

o
f 

Yo
rk

sh
ir

e

Te
lf

o
rd

 &
 W

re
ki

n

Sw
in

d
o

n

Le
w

is
h

am

So
m

e
rs

e
t

C
o

ve
n

tr
y

O
ld

h
am

Su
tt

o
n

B
ri

gh
to

n
 &

 H
o

ve

To
rb

ay

Yo
rk

So
lih

u
ll

B
u

ck
in

gh
am

sh
ir

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l

B
la

ck
p

o
o

l

O
xf

o
rd

sh
ir

e

H
ac

kn
e

y

B
C

P
 (

re
vi

se
d

 e
st

im
at

e 
3

1
.3

.2
2

)

R
o

ch
d

al
e

C
h

es
h

ir
e

 E
as

t

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
 &

 F
u

lh
am

D
o

rs
et

 U
A

H
ill

in
gd

o
n

W
es

t 
N

o
rt

h
am

p
to

n
sh

ir
e

B
at

h
 &

 N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
So

m
e

rs
e

t

So
u

th
e

n
d

-o
n

-S
e

a

G
lo

u
ce

st
er

sh
ir

e

Is
le

 o
f 

W
ig

h
t

W
al

sa
ll

So
u

th
 G

lo
u

ce
st

er
sh

ir
e

W
ir

ra
l

W
ar

w
ic

ks
h

ir
e

K
in

gs
to

n
 u

p
o

n
 T

h
am

e
s

H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

B
ex

le
y

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e

B
o

lt
o

n

B
u

ry

B
la

ck
b

u
rn

 w
it

h
 D

ar
w

e
n

Ea
st

 S
u

ss
ex

Ta
m

e
si

d
e

K
n

o
w

sl
ey

R
ed

ca
r 

&
 C

le
ve

la
n

d

W
es

t 
B

e
rk

sh
ir

e

N
o

rt
h

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e

M
id

d
le

sb
ro

u
gh

C
al

d
er

d
al

e

Se
ft

o
n

Le
ic

es
te

rs
h

ir
e

D
ar

lin
gt

o
n

B
ra

ck
n

el
l F

o
re

st

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h

W
in

d
so

r 
&

 M
ai

d
e

n
h

ea
d

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
Li

n
co

ln
sh

ir
e

N
o

rt
h

 S
o

m
e

rs
e

t

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 u

p
o

n
 T

h
am

es

St
o

ck
to

n
-o

n
-T

e
es

St
 H

el
e

n
s

M
er

to
n

B
ed

fo
rd

C
it

y 
o

f 
Lo

n
d

o
n

H
ar

tl
ep

o
o

l

R
u

tl
an

d

N
o

rt
h

 N
o

rt
h

am
p

to
n

sh
ir

e

4th 3rd 2nd 1st

CFR HEADROOM

31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2024 31/03/2025 31/03/2026

Estimated CFR £487,182 £688,169 £810,666 £844,338 £850,771

Headroom (@ £855m) £367,818 £166,831 £44,334 £10,662 £4,229

Headroom (@ £1.33bn) £846,764 £645,777 £523,280 £489,608 £483,175

387% net revenue expenditure, based on 2022/23 budget £1,333,946

APPENDIX D

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank

30



2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Regeneration schemes

Carter's Quay 12,201 19,000 4,868 36,069

Winter Gardens 44,441 44,441

Holes Bay 707 707

Pokesdown Station 1,850 750 2,600

Smart Places Gigabit Fibre 2,085 1,890 1,890 5,865

Wessex Fields highways works 1,600 1,600

sub-total 18,443 66,081 6,758 0 0 91,282

Council Newbuild & Acquisitions Strategy (CNHAS)

Temporary accommodation 5,994 5,994

CNHAS - residential street properties 1,804 12,235 10,650 10,555 35,244

CNHAS - Care Experience Young People (CEYP) 850 850

CNHAS - Private Rented Sector (PRS) 1,500 1,500

CNHAS Alma Road (former GP surgery) 570 1,520 1,710 3,800

CMHAS Oakdale 660 1,530 2,180 4,370

CNHAS Roeshot Hill PRS 6,095 6,095

CNHAS Crescent Road 1,623 1,623

CNHAS Princess Road (hostel and PRS) 11,604 2,205 13,809

CNHAS HRA Moorside Road 1,301 1,301

CNHAS HRA Cabbage Patch 1,255 1,255

CNHAS HRA Wilkinson Drive 1,467 253 1,720

CNHAS HRA Northbourne 853 853

CNHAS HRA Craven Court 1,241 1,705 2,946

CNHAS HRA Templeman House 296 1,201 1,497

CNHAS HRA Mountbatten Gardens 26 26

CNHAS HRA Princess Road 3,685 5,829 9,514

CNHAS HRA Duck Lane 1,219 428 1,647

CNHAS HRA Surrey Road 240 406 966 1,612

CNHAS HRA 43 Bingham Road 370 370

CNHAS HRA Roeshot Hill (shared and affordable) 4,304 4,304

CNHAS HRA  Cynthia House 2,894 2,894

CNHAS HRA  Herbert Avenue 2,221 2,221

CNHAS HRA Hillbourne 3,240 3,902 5,916 953 153 14,164

CNHAS HRA  Oakdale 1,920 4,490 6,420 12,830

CNHAS HRA Egmont Road 1,173 1,173

CNHAS HRA Redhorn Close 1,400 1,400

CNHAS HRA Dale Close 456 456

CNHAS HRA Lake Avenue 669 669

CNHAS HRA Junction Road 517 517

CNHAS HRA Cavan Crescent / Sopers Lane 1,414 1,414

sub-total 62,860 35,704 27,842 11,508 153 138,067

Seafront development

Bistro on the beach 6,248 6,248

Canford Cliffs - new beach huts 3,119 3,119

Canford Cliffs - pavilion 1,142 1,142

Mudeford Beach House Café 631 631

Festival Coast Live 198 198

Various other seafront 119 119

sub-total 11,458 0 0 0 0 11,458

Other 

Cleaner, Greener, Safer 653 653

Highways maintenance - capitalised 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000

BIC medium term refurbishment 1,780 1,780

Muscliff natural burial ground 110 110

ICT investment plan 492 492

Various other coast protection 122 122

St Stephen's homelessness hub 679 679

sub-total 4,835 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 8,835

Appendix 2 - Approved Capital Schemes and known commitments

31



2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Schemes underway

Fleet replacement 16,375 4,900 21,275

Poole Park Railway 200 200

BCP civic centre 4,139 4,139

Transformation programme (capital) 4,351 4,351

Estates maintenance (Bmouth pier, Russell Cotes, minor other) 129 129

Skills & Learning (relocation to Dolphin Centre) 743 743

Parkway House 329 329

Street lighting investment 320 320

Various Children's (Hillbourne and Carter) 1,587 70 1,657

Various transportation 47 47

Various other environment (King's Prk athletics, Lwr Gdns Aviary) 63 63

Various other adults 30 30

sub-total 28,312 4,970 0 0 0 33,282

Schemes leveraging in significant external funding

Poole Bay beach management plan 2,282 1,758 4,040

Rossmore & Two Rivers Meet artificial pitch 727 727

Poole Museum - Our Museum Project 793 793

Scaplen's Court 180 180

Russell Cotes urgent repair works 213 213

Poole & Bournemouth Crematoria 546 546

Fernheath playing fields 100 100

sub-total 2,559 0 0 2,282 1,758 6,599

Total approved prudential borrowing 128,466 107,755 35,600 14,790 2,911 289,522

Other known commitments

Futures Fund 15,965 7,360 8,110 10,000 41,435

SEND Reserve 10,000 10,000

Green Fund 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 20,000

BDC - Cotlands Car Park (York Road multi storey) 11,400 11,400

sub-total 29,965 22,760 12,110 14,000 4,000 82,835

Total Approved and commited borrowing 158,431 130,515 47,710 28,790 6,911 372,357

32



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report updates councillors on the position of the council’s 

Corporate Risk Register. The main updates are as follows: 

 The format of the reporting of the Register has been updated 

for this quarter; 

 No new risks were added during the quarter; 

 No risks were removed during the quarter; 

 Material updates to the risks are summarised at sections 14-19. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Members of the Audit and Governance Committee note the 
update provided in this report relating to corporate risks. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To provide assurance that corporate risks are being managed 
effectively and continue the development of the council’s 
arrangements for Risk Management and enhance its governance 
framework. 

  

33

Agenda Item 9



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant – Chief Executive 

Report Authors Fiona Manton 
Risk & Insurance Manager  
01202 127055 

fiona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Update and Information 
Ti t l e:   

 

Background 

1. Risk can be broadly defined as the possibility that an action, issue or activity (including inaction) will 
lead to a loss or an undesirable outcome. It follows that Risk Management is about the 
identification, assessment and prioritisation of risks followed by co-ordinated control of the 
probability and impact of that risk. 

2. In accordance with the Financial Regulations and the Risk Management Strategy, the Audit and 
Governance Committee are specifically responsible for ensuring appropriate and effective risk 
management processes. In practice, this means that the committee members must assure 
themselves that the council’s Risk Management framework is appropriate and operating effectively. 
The council’s Corporate Risk Register is an important element of this framework and is reviewed 
and updated on a quarterly basis. 

3. In line with the decision-making framework in place for BCP Council it was agreed that, effective 
from day one, BCP Council would, as an interim measure, adopt the legacy Bournemouth Risk 
Management framework. The scoring matrix in this framework was adjusted to reflect the increased 
remit of the new authority. A revised Risk Management framework for BCP Council is being 
finalised and is currently being consulted upon. 

4. In addition to the quarterly reviews, in immediate practical terms, the Corporate Management Board 
(CMB) continues to monitor risks and ensure appropriate and proportionate mitigating actions 
continue and evolve as risks change. 

Corporate Risk Review 

5. Members will recall from the previous updates that the Corporate Risk Register was established at 
the commencement of BCP Council. It has been routinely reviewed on a quarterly basis.  

6. Following feedback from the April meeting of this Committee an alternative format for the reporting 
of risk is included at Appendix 1. The new format contains identical information to that provided 
previously but seeks to include a clearer quarterly update and a direction of travel for risk scoring. 

7. In addition to the above points, the risk response strategy is now included in the risk summary. This 
defines the strategies being adopted to deal with a particular risk and the four categories are shown 
below: 

Termination: It is impossible to remove or eliminate all risk from an undertaking but it is 

possible to avoid a particular identified cause.   

 

Transfer: Transfer does not change the risk directly but involves others in its management.  The 

risk transfer strategy aims to pass ownership and/or liability for a particular threat to another 
party nearly always for payment of a risk premium. This strategy rarely transfers the ‘whole’ risk.  
Risk transfer falls into two groups: financial instruments and contractual arrangements.   
 

Treat: By far the greatest number of threat risks will be treated in this way.  The purpose of risk 

treatment or mitigation is to contain the risk at an acceptable level.     

 

34

mailto:fiona.manton@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Tolerate/accept: There may be limited ability to do anything about some risk, or for a limited 

number of minor threats the cost of taking action may be disproportionate to the potential benefit 
gained.  In these cases the most appropriate response may be to tolerate or accept the risk.   

8. Work is on-going to refine risk strategies in the consideration of the Corporate Risk Register and in 
future you may see a combination of strategies being reported against risk mitigations and controls. 

9. Members will be aware that each risk is given a unique identifying number so where risks have 
been removed from the register the numbers will no longer run sequentially. To assist the 
Committee a table of the full risks is shown at the beginning of Appendix 1. 

10. During the last review cycle, in line with the previous development of the reporting on the 
performance of risks and enhancement of the overall management of risk, it was agreed that risks 
being considered at service level would be reviewed by Corporate Management Board. 

11. To achieve this Service Directors were requested to provide details of the five highest net risks 
currently present on their risk registers.  

12. In this context 91 service risks were collated. These risks were summarised and grouped by theme 
for review by CMB. The outcomes of this review are considered in the update to the Corporate Risk 
Register. 

13. In order to consider the complete risk framework, the final level of risk for review is those considered 
Key Assurance Risks. These include Information Governance, Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity and Health and Safety and Fire Safety. A review of the Board level risk took place, and it 
was confirmed they continue being managed at Board level.  

Changes in Risk During Quarter 1 – 2022/2023 

14. During the quarter, some of the risks on the risk register have been reviewed and in addition to the 
routine updates to each risk, the material updates to the register are as follows: 

CR09 – Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the delivery of services. This risk has 
been updated for the quarter to reflect the update provided in the Cabinet report of June 2022. 

CR15 – Effective people strategy. This risk has been updated to reflect additional factors such as 
the decision to defer the Pay and Reward programme and difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff 
and the risk score has been increased as part of these considerations. 

15. No new risks were added during this review period. 

16. As part of each risk review, consideration is given as whether any of the risks should be removed 
during the quarter but no risks were removed during this reporting period. 

17. The following risks were considered and discussed during the quarter for inclusion in the Corporate 
Risk Register but were agreed to remain managed at service level or be subject to further 
discussion at this time: 

Consideration was given again during this quarter to the need for a Corporate Risk in relation to the 
management of council assets and the implementation of a corporate landlord model and how this 
may work. It was determined that the level of this risk will continue to be monitored to establish if it 
needs to be escalated to corporate level.  

18. Whilst it may be noted that many of the risk scores have not changed, this is not reflective of 
management action or inaction. Risks will continue to be influenced by a number of factors including 
national impacts and operational environment changes. During each quarter risk owners routinely 
review the allocated scores along with further discussion by CMB. 

19. Full details of the updates for this quarter can be found in Appendix 1. 

Service Development  

20. In addition to the reviews of Corporate Risks, the Risk Management Team continues to be engaged 
in the refresh of service risk registers.  This includes engaging with services to understand their 
current risk arrangements, how these can be improved to deliver a proactive and dynamic Risk 
Management environment and how the Risk Management Team can support them in this to deliver 
a consistent and embedded approach to Risk Management throughout the council.  This work is 
progressing well. 

35



21. In conjunction with IT a project has been underway for the last 12 months to develop an application 
for the collation of all risk registers. This process is nearing conclusion with a soft launch on 6 April 
2022 of initial functionality. Utilising the soft launch process, some minor system updates are in 
progress to allow the process of the addition of all risk registers to commence. In the future this will 
provide an increased ability to monitor and report on the risk registers and provide greater oversight 
of service level risks. 

22. Work is concluding on finalising the draft of a new Risk Management framework for BCP Council. 
Consideration will need to be given to the council's risk appetite by CMB and the processes for 
managing risk consistently across the council.  This builds on the current position and seeks to 
enhance the mechanisms for risk reporting and risk escalation. The updated Risk Management 
Policy for the council is currently being consulted upon and will be reported to this Committee as 
soon as this process is complete. 

23. As part of the role of the team, continuous “horizon scanning” is undertaken to identify issues that 
may give rise to risk for the council.  When matters are identified, these are raised with the relevant 
Corporate / Service Director for review and consideration of any necessary action. Examples during 
this quarter include: 

 Routinely reviewing the outcomes of internal audit reports to raise risk issues with the 
relevant service risk champion to ensure, if appropriate, they are suitably reflected and 
captured in the service risk register. 

 Facilitating the risk management surveys of specific council assets by insurers. 

 

Summary of financial implications 

24. Financial implications relevant to risks are detailed within the relevant risk registers. 

Summary of legal implications 

25. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Summary of human resources implications 

26. There are no direct human resources implications from this report.  

Summary of sustainability impact 

27. There are no direct sustainability implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

28. There are no direct Public Health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

29. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

30. The risk management implications are set out within the content of this report. 

Background papers 

Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update Report to the Audit and Governance Committee 

on 14 April 2022 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – Corporate Risk Register Update Q1 – 2022/2023  

  

36



Appendix 1 

Audit & Governance Committee – July 2022 
 

Corporate Risk Register – Risk Table 
 

Risk 
Ref 

Risk Title Risk Status 

CR1 Failure to respond to the needs arising from a changing 
demography. 

Risk removed Q4 
2022 

CR2 Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for 

children – Children & Communities 

Corporate Risk 

CR3 Failure to ensure adequate Information Governance – now Key 
Assurance – Information governance Board Risk 

Risk removed Q2 
2020  

CR4 Failure to provide adequate IT and cyber security Corporate Risk 

CR5 Failure to plan effectively for EU Transition Risk Removed Q2 
2020 

CR6 Failure to adequately respond to an incident involving the 

activation of the emergency plan– now Key Assurance – 
Resilience Governance Board Risk 

Risk Removed Q2 
2020 

CR7 Failure to provide adequate services as a result of an 
incident requiring a business continuity response– now Key 
Assurance – Resilience Governance Board  

Risk Removed Q2 
2020 

CR8 Inability to run an election/referendum  Risk removed Q1 
2021  

CR9 Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the 
delivery of services 

Corporate Risk 

CR10 Failure to deliver effective health and safety to protect staff, 
councillors including the public 

Risk removed Q3 
2020 

CR11 Ability of the council to function and operate efficiently 
in the delivery of single services across the area of BCP 

Corporate Risk 

CR12 Failure to achieve appropriate outcomes and quality of 
service for young people 

Corporate Risk 

CR13 Failure to deliver the transformation programme Corporate Risk 

CR14 Continuity of Public Health arrangements and evolution 
of outbreak management plan 

Corporate Risk 

CR15 Effective people strategy Corporate Risk 

CR16 Blank record  

CR17 Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer 
arrangements are not managed 

Corporate Risk 

CR18 Failure in customer interface Corporate Risk 

CR19 Failure to determine planning applications within 

statutory timescales, or within agreed extensions of 
time (EOT) 

Corporate Risk 

CR20 Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the 
climate emergency declaration 

Corporate Risk 

CR21 Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP 
Council & increase in service requirements 

Corporate Risk 

CR22 Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand Corporate Risk 

 

 

 

37



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

July 2022 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE Q1 – 2022/23 

 

1.1 Mitigation actions and significant changes this quarter are detailed below. 

1.2 The table below is a key to arrow directions in relation to individual risk scoring. 

 

 

 

RISK DIRECTION OF TRAVEL STATUS  

 Risk impact or likelihood has increased since last review. 

 Risk impact or likelihood has decreased since last review. 

 There is no change to the risk impact or likelihood 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 

Risk CR2 – Failure to deliver effective safeguarding arrangements for children  - CHILDREN & 
COMMUNITIES  

Risk Owner – Chief Executive 
 

Risk Information 
 

Corporate Context 

Safeguarding is the responsibility of all members and officers, and this is reflected in the Corporate 
Safeguarding Strategy which was agreed by Cabinet in September 2019.    

 

All relevant partners have worked across Children’s and Adults’ Safeguarding and Community Safety 
Partnerships to establish effective governance arrangements post Local Government Review which meet all 
required statutory requirements. As a relatively new Council covering a population of almost 400,000, BCP 
Council must ensure that it is working with all partners in the most effective way to identify, assess and 
respond to safeguarding and community safety issues, particularly those which cut across children’s, adults ’ 
and community safety.    
  
Children’s Services 

The pan-Dorset Safeguarding Partnership is now working, and a BCP delivery arm is in place to link the 

safeguarding partnership closer to the BCP operational safeguarding service.  

• BCP had a SEND inspection in June 2021 which identified significant gaps in services which are being 
addressed through Written Statement of Action (WSoA)  

• BCP had an Ofsted ILACS inspection Dec 2021 and was rated inadequate  
• Audits continue to review practice. There is still some way to go before sufficient assurance can be given 

to remove this risk from the corporate overview. 
 

Communities 

Key consideration for the Communities directorate in discharging the range of duties provided across a 
range of services, community safety and domestic abuse in particular.  
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 
Children’s Services 

 Focus on the Children’s Services improvement journey and WSoA plan to ensure core services are 
safer for vulnerable children and young people  

 The strongest mitigation is to have an effective front-door service which can respond in an agile and 
flexible way to unforeseen demands and changes in the pattern of safeguarding demands. The 
service is struggling to maintain an adequate level of service due to a rise in demand for 
assessments and considerable staffing difficulties 

 There is an Improvement Board which is chaired by a Department for Education (DfE) Adviser and 
the Board holds service, council and partners accountable for the delivery of the improvement plan.  
 

Communities 

 Safeguarding processes in place - working in partnership across the council and other key agencies, 
particularly in regard to risks presented in high risk domestic abuse cases.  

 All relevant staff are trained, and referral processes are clear.  

 The refreshed BCP Community Safety Partnership Board have five strategic groups: 
o Domestic Abuse Strategic Group 

o Violence Reduction Strategic Group 
o Vulnerable Adult & Child Exploitation Group 

Appendix 1 

39



o Safer Communities Strategic Group 
o Reducing Harm from Substance Misuse Strategic Group 

 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

 The relevant actions for this risk are set out in the Children’s Services Improvement 
Plan.  Progress on delivery of the action is reported to a robustly functioning 
Improvement Board  

 Domestic Abuse Strategy approved and being implemented. Community Safety 
Partnership refreshed and working well with             clearly defined structure leads and 
governance. 
 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
March 2024 

Quarter Update 

 
The council have had a monitoring visit to Front Door service by Ofsted and they have commented on 
progress in the right direction. Hampshire County Council has been confirmed as the Sector Lead Partner 
commissioned by the DfE to support children’s social care. 
 
Written Statement of Action (WSOA) - Bedford has agreed to be our Sector Lead Partner to support our 
WSOA.  
 
 
Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement during 
Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
4 

 
2 

 
8 

 

 

 

 
                                     

 

  

40



Risk CR4 - Failure to provide adequate IT and cyber security  

 
Risk Owner - Corporate Director Transformation and Resources 
 

Risk Information 
 

This risk continues as a corporate risk and includes the additional considerations of the pandemic including 
the increase in remote working. It is also reflective of the increasing dependency on the IT infrastructure. 
The changes to the external environment that has evolved over the last 12 months with publicly reported 
increases in phishing and an increase in the sophistication of cyber-attacks are relevant to the scoring of this 
risk.  
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• Each legacy Council has a strong infrastructure and work continues to migrate to a single BCP core 
infrastructure 

• Physical premises security 
• Physical data security 
• Encryption 
• Regular scanning 
• Multi layered security approach 
• Active security incident response team 
• Constant review of latest threats and their vectors 
• Regular patching and upgrades 
• Dedicated cyber security officer 
• Monthly review of key metrics 
• Continue to run ‘internal’ Phishing tests and use the data to target training and awareness for staff 
• Forced Multi Factor Authentication introduced in September 2021 
• New Password criteria introduced to ensure complex password use 
• Restrictions on ability to transfer data out of Council applications/datasets to non-secure applications 

when being accessed through personal devices 
 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

 
As we fundamentally redesign and transition the enterprise architecture in 
partnership with our Strategic Implementation Partner (SIP) we will ensure that the 
infrastructure is built to leading edge security standards. 
 
March 2022  
 
While we are seeing an increase in activity, the security measures in place around 
our infrastructure are performing as expected, though we are undertaking increased 
monitoring in some areas to supplement the measures. 
 
Enhanced infrastructure security measures and internal monitoring capabilities are 
now available to us through our new enterprise licensing arrangements with 
Microsoft and these are being implemented and/or reviewed in order to deploy them 
most effectively against the current threat and risk matrix. 

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
1 April 2024 

Quarter Update 

  
No change in the risk. 
 
 
  

41



Risk Scores 

  

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement during 
Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
2 

 
6 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
3 

 
1 

 
3 

 

 

 

 
 

 

  

42



Risk CR9 – Failure to maintain a safe and balanced budget for the delivery of services  

 
Risk Owner – Director of Finance 
 

Risk Information 
 

Council has a legal responsibility to ensure it can balance its budget. As part of this framework, it is not 
permitted to have negative reserves. 
 
The 2022/23 Budget and Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP) covering the period to 31 March 2027 was 
approved by Council on 22 February 2022.  
 
The statutory section 25 report from the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) associated with the budget highlighted 
numerous risks each of significant value. Consequentially the CFO suggested an alternative budget 
configuration which he considered would better support the Council in 2022/23 and future years. By virtue of 
the fact that Councillors are required to consider the advice of the CFO before making their decision the 
assumption is that they duly considered and rejected the recommendations of the CFO.  
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• The position is reviewed on a regular basis by the Leader, Deputy Leader and several key Officers of 
the Council.  

• Quarter Budget Monitoring reports are presented to Cabinet with mitigation strategies and action plans 
developed to correct any identified matters. 

• Regular Medium Financial Plan Update reports are presented to Cabinet. 
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 
 

 

a) Services undertake a refresh of MTFP baseline resources required for each 
service for the 5-year period to 31 March 2028  

b) Quarter 1 2022/23 Budget Monitoring Report 
c) MTFP Update Report 
d) Budget Café 
e) Quarter 2 2022/23 Budget Monitoring Report 
f) MTFP Update Report  

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
End August 2022 

 
September 2022 
October 2022 
November 2022 
December 2022 
December 2022 

Quarter Update 
  
A MTFP Update report to Cabinet in June 2022 provided an update on these key risks. Updates included: 
 

A) The budget for 2023/24 was in part financed by the delivery of a £3.3m assumed surplus in 2022/23. 
The final outturn for the year was higher at £6.8m. The outturn was also achieved without drawing 
down certain resources assumed in the quarter 3 forecast. 
 

B) Government announced on the 4 April 2022 that the flexible use of capital receipts legislation was 
signed off by Government on 31 March 2022. This flexibility is being used to fund the revenue costs 
of our transformation programme. The announcement included a change to the extent to which 
redundancy costs can be charged to transformation. 
 

C) There remains a risk that in drafting this legislation the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities intended to encourage local authorities to dispose of surplus assets not to be inventive 
in the generation of capital receipts. They are in the process of reflecting on the councils’ proposals 
to generate capital receipts from the disposal of beach huts. 
 

D) BCP Council has been invited to take part in the government’s Delivering Better Value in SEND 
programme. There remains no indication that the statutory instruments which allows us to ignore the 
accumulating deficit on our Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) will be extended beyond 31 March 2023. 

43



Unless these regulations are extended the Section 151 Officer, and probably many others nationally, 
is likely to have to issue a section 114 notice for 2023/24 which would result in an immediate and 
severe curtailing of activity to the provision of non-statutory services. 
 

E) Via a separate report on the June Cabinet agenda, Council will be requested in July to agree the 
refinancing of BCP FuturePlaces Ltd and in doing so issuing them with an £8m working capital loan 
facility. 
 

F) Progress on delivering the £8.7m of accumulated annual savings for transformation. As of the 6 May 
2022 £6.3m has either been delivered or identified leaving £2.4m outstanding. 
 

G) Progress on delivering the £5.4m in service-based savings assumed as part of the 2022/23 budget. 
Currently £2.7m has identified at risk of delivery. 

 
The June Cabinet report also referenced that the Council is currently forecasting to have £13.3m of cost of 
living and other service pressures in 2022/23. Via various Cabinet Budget Challenge sessions, the Council 
has developed a mitigation strategy to ensure 2022/23 continues to be balanced. The mitigation strategy 
has been influenced by a better than anticipated outturn for 2021/22 as refenced above. These cost of living 
and other service pressure costings will be kept under constant review due to their volatility and the 
likelihood they could further vary in either direction as the year unfolds. 
 
Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
4 

 
2 

 
8 

 

 

 

 
                                     

 
 
  

44



Risk CR11 – Ability of the council to function and operate efficiently in the delivery of single services 
across the area of BCP 

Risk Owner – Chief Executive 
 

Risk Information 
 

This risk was clarified with the title being reviewed and changed to ensure it captured the relevant detail. 
This risk recognises the complex reorganisation that created the new council from 1 April 2019, the need to 
provide harmonised services across the entire area and the ambitious transformation programme taking 
place with the on-going challenges of a pandemic. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

 Training and development programme 

 Regular liaison between Cabinet and Corporate Management Board (CMB) 

 Mentoring 

 Bedding down period for service re-structures 

 Member’s toolkits 

 Six working groups of officers and members put in place to develop high-level delivery plans for 

the Corporate      Strategy 
 A forward plan for harmonising the council’s major service strategy and policy documents  

 Cabinet’s forward plan has been agreed 

 Agreement of Corporate Strategy, People Strategy, Equalities Policy and Action plan leading to 
delivery plan will give some certainty 

 Corporate Strategy delivery plan actions reviewed by Cabinet and CMB to align with ambitions of the 
Big Plan and to reflect impact of Covid on priorities 

 The Overview and Scrutiny function has an associated skills and knowledge development 
programme in place to support members and ensure effective implementation of the function, which 
was developed in consultation with the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) as the body of excellence 
for scrutiny support to councils.  

 Extensive engagement with the Local Government Association (LGA) to provide support for 
members as required, including making arrangements for mentoring and coaching and the LGA Peer 
Challenge in Nov 2021 

 Regular internal communication 
 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 
 

 Continued monitoring of the harmonisation legacy policy and strategy 
documents 
 

 Complete a Local Government Reorganisation stocktake of progress three 

years in, by April 2022 and consider if this needs to remain in the corporate risk 
register. 

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
31/03/2023 

Quarter Update 

 
Some services are still operating using three different operating systems but these are being reduced as the 
transformation programme gathers pace. The planned implementation of a fully functioning Enterprise 
Resource Platform from April 2023 will underpin the single HR and Finance systems that we need and 
enable the single view of the Council as a whole on which we need to build. 
 
  

45



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement during 
Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
2 

 
2 

 
4 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 

 
New 

 
 

  
 
 

  

46



Risk CR12 – Failure to achieve appropriate outcomes and quality of service for young people 

 
Risk Owner – Corporate Director of Children’s Services 
 

Risk Information 

 
Ofsted inspection of BCP Council’s Children’s Services confirms the safety and quality of services is 

inadequate which indicates significant risk of the service not providing safe or quality services to children, 
young people and their families.  

 
An improvement plan is in place which is being managed and supported by the newly revised Improvement 
Board. Senior Leadership Team in Children’s Services, the Department for Education, Chief Executive and 
Cabinet members are monitoring and enabling progress and keeping accountable officers on task. 
 
The likelihood is that demands on children’s services will increase more than predicted due to post covid 
impact and economic issues taking more families into poverty.  
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

 Develop robust early help services to drive down demand for Children’s Social Care 
 Development of further placements in house and efficient commissioning activities to meet needs  
 Assessments and visiting happens within statutory requirements managed by Quality and 

Performance structures  
 The quality of the casework is audited and supported to increase quality of work  

 Workloads are managed across the directorate to ensure caseload management  
 Improvement plan is managed at pace with partners  
 Workforce recruitment and retention strategy to be in place to build and stabilise the work force 

 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

 Improvement plan in place managed by the Improvement Board  

 The SEND action plan which also has an Improvement Board 

 Intensive work to achieve stronger staff engagement and support 

 Improvement programme supported by Hampshire County Council (rated 
outstanding for children’s services), through the SLIP 

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
There is no target 
date for this risk 
as it is considered 
a continuous 
intrinsic risk 

Quarter Update 

  
The council have had a monitoring visit to Front Door service by Ofsted and they have commented on 
progress in the right direction. Hampshire County Council has been confirmed as the Sector Lead Partner 
commissioned by the DfE to support children’s social care. 
 
Written Statement of Action (WSOA) - Bedford has agreed to be our Sector Lead Partner to support our 
WSOA.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
4 

 
2 

 
8 

 

 

 
 

  

48



Risk CR13 - Failure to deliver the transformation programme  

 
Risk Owner - Corporate Director Transformation and Resources 
 

Risk Information 
 

The future efficiency and effectiveness of the Council, our reputation as a service provider and our ability to 
continue to deliver a balanced financial position within the Medium Term Financial Plan horizon are 
fundamentally linked to the delivery of our transformation objectives. Delivering a programme with the 
complexity, scale and pace as set out by the Council will be challenging on a number of levels including: 
Identifying the correct partner(s) to support the delivery of the programme; effectively engaging the 
organisation in the vision of the future; committing to the achievement of challenging benefits realisation 
targets; ensuring the appropriate level of funding to support the resources required to deliver the 
programme. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• Strong design and engagement with key stakeholders to the business case 
 

• Identification of funding sources and the development of a Financial Strategy to support the 
programme 

 

• Strong identification and specification of our requirements while reflecting the 
extremely dynamic        technology/data environment within which we will need to deliver 
the programme 

 

• Robust and effective procurement process to identify and engage the right partner(s) to support 
the Council in the delivery of the programme 

 

• Effective programme management and performance monitoring of the delivery. 
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

 

The programme, its governance architecture and all workstreams have now been 
fully designed and are being implemented. There is very strong coordination of all 
workstreams and effective integration between the Strategic Implementation Partner 
and BCP teams working across the programme. The benefits are being constantly 
reviewed and reinforced across all aspects of the programme. 
 

March 2022 - All workstreams are now live and good progress is being made across 

the whole programme. On the advice of the Corporate Peer Review Team, the 

benefits profile has been reviewed and changes incorporated into the MTFP adopted 

by the Council in February 2022. 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
1 April 2024 

Quarter Update 

Good progress has been made with all key workstreams moving into their “Construct” phase over the next 
quarter.  
 

In respect of the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system we are now embarking on the implementation 

of the new ERP system which completely rewrites both finance and human resources systems and also all 
financial interfaces with all other departmental systems, for March 2023. This will require a training 

programme for all managers and budget holders across the council and require significant steps to move 
away from legacy spreadsheet workarounds that have been implemented. This constitutes a significant risk 

for the council until the new system is implemented and embedded. The base build of the new Customer 
Digital “Front Door” is also underway with the initial stages of service redesign work happening in parallel 

within Housing and Environment. Finally, the implementation of our Master Data Management software and 

the initial build of the Data & Insight technology is also now underway. 
 

49



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
4 

 
1 

 
4 

 

 

 
 

  

50



Risk CR14 – Continuity of Public Health arrangements and evolution of outbreak management plan 

 
Risk Owner – Chief Executive 
 

Risk Information 
 

On 21 February the Prime Minister announced the new Living with COVID strategy. This means that the 

previous approach to testing, contact tracing and breaking chains of transmission due to COVID-19 infection 

is no longer considered necessary. Instead, because of the protection afforded by the vaccination 
programme, universal access to testing ended 1 April along with contact tracing. Support will continue to be 

offered by local public health teams to higher risk settings where outbreaks occur, but this is to be scaled 
back considerably, as part of return to business as usual health protection work. There is no longer a 

requirement for local outbreak management plans. Instead COVID-19 is to be considered like any other 
respiratory virus, with general public health guidance for settings replacing the previous test and trace 

approach. This means that Local Authorities will no longer be responsible for chairing and running the 

COVID-19 Health Protection Board and local outbreak engagement boards. However, we remain ready to 
stand back up should the current situation change.   

Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

 New updated guidance for schools, healthcare and care settings about how to live with COVID-19 
has been produced – overall the aim is to move to treating this infection like any other respiratory 
infection 

 Widespread access to testing has been replaced with general guidance to stay home and not mix 
with people if symptomatic – no requirement to seek a test to confirm 

 Continued vaccination offer for COVID-19 – including further roll outs of booster doses for older, 
vulnerable adults and clinically vulnerable 5-11 year olds 

 Ongoing surveillance nationally via ONS infection survey, supported by genomic analysis of PCR 
testing undertaken in NHS inpatient settings 

 Ongoing provision of lateral flow testing for people providing frontline patient or direct personal care 
to vulnerable groups  

 Health Protection Board and local outbreak management plans now stood down, with COVID-19 now 
dealt with via local health protection network 

 BCP Council continues to hold a contingency budget for outbreak response, should the situation 
change  
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 
 

 Although infections are at a very high level currently, with an increase in hospital 
admissions, the severity of disease is much less than previous waves. Infections are 

forecast to fall over the next 2-3 weeks as the current Omicron BA.2 wave recedes. 
The public health team is continuing to run its day response team for COVID-19 to 

support local high risk settings with risk assessment and changes to the guidance 

announced by Government. We continue to hold a contingency in reserve that can be 
deployed for a step up in outbreak response, should the current situation change e.g. 

with identification of any new variant. Currently although disruption to frontline services 
is considerable, the overall risk in terms of increased mortality and morbidity is 
decreasing and is not considered as serious as previous waves.  

Target Date for 
Action 

 
 

Quarter Update 

 
No change to the above position.   
 
  

51



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
- 

 
- 

 
-  

 
 

 
                                     

 

  

52



Risk CR15 – Effective People Strategy 

 
Risk Owner - Corporate Director Transformation and Resources 
 

Risk Information 
 

The Council's People Strategy was developed and launched during 2019/2020 - immediately prior to the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. A significant amount of the anticipated work within the strategy has been 
impacted by the need to refocus on the support and wellbeing of the workforce during the response to the 
pandemic. As we emerge from the full response phase of the pandemic, focus is now shifting to rechecking 
the key elements of the Strategy against the changed workforce/workplace and the wider transformation 
programme objectives, including a very strong focus on the identification and development of the culture for 
the Council and its translation into a performance management framework for the organisation and its 
people. 
 

March 2022 
With the decision to defer the implementation of the Pay & Reward programme until April 2024, the 
organisation is exposing itself to increased risks with regard to equal pay for longer than had been 
anticipated or planned for. In addition, the decision presents significant difficulties in staff morale with some 
colleagues being asked to tolerate the inequity caused by the situation being extended materially. 
 

In conjunction with the increase in the cost of living, as well as the enhanced mobility around many 
employment models as a result of the Pandemic, the Council is experiencing difficulties in many areas 
(severe in some services) around recruiting and/or retaining experienced staff. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• Strong analysis and reaction to the key themes emerging from the Employee Engagement Survey 
• Clear correlation between the key themes of the People Strategy and the design and 

implementation of the transformation programme 
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

Develop stronger communications capabilities within our management structures 
 

March 2022 - Undertake a review of high risk recruitment/retention issues across the 
organisation and review options for mitigating them, pending the full implementation of 
Pay & Reward 
Undertake a review of high Equal Pay risk across the organisation and review options 
for mitigating them, pending the full implementation of Pay & Reward 
 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
1 April 2024 

Quarter Update 
  

The impact of the deferment of the Pay & Reward programme continues to cause significant pay and morale 
issues for the organisation. Potential alternative approaches and/or solutions are being considered at both 
an organisational and service level but none have been identified that are implementable and/or affordable. 
Notwithstanding this, all other aspects of the People Strategy are continuing to be developed and 
implemented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



Risk Scores 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 

 
 
Target Score 
 

 
2 

 
1 

 
2 

 

 

 
 

  

54



Risk CR17 – Risk to Reputation of Place & Council if summer arrangements are not managed 

 
Risk Owner – Chief Operations Officer 
 

Risk Information 
 

Following the easing of the lockdown last year and the unprecedented numbers of visitors along with 
residents to our parks, open spaces and beaches the Council faced significant strain on its public services 
and a major incident was declared through the Local Resilience Forum (LRF).  
 
The risk for the Council facing spring and summer in 2022 is that BCP is a primary tourist destination that 
has seen ongoing increase in day visitors year on year. With some residual nervousness on international 
travel, economic climate and a large events calendar for summer 2022, visitor numbers are expected to 
increase. Given this context it is likely that the BCP area will face at least as many visitors as last 
year during warm weather, and it is important for the reputation of the Council that our services are stepped 
up to manage the impact of the visitor numbers and ease potential tensions with residents, to generate a 
positive and welcoming experience and establish BCP as a world-class destination, and to minimise 
negative publicity.  There are also related risks that the Council's programme of events and hospitality offer 
provided through Festival Coast Live, and supported events, add to the complexity of what is being 

managed and the specific risks associated with this need to also be managed appropriately. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• Cabinet decided that following the success of seasonal response delivery in 2021 and ongoing predicted 
demand, further support and investment of £1.69m would be given to seasonal response plans for 2022 

• Continuation of the Multi-Agency Command Centre with clear multi-agency plan and associated 
enhanced resources within key services.  

• Weekly forward-looking risk management meetings within BCP senior leadership are in place. 
• Partnership agreements are in place with key partners 
• Established Safety Advisory Group and Licensing Committee to take an overview of relevant events and 

activities.   
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 

 

 Implementation of the investment outlined in the summer response plan 

including recruitment of staff, ongoing analysis and oversight through the Multi-
Agency Command Centre and planning.  

 

 Weekly tactical summer response review to assess risk and agree further 
actions required  

Target Date for 
Action 

 
15 Sept 2022 

Quarter Update 
 

Securing seasonal recruitment is an ongoing challenge for services to deliver the 2022 Seasonal Response 
Plan. Marketplace candidate shortages and increasing marketplace competitor pay is impacting recruitment 
success and may necessitate the need to review and refine planned activities.  
Poor early season weather will only serve to increase latent demand with the risk that when the good 
weather does arrive we will be extremely busy as everyone rushes to enjoy the sun. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during 

Quarter 

Risk 
Strategy 

 
Gross 
Score 
 

 
3 

 
4 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat  
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 

 

 
Target 
Score 
 

 
2 

 
2 

 
4 

 

 

 

 
 

      

       
      
      

 

  

56



 

Risk CR18 – Failure in customer interface 

 
Risk Owner - Corporate Director Transformation and Resources 
 

Risk Information 
 

While full scale transformation of the Council is underway, there is a risk that our current customer 
service capabilities, capacity, systems and processes fail to provide the level of responsiveness 
that our communities and residents expect. This risk is specifically focused on the short-term 

capabilities of the Council. 
 

Full baselining and data monitoring of the corporate customer contact centre is now possible with 

the significant upgrade to the Council’s legacy telephony arrangements haven been undertaken 
during the Covid pandemic. Data is currently being produced and analysed in order to provide the 

basis of identifying and supporting a range of intervention and improvement projects over the 
course of the next three months. 
 

March 2022 
 

Data from November 2021 has now been baselined and shows a c25% increase in the volume of 

telephone contact from before the Pandemic. This clearly demonstrates a faster and more 
significant shift in channel between face to face activity to telephone through (and now beyond) the 
Pandemic than was expected, and while this was manageable during the Pandemic with the 

reallocation of staff from other parts of the organisation, with the return to normal Council 
operations it has resulted in issues within the Corporate Customer Contact Centre. 
 

Specifically, we are seeing enormous demand within the Council Tax and SVPP service areas (the 
initial contact and triaging for which are handled by the Corporate Customer Contact Centre) as a 

result of not just the impact on people of the Pandemic but also the extraordinary demands placed 
on that service by the successive grant initiatives released from central government intended to 
support our residents through the Pandemic and its consequences. 

 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

• Additional funding has been provided to the Customer Contact Centre on a transitional basis 

in the budget adopted by the Council in February 2022. This funding has been provided to 

increase the capacity of the channels (lines) into the Centre as well as additional agency 

staff to support the volume of telephone contact the Council is receiving. 
 

• We are now monitoring performance of all service lines within the Corporate Customer 
Contact Centre and are seeing improvements in all but one area as a result of the 

interventions. 

 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

 

To be defined once analysis is complete. Interventions are likely to include 

significant increase in available resources across all channels in order to 
support improvements in outcomes pending the full transformation 
programme outcomes. 
 

March 2022 - Continue to deploy additional/transitional resources and monitor 

improved performance while continuing the transformation programme activity 

Target Date for 

Action 

 

1 April 2024 

57



to support the design and delivery of a new Digital Front Door for the Council. 

Quarter Update 
  

Performance across most of the Corporate Customer Contact Centre has stabilised and is 
beginning to improve. The exception to this is the Council Tax/SVPP channel which continues to 

experience unprecedented demand as a result of the continued additional demands being placed 
on the service.  

Additional resources approved by Cabinet and Council in February are beginning to come on 
stream though it has not been possible to fill all posts as a result of the extraordinary recruitment 
context being experienced across the Council. 

 
Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 

Level 

Impact 

(I) 

Likeli- 

hood  
(L) 

Risk 

Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 

Matrix 

Movement 

during 
Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 

Gross Score 
 

 

4 

 

3 

 

12 
  

 

 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 
 

 

Target Score 
 

 

2 

 

1 

 

2 

  

 

                                     
  

58



Risk CR19 – Failure to determine planning applications within statutory timescales, or within agreed 
extensions of time (EOT) 

 
Risk Owner – Chief Operations Officer 
 

Risk Information 
 

The risks associated with CR19 relate both to the reputation of the Council and being put into special 

measures by the Government if performance falls below 60% for Major planning applications and 70% for 

non-major planning applications. The Planning Service is presently performing as follows: 

 

Category Government 
Intervention level 

2021/2022 Q4 2021/2022 

Majors 60% 83% 96% 

Minors 70% 79% 83% 

Others 70% 85% 94% 

 
As can be shown from the above statistics, there is no risk of the Council being put into special measures as 
a result of planning applications performance. The performance in the last quarter of 2021/2022 is 
noteworthy and provides a solid platform to continue this level into 2022/2023 and henceforth. It is 
recognised that the above statistics include use of Extensions of Times as per Government guidelines. 
Whilst this is accepted at Government level and can be a pragmatic way of engaging with customers to 
resolve issues, the Council wants to ensure the Planning service performance moves to making decisions 
within the statutory timeframes.  
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

A Planning Improvement Board and Programme has been established. This includes a number of 
workstreams all framed towards providing the best possible planning service in terms of speed and quality of 
outcomes. These workstreams have been instrumental in the upward trajectory of performance and further 
work continues including: 

 Recruitment – new planners are being brought in to add capacity 

 Single Planning System – This is expected to be launched in September  

 Interim structure in place to organise the staff into supported groups with clear lines of control 

 Decisive rules of engagement with customers  

 Use of agency staff to add further capacity to bring the workloads within deliverable tolerance 
 Improved communications with customers 

 New performance management framework introduced to focus on outputs  

 New streamlined Section 106 process to be introduced 

 Full process review to support new system focused on the most efficient ways of working 
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

These measures will continue to be implemented. This will in turn continue to build the 

Council’s reputation in respect of its Planning Service and support wider objectives 

around community and investor confidence, supporting economic growth and the 

sustainable planning of the area. 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
September 2022 

Quarter Update 
  
40% reduction in backlog of planning applications and continued progress within workstreams.  
 

  

59



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
3 

 
4 

 
12 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 

 
Target Score 
 

 
3 2 

 

 
6 

 

 
New 

 
                                     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

60



Risk CR20 – Failure to adequately deliver the ambitions of the climate emergency declaration  

 
Risk Owner – Chief Operations Officer 
 

Risk Information 
 

A detailed risk assessment is being developed and agreed but the information below represents a summary 

of this draft document. 
 

The International Panel on Climate Change's 5th report has robustly concluded that climate change is 

unequivocally real and caused by human activity such as the burning of fossil fuels and destruction of 
habitats releasing greenhouse gases in unprecedented levels and limiting the earth's ability to reabsorb 

them.  
 

The UK Government has committed to achieving ‘net zero’ greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and a 

challenge of this scale will require transformative change to the UK economy. BCP Council has declared a 
climate and ecological emergency committing the Council and Region to decarbonising the economy and 

society by 2030 and 2050 respectively. 
 

There are a number of departments across BCP Council that are central to the response to climate change. 
However, the all-encompassing nature of achieving net zero means that all Council bodies, including 

departments and arm’s-length bodies, have a role to play. In order to be more resilient to the threat posed 

by climate change – in addition to meeting the challenges of achieving net zero – it is vital that all of BCP 
and its organisations effectively manage climate change risks. 

Climate change risks should not be considered in isolation and should be clearly integrated into the strategy 
of an organisation. It is vital for organisations to recognise that the potential impacts of climate change are 

not only to do with the physical effects on people and the environment, but also to do with the effects of the 
transition to a changing climate and the adaptation and mitigation work involved. Similarly, the impacts of 

climate change should not only be considered as long term risks. 

 
  Physical risks: 

 Acute: The physical risks of climate change can affect organisations in different ways. 

Specific weather-related events such as floods will have a significant impact on infrastructure, 
causing damage to buildings and wide-scale disruption to service delivery.  

 Chronic: Meanwhile, the more gradual impact of rising temperatures, such as sea level rise and 

coastal change, will pose risks to certain communities and organisations, and changes in 
temperature and rainfall will place additional pressures on infrastructure. 

 Indirect: As well as direct damage costs, both acute and chronic physical risks can also lead to 
indirect economic and social impacts through supply chain disruptions, subsequent impacts from 
infrastructure damage (for example, lack of transport, communication, manufacturing) or market 
shifts (such as increases in insurance premiums, changes in the need for government support, 
consumer attitudinal and expectation changes). 

  
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

Physical risks mitigations in place: 
 Acute: Some service areas have well established strategies and plans which seek to incorporate 

climate change projections to ensure service and business continuity such as Flood and Coastal 
Erosion Risk Management and Transport. However without quantified local climate change risks, no 
standard way of developing adaptation plans and no centrally agreed risk profile that we need to 
mitigate or adapt to, there is likely to be large variance in the completeness of responses across the 
organisation.  

 Chronic: As strategies and plans are not currently mandated to include climate risk planning there is 
no consistent or regular way of ensuring their completeness or relevance. As such we cannot be 
confident on the severity of the risk we currently face and whether existing emergency management 

61



and resilience forums can scale to the extent of the physical risks of extreme weather events 
predicted by climate change into the future. 

 Indirect: it is currently unknown the extent to which our supply chains, the broader economic 

environment or our local market are vulnerable to climate change. 
 

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 
 

 Quantify/ qualify climate risk through a climate change risk assessment 
across key thematic/ service areas such as Environment, Flood & Coastal 
Risk, Transport, Business, Health, Homes, Buildings 

 Ensure Councillors and Senior Officers are aware of the Climate Risk, 
understand its consequences and are actively engaged in mitigation and 
adaptation planning 

 Integrate risk and vulnerabilities into service plans, Business Continuity 
Plans and Health Plans to identify vulnerable and sensitive receptors 

 Act to reduce exposure, severity and the vulnerabilities of sensitive receptors 
within Services and the Region 

 Ensure Local Resilience Forum understand severity and likelihood of climate 
risks and has plans for all eventualities 

 Enhance our sustainable procurement policy to ensure it incorporates the 
risk of supply chain disruption from climate change 

 Work with Business Community to understand and enhance the resilience of 
the local economy and supply chains feeding it 

 Review existing plans and strategies to ensure consistency with the climate 
declarations, make changes where appropriate and consensus allows  

 Develop a climate policy, and climate strategy that will make explicit the 
transformation required and the impact to other policies, strategies, plans 
and programmes 
 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
Q4 2021-2022 

 
 

Q3 2022 
 

 
Q4 2022 
 
Q4 2022-2030 
 
Q4 2022 
 
Q3 2022 
 
Q2 2022 
 
 
Q4 2022 
 
Q1-Q3 2022 

Quarter Update 
 

BCP Council has declared a climate and ecological emergency committing the Council and Region to 
decarbonising the economy and society by 2030 and 2050 respectively. To achieve these targets a 
sustained long-term programme of investment, resourcing, projects and partnership working is required if 
the Council is to meet the targets as set out. An annual Council report is produced to report on the work the 
Council has undertaken throughout the calendar year. 
 
To date in Quarter 1 the following activities are underway: 

 Launched the Green Futures Fund 

 Cabinet paper drafted on next steps for Biodiversity Net Gain implementation for BCP  
 Bid application made to DEFRA’s Landscape Recovery Fund 

 Energy partnership 

 Water filling stations introduced across the seafront to reduce single use plastics 

 Orders placed for further electric vehicles as per the adopted Council Sustainable Fleet Strategy 

 SALIX funded energy saving schemes delivery nearing completion 

 Partnership Nature Recovery Scheme pilots across 9 parks underway 

 Consultant appointed to bring forward a BCP Tree Strategy 
 Green Infrastructure Strategy on forward plan for Cabinet consideration on 7 September 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

62



Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 
 

 
Target Score 
 

 
2 

 
4 

 
8 

 

 
 

                                     
  

63



Risk CR21 – Impact of global events causing pressure on BCP Council & increase in service 
requirements  

Risk Owner – Chief Operations Officer 
 

Risk Information 
 

The war in Ukraine has led to a government policy for settling refugees in the UK. A significant and 
uncapped number of Ukrainians will be moving into the BCP area at pace - an urgent multi-agency response 
is required to support this which will have short, medium and long term resource implications on local 
services. 
 

Risks include arrivals unsupported, safeguarding risks not mitigated, inappropriate housing placements 
enabled, resulting impact on services not realised, reputational risk of not implementing what is required, 
unbudgeted strain on services. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

 Multi-agency partnership working and governance framework in place, communication channels in 
place e.g. briefings, webpages, dedicated staff team established, links with government agencies. 

 
Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 

Swift implementation underway of guidance for immediate arrivals, establishment of 
ongoing wrap around support, continued communication with partners and 
community required.  
 

Consider seconding additional staff if required.  Complete recruitment to dedicated 
refugee posts to ensure ongoing and consistent resourcing 

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
31 March 2023 

Quarter Update 
  

As at July 2022, approximately 150 families have arrived in the BCP area through the Homes for Ukraine 
scheme and numbers are gradually increasing.  Plans are in place to use the funding tariffs to establish a 
more settled staff team to support the families with what is necessary.  The scheme is due to be extended to 
now include unaccompanied minors, again with a tariff attached.  Safeguarding and homelessness being 
mitigated as much as possible.  Operating within budget currently. 
 
Nationally, the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) is leading an assessment 

of long term housing options and their impact on local housing markets. Surveys of hosts have shown a lack 
of long-term capacity which will need to be addressed through local housing solutions for the next 1-2 years. 
This will put increased pressure on our ability to re-house local families. 

Risk Scores 

 
Assessment 

Level 
Impact 

(I) 
Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 
Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 
Net Score 
 

 
3 

 
2 

 
6 

 

 
 

 
Target Score 
 

 
3 

 
1 

 
3 

 

 
 

                            

64



Risk CR22 – Failure of local care market to meet increasing demand 

 
Risk Owner – Chief Executive 
 

Risk Information 
 

Adult Social Care 
 
Despite additional care capacity it is challenging to identify sufficient care resource to meet the escalating 
demand for hospital discharge and the capacity shortfall in the care sector is further exacerbated by the 
increased needs of individuals leaving hospital.  
 
There is a lack of workforce capacity within the local care market, and this is also a national issue. This is 
exacerbated by Covid, staff seeking alternative employment and recruitment difficulties.  
 
The lack of market capacity impacts: hospital discharge, drives up the cost of care placements and limits 
choice for individuals. 
 
Key Mitigations & Actions 
 

 Contract Monitoring and the Service Improvement Team provide personalised support to providers 
and provides an early insight to any escalating challenges which specific providers may be facing 

 Additional capacity added through rapid response and block contract purchasing during the 
pandemic 

 Care home strategy and extra care housing strategies have been developed 

 Staff tasks re-prioritised to ensure speedy completion of covid checklists for care home suspensions 

 Recruitment campaigns are operational and targeted at domiciliary care across multi-media 
platforms, including social media, radio and editorial promotions under the ‘Proud to Care’ banner 

 Free childcare for BCP framework domiciliary care providers is available in school holidays 

 Free parking permits for BCP framework providers have been issued for use in difficult parking areas 
across the BCP Council area and free bike hire is available to care staff as an alternative to driving  

Near Future Key Actions (next 3-6 months) 
 
 

 Undertake market sustainability review 

 Undertake cost of care reviews to determine fair price for care locally 

 Recruitment initiatives, including recruitment from abroad and the ICS 
scholarship programme 

 Voluntary sector proposals are in development with the Community Action 
Network to have a Hospital Hub and deploy volunteers on the wards.  This will 
support simple discharges where complex care packages are not required 

 

Target Date for 
Action 

 
Sept 2022 

Quarter Update 

 
At this stage the risk score remains the same. Many of the actions listed above are underway or in the 
process of mobilizing and will start to have an impact later in the year but it is too early to say that they have 
had a material impact at this stage. Progress on the key actions is listed below. 
 
Cost of care and market sustainability review: 
 

Market engagement is underway, supported by valuing care. This work will inform the sustainability plan 
which needs to be submitted in October to the Department of Health and Social Care in order to secure 
additional funding for any in-year uplift to framework rates which will help to secure care within the market. 
However, the sustainability plan will need to be affordable given the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan 
position. Work is also continuing to review both of our frameworks with the aim to have new frameworks fully 
in place for next April. 

65



  
Recruitment: 
 

Commissioners continue to actively pursue opportunities to support the market including with overseas 
recruitment using system funding (s256). We will also shortly be launching a new Proud to Care campaign to 
help encourage new entrants into the care market. Commissioners are working with colleagues in corporate 
communications on this campaign which will continue throughout the rest of the calendar year. 
 
There is also a programme of targeted in-house recruitment particularly around professionally trained and 
skilled experienced staff in social work and occupational therapy. To do this we are working with HR and 
marketing. We are also taking full advantage of the apprenticeships available to us in occupational therapy 
and social work but it will take time for the first cohort to come into practice, however the plan is then to do 
this on an annual rolling basis which will provide a steady flow of new recruits.  
 
Voluntary sector proposals: 
The Community Action Network or (CAN) is still in the mobilisation phase with active recruitment of 
volunteers now underway. The CAN will use volunteers to help patients home who need a ‘settling in 
period’. This should reduce overall need for domiciliary care.  
 
Risk Scores 

 

Assessment 
Level 

Impact 
(I) 

Likeli- 
hood  
(L) 

Risk 
Score 
(IxL) 

Risk 

Matrix 

Movement 
during Quarter 

Risk Strategy 

 
Gross Score 

 

 
4 

 
4 

 
16 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Treat 
 

Net Score 
 

 
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 

 
 

 
Target Score 

 

 
3 

 
3 

 
9 

 

 
 

 
                                     

 

 

66



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report details progress made on delivery of the 2022/23 

Audit  Plan for the period April to June (inclusive) 2022. The 
report highlights that: 

 Five audit assignments have been completed, of which there 
were four ‘Reasonable’ and one ‘Partial’ audit opinions; 

 Seventeen audit assignments are in progress; 
 Implementation of audit recommendations is satisfactory and 

none have required escalation to Audit & Governance 
Committee; 

A significant amount of work undertaken during the quarter related 
to completion of the 2021/22 Audit Plan. The ‘Chief Auditor’s 
Annual Report 2021/22’ contains the outcome of this work which is 
being reported separately to this Committee. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that: 

 Audit & Governance Committee note progress made and 
issues arising on the delivery of the 2022/23 Internal Audit 
Plan. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To communicate progress on the delivery of the 2022/23 Internal 
Audit Plan. 

To ensure Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of the 
significant issues arising from the work of Internal Audit during the 
quarter. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

01202 128784 
 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide 

Classification  For Decision and Information 
Ti t l e:   

67

Agenda Item 10

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Background 

 
1. This report details Internal Audit’s progress against the 2022/23 Audit Plan for the 

period  April 2022 to June 2022 inclusive and reports the audit opinion of the 

assignments completed during this period. 

 
2. The report also provides an update on any significant issues arising and 

implementation of internal audit recommendations by management. 

 

3. Some audit fieldwork has ‘straddled’ both the 2021/22 and 2022/23 Audit Plan years, 

in other words work began in March and was completed in quarter 1, these audits are 

shown with the following description ‘2021/22/23’  

Delivery of the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan – Quarter 1 review 

 
4. Five audit assignments have been fully completed in this quarter of 2022/23 

(Apr-Jun 22) as outlined below. 
 

2022/23 Audits Completed 

  
Service Area 

 
Audit 

Assurance 
Opinion 

Recommendations 

High Med Low 

1 Finance 
Council Tax (2021/22/23 
audit) 

Reasonable 0 1 3 

2 Finance NDR (2021/22/23 audit) Reasonable 0 0 1 

3 Finance 
Debtors (2021/22/23 
audit)* 

Partial (Radius 
system only) 1 3 0 

4 Destination & 
Culture 

Programme & Project 

Management (2021/22/23 
audit) 

Reasonable 0 5 7 

5 Finance Social Care Financial 
Assessments 
(2021/22/23 audit) 

Reasonable 0 2 0 

Total Recommendations 1 11 11 
     *This audit is subject to f inal agreement w ith management 

Key: 

 Substantial Assurance - There is a sound control framework which is designed to 
achieve the service objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.

 Reasonable Assurance - Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, 
there are some weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.

 Partial Assurance -There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting 

service objectives at risk.

 Minimal Assurance - The control framework is generally poor and as such service 
objectives are at significant risk.

 

5. There was one ‘Partial’ assurance audit report issued during the quarter: 

Finance – Debtors  

Four recommendations (1 high, 3 medium) were made in this Audit Report which was  

given a ‘Partial Assurance’ audit opinion. The following issues  were found: 

 A significant amount of outstanding council debt was raised prior to 2020. The 
amount of this debt held on the Radius system is proportionally much higher than 
that held on the Academy system, suggesting less effective recovery processes 
(High Priority) 

68



 The ongoing use of legacy debt management systems and processes are not 
subject to council-wide monitoring or performance management to address areas of 

ineffective debt recovery (Medium Priority) 

 The ongoing use of legacy debt management systems results in services receiving 

more than one monthly debt reports at different times and in inconsistent formats. 

In addition, debt reports for different legacy areas are sent to different staff in these 
services, undermining management and monitoring processes (Medium Priority) 

 The Radius system in use for some Bournemouth locality debt management does 
not have embedded separation of duties for any aspect of creation, amendment or 
closure of debtor records (Medium Priority) 

 

Recommendations to address the issues have all been agreed with management and 
target dates have been set to ensure implementation. 

 
6. There were no ‘Minimal’ assurance audit reports issued during the quarter. The 

status of other audits in progress (Apr-Jun 2022) is outlined below: 

 
2022/23 Audits In Progress 

 Service Area Audit Progress 

1 Development Smart Places (2021/22/23 audit) Draft Report 

2 Children’s Services St Edwards School Draft Report 

3 Education SEND (2021/22/23 audit) Draft Report 

4 Finance Creditors Draft Report 

5 Finance Payroll Fieldwork 

6 Finance  Treasury Management Fieldwork 

7 
Finance 

Anti-Money Laundering Requirements 
(Counter Fraud) 

Fieldwork 

8 
Various  Identity Fraud (Counter Fraud) Fieldwork 

9 Housing  Trade Card Accounts Fieldwork 

10 Children’s Services Purchasing Cards Fieldwork 

11 Education Alternative Provision Fieldwork 

12 Planning KAF’s Overview Fieldwork 

13 
Adult Social Care 

Social work Standard of Practice 
and Professional Leadership 

Scoping 

14 Children’s Services Financial Management (KAF) Scoping 

15 Communities Safeguarding Scoping 

16 Finance Housing Benefits Scoping 

17 Various Grant Award (Counter Fraud) Scoping 
 

2022/23 Audits Planned for Quarter 2 
(July-Sept 22) - Provisional 

 Service Area Audit 

1 Adult Social Care Financial Management (KAF) 

2 Adult Social Care Brokerage & Procurement 

69



3 
Transport & 
Engineering 

SEND Passenger Transport 

4 Destination & Culture Seafront Cash Checks 

5 Destination & Culture 
Climate and Ecological Action and Sustainable Environment 
(core KAF) 

6 IT & IS 
IT Infrastructure & Hardware Procurement & Asset 
Management 

7 
Customer & Business 
Delivery 

Customer Service (Reorganisation of Services) 

8 
Customer & Business 
Delivery 

Business Continuity (KAF) 

9 Finance  Insurance 

10 Finance  Business Continuity (Core KAF) 

11 Finance Business Continuity (Service KAF) 

12 Development Economic Development Strategy Review 

13 Policy & Research Business Planning & Performance (core KAF) 

14 PMO & Major Change Project & Programme Management 

15 Finance Housing Benefit 

 

2022/23 Audit Plan Changes 

 Service Area Audit Comment/rationale 

1 
Children’s 
Services 

Hillbourne School 
Audit removed from plan as school has 

converted to an academy  

 
Significant Issues Arising and Other Work 

7. A significant amount of work undertaken during the quarter related to completion of 

the 2021/22 Audit Plan. The ‘Chief Auditor’s Annual Report 2021/22’ contains the 

outcome of this work which is being reported separately to this committee. 

 

8. Work has been carried out on the compilation of the Council's Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS) for 2021/22, which is being presented separately to this committee 

meeting (and which will feature within the Council’s Statement of Accounts). 

 
9. Internal Audit have carried out work to provide assurance on compliance with the 

Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality Policy, specifically the necessary 

completion of Form 2’s by Tier 4 and above officers. This is being reported separately 

to the Audit & Governance Committee at this same meeting under the ‘Annual Review 

of Register of Declarations of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality by Officers Report 

2021/22’ report. 

 

10. Regarding Internal Audit team resourcing arrangements, following a minor restructure 

and the internal promotion of an Auditor to a more senior level, temporary cover to 

assist with the completion of the 2022/23 Audit Plan is being sought via the Council’s 

corporate agency contract. This is likely to result in a slightly lower level of overall audit 

days available within the Plan (due to the additional cost of temporary staff) however 

this is not expected to impact significantly on the ability of the Chief Internal Auditor to 

provide the annual overall opinion on the internal control environment. 

 

70



11. CIPFA have recently produced the report ‘Internal Audit untapped potential’ as they 

believe internal audit has a vital role to play in supporting public service organisations 

to achieve their goals.  

 

Work is currently being undertaken to review the findings of this report. The intention is  

to bring, to a future Audit & Governance Committee meeting, a series of questions that 

may need to be posed and options that may or may not, depending on their nature, 

potentially require additional funding to maximise the impact of Internal Audit to the 

Council. 

Recommendations Implementation 

12. The 2022/23 Audit Charter requires all High Priority recommendations that have not 

been implemented by the agreed target date to be reported/escalated to the Audit & 

Governance Committee. All High Priority recommendations followed up during the 

period (in line with the agreed action plan) were found to have been satisfactorily 

implemented by management and therefore none are required to be escalated to 

Audit & Governance Committee for non-implementation. 

 
13. The 2022/23 Audit Charter requires any management proposed revisions to the 

implementation dates of Medium Priority recommendations to be agreed by the Chief 

Internal Auditor. The Chief Internal Auditor is required to report to Audit & 

Governance Committee any such requests considered unreasonable and for the 

service to provide an explanation. There are no such instances this quarter.  

 

14. A new Microsoft technology application has been used to develop real time 

management information on recommendation status for both clients and other 

stakeholders. The first of these real time information reports is being trialled with one 

service directorate before being rolled out to all other directorates. This will enable 

senior management to be aware of all recommendations that require action within 

their directorate with the aim to improve efficiency, implementation times and control 

improvements.  

 
Options Appraisal 

15. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 
 

Summary of financial implications 

16. The BCP Internal Audit Team budgeted cost for 2022/23 is £717,100 (subject to any 

final pay awards) which is inclusive of all direct costs including supplies & services but 

does not include the apportionment of  central support costs (which are budgeted in 

aggregate and apportioned to services as a  separate exercise). The budget cost 

above is inclusive of the Head of Audit & Management Assurance who manages other 

teams. 

 

17. The Internal Audit Team is currently managing the vacancy of an Auditor post 

following a minor service restructure and internal promotion through temporary cover 

arrangements. There will be no detriment to the delivery of the annual audit plan/CIA 

opinion. 
 

Summary of legal implications 

18. This report gives an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk, control, 

and governance systems in place. 
 

71



Summary of human resources implications 

19. The BCP Internal Audit Team consists of 13.53 FTE for the 2022/23 financial year 

however this is currently subject to a small variance due a minor service restructure. 

Temporary cover to assist with the completion of the 2022/23 Audit Plan is being 

sought via the Council’s corporate agency contract pending any further changes. 
 

Summary of sustainability impact 

20. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report. 
 

Summary of public health implications 

21. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 
 

Summary of equality implications 

22. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 
 

Summary of risk assessment 

23. The risk implications are set out in the content of this report. 
 

Background papers 

None 
 

Appendices 
 

None 

72



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  External Audit – Progress Update 2020/21 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  Grant Thornton, as the Council’s appointed External Auditors, have 
produced a report (Appendix A) which provides an update to Audit 
& Governance Committee on their progress to date in delivering 
their responsibilities. 
 
The report states that, as previously reported, a number of matters 
had arisen that delayed completion of their 2020/21 opinion audit. 
Work has now been substantially completed however there are two 
key areas that have impacted on the revised completion timetable 
of the end of February 2022 covering pension liabilities assurance 
from the Pension Fund auditor and national infrastructure 
accounting issues. 
 
Grant Thornton intends to keep Audit & Governance Committee 
appraised of progress towards completion of the audit. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Audit & Governance Committee notes the External Auditor’s 

progress to date in delivering their responsibilities 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To update Audit & Governance Committee on the External 
Auditor’s progress to date in delivering their responsibilities. 

  

73

Agenda Item 11



Portfolio Holder(s):  Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Matthew Filmer, Assistant Chief Financial Officer 

matthew.filmer@bcpcouncil.gov.uk   

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. During 2017, Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) awarded contracts for 
audit for a five-year period beginning on 1 April 2018. This year is the third year of 
that contract, Grant Thornton are the appointed External Auditors for 
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council. 

2. Grant Thornton, as the Council’s External Auditors, have a responsibility to 
provide regular updates to those charged with governance (Audit & Governance 
Committee) on progress made in delivering their responsibilities. 

External Audit Progress Report 

3. Appendix A to this report details the progress made by Grant Thornton in 
delivering their responsibilities as external auditors.  

Options Appraisal 

4. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

5. The proposed 2020/21 BCP Council Audit fee is £200,500 with an additional 
£37,000 for the Audit of subsidiary charities (total value £237,500). 

Summary of legal implications 

6. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Summary of human resources implications 

7. There are no direct human resources implications from this report 

Summary of sustainability impact 

8. There are no sustainability impact implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

9. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

74

mailto:matthew.filmer@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Summary of equality implications 

10. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

11. There are no direct risk implications from this information report. 

Background papers 

None  

Appendices   

Appendix A – Grant Thornton – BCP Audit Progress Report  

75



This page is intentionally left blank

76



77



Commercial in confidence

78



Commercial in confidence

•

•79



Commercial in confidence

•

•

80



Commercial in confidence

81



Commercial in confidence

82



Commercial in confidence

83



Commercial in confidence

84



Commercial in confidence

85



Commercial in confidence

86



Commercial in confidence





87



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•88



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•
•

89



Commercial in confidence

90



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

91



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

92



93



T
his page is intentionally left blank

94



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality 
by Officers 2021/22 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  An annual review and update of the Council’s Declaration of 
Interests, Gifts & Hospitality Policy took place in March 2022. 

The recommendations arising from the Internal Audit review on 

compliance with the Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality 

Policy last year have all been implemented.  

There have been no internal or external identified instances, 
whistleblowing or reports by any other means where an undeclared 
interest by officers has led to any disciplinary action or led to 
reputational damage.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Audit & Governance Committee note the annual review of  
Register of Declarations of Outside Interests and Receipts of 
Gifts & Hospitality by Officers (2021/22). 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To provide Audit & Governance Committee with assurance on the 
adequacy and robustness of the Council’s arrangements for the 
declaration of interests, gifts and hospitality by officers. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

01202 128784 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. A new BCP Council Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy (for officers) 
was introduced on 1 April 2020 and has thereafter been subject to annual 
evolutionary changes. Officers are responsible for maintaining their declarations in 
as near to real-time as is practical, in other words officers will not be waiting to make 
declarations on an annual basis. 

95

Agenda Item 12

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


2. The purpose of the Policy is to protect the Council and employees against conflicts 
of interest and allegations of impropriety. The public must be confident that 
decisions made by employees of whatever nature are made in the interests of BCP 
Council and the community it serves and are not influenced inappropriately by the 
interests of individual employees, their relatives or friends. 

3. This report aims to provide Audit & Governance Committee with assurance on the 
adequacy and robustness of the Councils arrangements for the declaration of 
interests, gifts and hospitality by officers. 

Annual Review of BCP Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy  

4. An annual review of the Council’s Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality Policy 
took place in March 2022 and the revised policy was approved by Audit & 
Governance Committee (17 March 2022). 

5. Several changes were made to the policy including: 

 clarifying the need for officers to comply with the policy when ‘local 
arrangements’ may exist, 

 clarifying officer responsibilities under the policy,  

 providing further guidance/clarification on gifts, 
 making declaration forms clearer on how the approving manager has made 

their decision about any declarations and the need, or not, for any measures 
to manage actual or perceived conflicts, and  

 including a ‘frequently asked questions’ section in the policy. 
 

6. A corporate communication on the updated Declaration of Interests, Gifts and 
Hospitality Policy (along with other Finance Policies) was issued to all staff 
(including senior managers) in May 2022.  

7. A new ‘landing page’ was created for the policy on the BCP Intranet which provides 
an overview of the key policy requirements including how to make a declaration, 
when to declare an interest and the process to follow regarding gifts and hospitality.  

8. As in previous years, the requirement for all staff to complete mandatory training 
during the year (in particular the Fraud Awareness module) will further improve 
Policy awareness. 

Internal Audit Report on Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality, and 
other work 

9. An Internal Audit review was carried out last year (May 2021) on arrangements in 
place to ensure adequate staff awareness of the Declaration of Interests, Gifts & 
Hospitality Policy and declarations were being made, as necessary.  

10. The audit review resulted in a ‘Reasonable’ assurance opinion and 5 
recommendations being made (4 medium priority and 1 low priority). All 
recommendations have now been addressed. 

11. Internal Audit carried out a review of data matching results provided by the National 
Fraud Initiative on BCP employees matched to Companies House directors (which 
also included payments made to those companies). Some employees were 
reminded of the need to declare such interests under the Council’s Policy.  

12. Through work carried out by Internal Audit recently on the Policy required 
completion of Form 2’s by all Tier 4 and above officers (which did require chasing of 
some forms) it was established that 97 out of 100 (97%) senior officers had 
completed and returned these forms to the Monitoring Officer. The three outstanding 
forms relate to newly appointed permanent officers in Children’s Services and 
further work is being undertaken to ensure these are submitted to the Monitoring 
Officer in line with the Policy.  

96



Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy Enforcement and Sanctions 

13. Employees must comply with the requirements of the Policy and any failure to do so 
is a disciplinary matter, and disciplinary action may be taken regardless of whether 
the actions amount to a criminal offence. 

14. During the 2021/22 financial year there have been no internal or external identified 
instances, whistleblowing or reports by any other means where an undeclared 
interest has led to any disciplinary action or led to reputational damage.  

Options Appraisal 

15. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of Financial Implications 

16. There are no direct financial implications from this report. 

Summary of Legal Implications 

17. The Bribery Act 2010 makes it an offence for an employee to give advantage to 
someone in return for favours in relation to the Council’s business. 

18. Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that employees notify the 
authority in writing of any direct or indirect financial interests which they have in any 
Council contracts, or proposed contracts, of which they become aware. Breach of 
Section 117 is a criminal offence subject to a fine. 

Summary of Human Resource Implications 

19. There are no direct environmental implications from this report. 

Summary of Environmental Impact 

20.  There are no direct environmental implications from this report. 

Summary of Public Health Implications 

21.  There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of Equality Implications 

22.  There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of Risk Assessment 

23.  There are no direct risk management implications from this report. 

Background Papers 

None 

Appendices 

None 

 

BCP Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality (for officers) - Internal access link   

 

97

https://bcpcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/Finance/SitePages/Declaration-of.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank

98



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and 
Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report 2021/22 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  Following an annual review process, the previous Regulation of 
Investigatory Power Act (RIPA) Policy was strengthened and 
includes provision for acquiring communications data and is now 
titled the BCP Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and 
Investigatory Powers Act (IPA) Policy. 

All observations arising from the inspection by the Investigatory 

Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) on the use of investigatory 

powers have been addressed.  

The Council has not made use of powers under RIPA or IPA during 
the 2021/22 financial year.  

The Council has completed and sent its’ statutory nil-return for the 
2021 calendar year to the IPCO.  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 Audit & Governance Committee note that the Council has not 
made use of powers under the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act or the Investigatory Powers Act during the 2021/22 
financial year. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure transparency in respect of the Council’s use of its 
powers under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and the  
Investigatory Powers Act. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive   

Report Authors Nigel Stannard  

Head of Audit & Management Assurance  

01202 128784  

 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Susan Zeiss 

Monitoring Officer, Law & Governance 

01202 817856  

  susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

99

Agenda Item 13

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) was enacted in 2000 to regulate the 

manner in which certain public bodies may conduct surveillance and access a person's 

electronic communications and to ensure that the relevant investigatory powers are used 

in accordance with human rights. The provisions of the Act include: 

 the interception of communications;  

 the acquisition of communications data (e.g. billing data);  

 intrusive surveillance (on residential premises/in private vehicles);  

 covert surveillance in the course of specific operations;  

 the use of covert human intelligence sources (agents, informants, undercover 

officers); and  

 access to encrypted data. 

 

2. The Investigatory Powers Act (IPA) is the main legislation governing the access to or 

acquisition of communications data. It does not fully replace all pre-existing RIPA 

requirements but does introduce some important and significant variations to 

authorisation and regulatory oversight in particular. 

 

3. There are various codes of practice, updated periodically, which broadly cover the 

specific bullet points above. These help public authorities assess and understand 

whether, and in what circumstances, it is appropriate to use covert techniques. The 

codes also provide guidance on what procedures need to be followed in each case and 

identifies as a matter of best practice that elected members of an authority should 

review the authority’s use of RIPA and IPA at least once a year. The purpose of this 

annual report is to set out the level and nature of BCP Council’s use of covert 

surveillance under RIPA and acquisition of communications data under IPA. 

BCP RIPA and IPA Policy 

4. Following an annual review process the previous Regulation of Investigatory Power Act 

(RIPA) Policy was strengthened to include provision for acquiring communications data 

and is now more explicitly and accurately titled, Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 

(RIPA) and Investigatory Powers Act (IPA) Policy.   

 

5. The strengthened sections include a statement that the scenario of BCP acquiring 

communications data, using the IPA provisions, is unlikely to be used. However, should 

the need ever arise, the strengthened sections include the process for a Council 

nominated Authorising Officer to give approval for IPA communications data 

access/acquisition and is reflected in the Accessing Communications Data Flowchart 

(Appendix E to the Policy).  

 

6. Some amendments have been made to Appendix B (RIPA Authorisation Process) 

including use of necessary forms and clarification that surveillance can only take place 

until the expiry date is reached. A section has also been added for Policy consultation, 

equalities impact assessment date and document control. 

 

7. The updated policy was approved by the Audit & Governance Committee on 17 March 

2022 and communicated to officers during April/May at various officer meetings and via 

corporate communications. 

Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) Inspection - Recommendations 

Update 

100



8. The Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s Office (IPCO) conducted an inspection on the 

use of investigatory powers by BCP Council in June 2021 to ensure that we were doing 

so lawfully and in line with best practice.  

 

9. The outcome from the inspection contained some helpful observations from the 

Inspector as to how we could further improve policies and procedures, an update on 

which is detailed below: 
 

• The RIPA Policy, while a comprehensive document, could be more ‘user friendly’; the 

presence of a number of flow charts is a useful addition. 

Update: Flowcharts have been amended and updated as part of the annual review 

process and subsequently approved by this Committee on 17 March 2022. 

• The Policy should make it clear that the authorisation period for a juvenile Covert 

Human Information Source (CHIS) differs from that for an adult CHIS. 

Update: RIPA Authorisation Process Flowchart at Appendix B clearly states the shorter 

authorisation period a juvenile CHIS (4 months) vs an adult CHIS (12 months).  

• The Policy could helpfully, and arguably should, cross reference your data 

management policy regarding compliance with the required safeguarding measures for 

the product of surveillance. 

Update: The Central Record of Authorisation was amended to highlight what the product 

of surveillance looks like (e.g. camera recording, with or without sound) what personal 

information will be obtained in what format and where it will be stored and for how long.  

• The BCP RIPA Central Record could be expanded to identify the presence of 

surveillance product and indicate its current review status. 

Update: Changes have been incorporated in the BCP RIPA Central Record.  

10. In summary action has been taken to address all of the observations arising from the 

inspection. 

Use of RIPA/IPA by the Council 

11. The BCP RIPA & IPA Policy states that overall responsibility for the use of RIPA & IPA 

lies with the Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) who is the Director of Law & Governance 

(& Monitoring Officer). The deputy SRO is the Chief Executive.  

 

12. The Regulatory Services Manager, Director of Communities, Chief Executive and 

Corporate Directors are the Council’s Authorising Officers in respect of both RIPA and 

IPA applications which are then subject to judicial approval in the local Magistrates’ 

Court. For internally authorised IPA applications, approval for the acquisition of 

communications data must be granted by the Office for Communications Data 

Authorisations (OCDA) which National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) arrange on behalf of 

the Council. The Head of Audit & Management Assurance is the RIPA Administrator and 

is responsible for maintaining a central register of authorisations applied for. 

 
13. The use of covert surveillance techniques can assist councils in delivering objectives in 

areas such as crime, anti-social behaviour and licensing. As a result of complying with 

RIPA, the Council only invokes these powers as a last resort where overt surveillance is 
not possible.   

 
14. During the 2021/22 financial year, the Council has not made use of powers under RIPA 

or IPA. The Council’s RIPA/IPA Authorising Officers have not approved the use of covert 

surveillance techniques or requests to access communications data in any cases. 

 

101



15. In January of each year all entities able to use RIPA/IPA are required to complete a 

statutory return to the IPCO for the preceding calendar year. The Council completed and 

sent off this return within the required timeframes. 

 
Options Appraisal 

16. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

17. There are no direct financial implications from this report. 

Summary of legal implications 

18. The Council must follow Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and Investigatory 

Powers Act (IPA) requirements should it wish to enact covert surveillance. 

Summary of human resources implications 

19. There are no direct human resource implications from this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

20. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

21. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

22. There are no direct equalities implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

23. There are no direct risk implications from this report. 

Background papers 

None  

Appendices   

None 

102



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Opinion Report 2021/22 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  It is the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor that during the 2021/22 

financial year: 

 arrangements were in place to ensure an adequate and 
effective framework of governance, risk management and 

control (internal control environment) and that where 

weaknesses were identified there was an appropriate action 

plan in place to address them; 

 the systems and internal control arrangements were effective 

and that agreed policies and regulations were complied with; 

 adequate arrangements were in place to deter and detect fraud; 

 there was an appropriate and effective risk management 
framework; 

 managers were aware of the importance of maintaining internal 

controls and accepted recommendations made by Internal Audit 

to improve controls;  

 the Council’s Internal Audit service was effective and compliant 

with all regulations and standards as required of a professional 

internal audit service; and that 

 the arrangements, in respect of the Chief Internal Auditor, were 
consistent with all of the five principles set out in the CIPFA 
publication “The Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public 
Sector Organisations”. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 the Audit & Governance Committee note the Chief Internal 
Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion on the overall adequacy 
of the internal control environment for BCP Council. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion for BCP 
Council provides assurance on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
control environment as required by the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

01202 128784  

  nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

103

Agenda Item 14

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report and Opinion for BCP Council was produced 

in compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS), which 

requires the Head of Audit & Management Assurance, in his role as Chief Internal 

Auditor, to report annually on: 

 the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment; and on 

 conformance by the Internal Audit Section to the PSIAS. 

 

2. The Audit & Governance Committee must consider the Councils’ Chief Internal Auditor’s 

Annual Report and Opinion before its consideration of the Councils’ Annual Governance 

Statement. 

 

3. It should be noted that the title ‘Chief Internal Auditor’ is interchangeable with the terms 

‘Head of Internal Audit’, ‘Chief Audit Executive’ and ‘Head of Audit & Management 

Assurance’ used in this report or in other relevant publications, guidance or standards. 

 

The Chief Internal Auditor’s Consideration & Opinion Summary 

4. The Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report & Opinion 2021/22 for BCP Council is 

provided at Appendix A.  

 

5. In summary it is the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor for BCP Council that: 

 arrangements were in place to ensure an adequate and effective framework of 

governance, risk management and control (internal control environment) and that 

where weaknesses were identified there was an appropriate action plan in place 

to address them; 

 the systems and internal control arrangements were effective and that agreed 

policies and regulations were complied with; 

 adequate arrangements were in place to deter and detect fraud; 

 there was an appropriate and effective risk management framework; 

 managers were aware of the importance of maintaining internal controls and 

accepted recommendations made by Internal Audit to improve controls;  

 the Council’s Internal Audit service was effective and compliant with all 

regulations and standards as required of a professional internal audit service; and 

that 

 the arrangements at the Council in respect of the Chief Internal Auditor were 

consistent with all of the five principles set out in the CIPFA publication “The Role 

of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Sector Organisations”. 

Options Appraisal 

6. An options appraisal is not appropriate for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

7. The total actual net cost, for the 2021/22 financial year, of the Internal Audit section was 

£681,450; compared against the budget of £709,100, this resulted in a net underspend  

of £27,650 which was mainly due to cost savings from exiting from an audit management 

software contract, last quarter staffing vacancies and also extra income from additional 

audit plan coverage. The costs above were inclusive of the Head of Audit & Management 

Assurance who managed several other teams and an Auditor who specialises in 

corporate fraud investigation, detection and prevention. 

104



Summary of legal implications 

8. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2017), which encompass the mandatory 

elements of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional 

Practices Framework (IPPF), require that the Council’s Chief Audit Executive provides 

an annual report and opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control 

environment to those charged with governance of the organisation.  

Summary of human resources implications 

9. There were 13.53 full-time equivalent (FTE) Internal Audit staff members employed 

across the Council during 2021/22 inclusive of the Head of Audit & Management 

Assurance who manages several other teams and an Auditor who specialises in 

corporate fraud prevention, detection and investigation. It is the opinion of the Chief 

Internal Auditor that these resources were sufficient to provide Audit & Governance 

Committee and the Council’s Corporate Management Board with the assurances 

outlined in this report.  

Summary of sustainability impact 

10. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

11. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

12. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

13. The risk implications are set out in the content of this report. 

Background papers 

None  

Appendices  

Appendix A – Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report & Opinion 2021/22 

Including Annexe 1, 2 and 3  

105



         Appendix A 

 

 

 

 

Chief Internal Auditor's Annual Report & Opinion 2021/22 

Introduction 

1 This annual report is produced in compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

2017 (PSIAS). The PSIAS encompasses the mandatory elements of the Chartered Institute of 

Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: 

Definition of Internal Auditing, Code of Ethics, and International Standards for the Professional 

Practice of Internal Auditing. The PSIAS require the Chief Internal Auditor to report annually 

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment; this report covers the 

period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022. 

2 The scope of the Council’s internal control environment that the Chief Internal Auditor is 

required to provide an opinion on is set out in the Council’s Assurance Framework. The 

opinion given by the Chief Internal Auditor assists the Audit & Governance Committee in 

forming their view on the Annual Governance Statement. 

Chief Internal Auditor’s Audit Opinion 2021/22 

3 The establishment of adequate and effective control systems is the responsibility of 

management. Internal Audit reviews were conducted using risk-based scoping, planning and 

sampling methodology; consequently, not every Council activity, transaction or project has 

been reviewed in-year by Internal Audit. It therefore follows that the Chief Internal Auditor is 

unable to provide absolute assurance that the internal control environment is operating 

adequately and effectively. 

4 Based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit during 2021/22, it is the opinion of the Chief 

Internal Auditor that: 

a arrangements were in place to ensure an adequate and effective framework of 
governance, risk management and control (internal control environment) and that 

where weaknesses were identified there was an appropriate action plan in place to 
address them; 

b the systems and internal control arrangements were effective and agreed policies and 
regulations were complied with; 

c adequate arrangements were in place to deter and detect fraud; 

d there was an appropriate and effective risk management framework; 

e managers were aware of the importance of maintaining internal controls and accepted 
recommendations made by Internal Audit to improve controls; 

f the Council’s Internal Audit service was effective and compliant with all regulations and 
standards as required of a professional internal audit service; and that 

g the arrangements in respect of the Chief Internal Auditor were consistent with all of the 

five principles set out in the CIPFA publication “The Role of the Head of Internal Audit in 
Public Sector Organisations”. 

5 This opinion is based on the results of the Internal Audit work undertaken and reported upon 

during 2021/22. While internal control weaknesses and non-compliance with policies were 

identified during Internal Audit reviews, corrective actions have been agreed with 

management. This willingness to respond to and correct issues raised during audit reviews is 

a key aspect in the Chief Internal Auditor giving an ‘unqualified opinion’. 

 

106



Basis of the Chief Internal Auditor’s Opinion – A summary of work undertaken in 2021/22 

Regularity Audit Work 

6 The work of Internal Audit is designed to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the internal control environment. The work carried out in 2021/22 to provide 

the annual opinion was agreed by the Audit & Governance Committee. 

7 The work has taken into account the strategies, objectives and risks of the Council as part of 

the audit planning process.  

8 All Service directorates had some form of audit coverage during 2021/22 and a high 

percentage (86% - 68 out of 79 audits) of the original audit plan was completed. This was 

slightly under the 90% target. Additional time was instead spent on: 

 transformation agenda advice and support including the finance element of the Enterprise 

Resource Planning (ERP) software programme 

 providing grant certification to HM Government for a higher than planned number of grants 

 proactive fraud prevention checks for residual covid19 grants prior to payment to recipients 

 the CIPFA external assessment of the Internal Audit service against the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)  

 the migration from our externally provided audit management system to a new 

arrangement using new Microsoft technology applications saving approximately £15,000 

on an on-going annual basis.  

While the overall opinion will always be a matter of professional judgement for the Chief 

Internal Auditor the amount and type of work and risk-based approach carried out on the audit 

plan was sufficient for this overall Chief Internal Auditor’s opinion to be robustly evidenced. A 

list of all audits completed during 2021/22 is attached at Annexe 1.  

9 Each audit report provides an overall level of assurance on the adequacy of the management 

arrangements to manage the identified risks within the area reviewed. The assurance level 

definitions are as follows: 
 

Assurance Level Definitions 

Substantial There is a sound control framework which is designed to achieve the 
service objectives, with key controls being consistently applied.  

Reasonable Whilst there is basically a sound control framework, there are some 
weaknesses which may put service objectives at risk.  

Partial There are weaknesses in the control framework which are putting 
service objectives at risk.  

Minimal The control framework is generally poor as such service objectives are 
at significant risk.  

10 The list of 68 audits carried out during 2021/22 in Annexe 1 also details the assurance level 

given for each review. In summary, 1 ‘Substantial’, 56 ‘Reasonable’ and 10 ‘Partial’ assurance 

level opinions were given during the year, additionally 1 consultancy review was carried out 

during 2021/22. There were no Minimal assurance opinions given for any of the audits. Whilst 

the ‘Partial’ opinion audits are reported during the quarterly reporting to Audit & Governance 

Committee it is good practice to summarise and state these again in this annual report, they 

were: 

 Audit High Priority recommendations to improve 

controls covering: 

1 Children’s Services – Capital 

Programme 

Children’s Services Capital Programme Strategy and 

Programme and Project Management of Children’s 

Capital Projects. 

107



 Audit High Priority recommendations to improve 

controls covering: 

2 Children’s Services – 

Safeguarding 

Disclosure and Barring Service checks and  

mandatory safeguarding training completion. 

3 Corporate – Safeguarding Disclosure and Barring Service checks and  

mandatory safeguarding training completion. 

4 Customer & Business Delivery 

- Facilities Management 

Follow Up 

Corporate buildings health & safety compliance 

policies/procedures, and oversight roles & 

responsibilities. ‘Statutory minimum’ maintenance 

approach reporting to Corporate Property Group. 

Annual maintenance plan. Roles & responsibilities 

for Service Directorate managed properties. 

5 Development – Asset 

Management (Estate 

Management) 

Asset records, lease and rental information, and 

corporate asset management plan. 

6 Environment – Parks 

Partnerships Governance 

 

Overall management and governance arrangements, 

overarching Green Infrastructure Strategy and 

associated policies and project plans, and legal 

agreements covering occupation of Council land and 

buildings by a third parties. 

7 Housing - Housing Assets 

Health & Safety Compliance 
Records system, asbestos register, asbestos 

information sharing, and water hygiene risk 

assessments. 

8 Law & Governance - Legal 

Case Management System 

Norwell system accessibility and connectivity, and 

safe/secure storage of legal documents. 

9 Planning - Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Management oversight of CIL liability assessments 
and charge collections, and CIL expenditure 
decision-making process/policy. 

10 Finance – Debtors Level of outstanding debt held on the Radius debtor 
management system.  

11 Regularity Audit work undertaken in 2021/22 covered a range of systems in different service 

areas and schools and included an audit of the Council’s fundamental financial systems, 

including Main Accounting, Creditors, Debtors, Housing Rents, Housing Benefits, Treasury 

Management, Social Services Financial Assessments, Council Tax and NDR systems as set 

out in Annexe 2.  

12 The Council’s Assurance Map set out at Annexe 3 has been populated to show Internal Audit 

coverage during 2021/22 over the significant risks facing the Council. 

13 Recommendations were made throughout the year across all service areas and schools and 

action plans detailing management actions to mitigate the risks and control weaknesses 

identified have been agreed in all cases. 

14 For all audits finalised during the period April 2021 to March 2022, a total of 311 

recommendations were made. 100% of these recommendations have been accepted by 

management. The establishment of robust follow-up procedures has provided assurance that 

the implementation of audit recommendations is high; the current position on the 

implementation of high priority recommendations is 87%. The remaining 13% have not 

reached the agreed implementation date deadline. 

15 Outstanding actions in response to all recommendations have been noted; these have been 

subject to pragmatic revisions to previously agreed dates, on a risk basis, mainly to take 

account of service restructures and the Council’s transformation programme. It has therefore 

108



not been necessary to instigate the audit recommendation escalation policy agreed with the 

Audit & Governance Committee. 

16 Auditees score individual areas of the audit process resulting in a combined total client 

satisfaction score (5-Very Good, 4-Good, 3-Satisfactory, 2-Poor, 1-Very Poor). The following  

average auditee satisfaction scores were received during 2021/22  

Audit completed 

within expected 

Timescales 

Adequately 

consulted and 

able to highlight 

concerns/risks 

Helped to 

manage risks, 

improve controls 

and governance 

Report clear, 

concise, well 

presented and 

understandable 

Overall 

4.77 4.68 4.52 4.77 4.69 

17 The overall average score of 4.69, illustrates a high level of satisfaction with the way in which 

audits are conducted.  

Counter Fraud Work 

18 Counter Fraud work was undertaken during 2021/22 to further improve the Council’s 

arrangements for combating fraud & corruption. This work included targeting fraud risk areas 

such as contractor selection & payments, pre-employment checks, blue badges, direct 

payments and serious & organised crime.  

19 Proactive counter fraud work is carried out including obtaining information on frauds that have 

occurred in other local authorities through sources such as the National Anti-Fraud Network 

(NAFN). This information is assessed for risk exposure within our organisation and 

assurances sought that existing controls would prevent the fraud occurring (e.g. bank mandate 

attempted fraud).  

20 Internal Audit have provided specialist investigative resource to support management with 

high risk fraud areas (housing applications/tenancies, right to buy and blue badges). Time was 

also spent on coordinating the Cabinet Office National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching 

exercise. 

21 Assurance work was completed during the year on Covid-19 grants as required by 

government guidance and/or requirements. This work included the use of government 

promoted tools e.g. Spotlight for business trading status and the NFI for bank account 

validation and trading status.  

22 Proportionate investigations were undertaken during the year in response to every identified or 

suspected case of financial irregularity.  

23 The outcomes of this counter fraud work (including concluded investigations and NFI results) 

are incorporated into the Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work and Whistleblowing Referrals 

annual report which will be presented to the October 2022 Audit & Governance Committee 

meeting. 

Risk Management Framework 

24 An annual audit review of the key assurance function Risk Management was carried out and 

resulted in an ‘Reasonable’ audit opinion, demonstrating the adequacy of the risk 

management framework. The Audit & Governance Committee receive, on a quarterly basis, 

an update on the Council’s corporate risk register.  

Governance Work 

25 Internal Audit completed a review of Parks Partnership Governance Arrangements during the 

year and a ‘Partial’ audit opinion was given. Recommendations were made to improve internal 

control and governance arrangements as summarised in paragraph 10 of this report. 

26 An update to the Local Code of Governance is being taken to this Committee meeting as part 

of the Annual Governance Statement report.  
109



27 Progress made against actions arising from the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement has 

been reviewed and presented to the Audit & Governance Committee.  

28 Work has been undertaken to compile the 2021/22 Annual Governance Statement for 

inclusion in the Council’s statement of accounts. As part of the review Corporate and Service 

Directors have evaluated the adequacy and robustness of their management controls via the 

completion of Management Assurance Statements.  

Other Work 

29 Department for Transport (DfT) grant certification work was carried out during the year. The 

grants conditions appeared to have been complied with and returns were successfully sent to 

the DfT. Assurance work was also carried out on the disabled facilities grant. 

30 Support and advice were provided by Internal Audit on the Finance workstream which is 

focused on evolving/transforming the BCP Council Finance function to create a more efficient, 

technology enabled, ‘future fit’ Finance service. 

31 Assurance has also been provided on Aspire (European grant) and Troubled Families 

(government grant) funding.  

32 Internal Audit carried out internal audits of the Charter Trustees of Bournemouth and the 

Charter Trustees of Poole as requested to support their Annual Governance and 

Accountability Returns (AGAR). This was a fee chargeable service.  

33 Assurance on funds allocated to nurseries and pre-schools was also provided during the year. 

Compliance with Professional Standards 

34 Under standard 1310 of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), the Council must 

ensure that it puts in place a quality assurance and improvement programme in respect of 

Internal Audit, which must include both internal and external assessments. An external 

assessment is required to take place within 5 years of the effective date of the PSIAS.  

35 CIPFA completed a validation of our self-assessment against the PSIAS during the summer of 

2021 (external assessment). Their conclusion was that the BCP Internal Audit Team conforms 

with the PSIAS.  

36 Four recommendations and four suggestions were made to further improve arrangements and 

an action plan was put in place to address these issues. All recommendations and 

suggestions have been addressed as reported to Audit & Governance Committee during the 

year. 

37 CIPFA has produced a publication “The Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Sector 

Organisations”. This document demonstrates the Head of Internal Audit’s (HIA) critical role in 

delivering the organisation’s strategic objectives. An annual self-assessment has been carried 

out in respect of the five principles contained in this document, which states that the HIA: 

a should promote good governance, assess the adequacy of governance and management 
of existing risks, and advise on proposed developments; 

b should give an objective and evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk 
management and internal control; 

c must be a senior manager with regular and open engagement across the organisation 
with the Leadership Team and the external auditor; 

d must lead and direct an internal audit service that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and 

e must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced. 

38 In addition to the annual self-assessment, the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) has confirmed, 

through regular 1:1 meetings and a formal annual appraisal, that the Council’s Chief Internal 

Auditor is compliant with all of these five principles. 

110



Conclusion 

39 It is the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor that the Internal Audit Team complies with 

professional standards and has completed sufficient and appropriate work to provide 

assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 

 Appendices 

Annexe 1 2021/22 Audits Completed 

Annexe 2 Key Financial System Audit Opinions  

Annexe 3 Internal Audit Assurance Map 2021/22  

111



Annexe 1: 2021/22 Audits Completed 

 Service Area Audit 
Assurance 

Opinion 

 SERVICE DIRECTORATE AUDITS 

1 Adult Social Care Safeguarding Arrangements Reasonable  

2 Adult Social Care Homecare Payments Reasonable 

3 Adult Social Care Better Care Fund Reasonable 

4 Adult Social Care ICT Mosaic System (Key Assurance Function) Reasonable 

5 Adult Social Care Infection Control Fund (2020/21/22) Reasonable 

6 Adult Social Care & Commissioning Information Governance Reasonable 

7 Public Health Public Health Grant - Retained Portions Reasonable 

8 Children's Social Care Care Leaver Payments Reasonable  

9 Children’s Services  Performance Management Reasonable 

10 Children’s Services  Non-Mosaic CMS Payments Reasonable 

11 Children’s Services  Capital Programme Partial 

12 Children’s Services  Safeguarding Arrangements Partial 

13 Children's Social Care Children’s Residential Services  Reasonable  

14 Destination & Culture Russell Cotes Income Reasonable 

15 Transport & Engineering Project & Programme Management Substantial 

16 Planning  Community Infrastructure Levy (2020/21/22) Partial 

17 Communities Partnerships Reasonable 

18 Environment Parks Partnerships Governance Arrangements Partial 

19 Environment Commercial Waste Reasonable 

20 Housing Housing Assets – Health & Safety Compliance Partial  

21 Housing Housing Partnerships Reasonable 

22 Finance Procurement Cards Reasonable 

23 Finance Financial Management Code Consultancy 

24 Finance Business Planning & Performance Management Reasonable 

25 Development Investments & Commercial Assets Reasonable 

26 Development Discretionary Grants Reasonable 

27 Customer & Business Delivery Blue Badges Renewal Reasonable 

28 IT & IS ICT Network Security & Business Continuity Reasonable  

29 Law & Governance Case Management System Partial 

30 Law & Governance Sham Marriages Reasonable 

31 Law & Governance Plan & Deliver Marriage & Civil Ceremonies Reasonable 

32 Communications, Marketing & Strategy Contracts Register Reasonable 

 KEY ASSURANCE FUNCTION AUDITS 

33 Development Asset Management Partial 

34 Customer & Business Delivery Facilities Management Follow Up Partial 

35 Finance Business Continuity Reasonable 

36 Finance Financial Management Reasonable 

37 Finance Health & Safety (including Fire Safety) Reasonable 

38 HR & Organisational Development Human Resources Policies, Mandatory Training & Recruitment Reasonable 

112



 Service Area Audit 
Assurance 

Opinion 

39 IT & IS ICT Policies Reasonable 

40 Law & Governance Information Governance Reasonable 

41 Finance Procurement Reasonable 

42 Finance Risk Management Reasonable 

43 Policy & Research Partnerships Consultancy 

44 Corporate Corporate Safeguarding Partial 

 KEY FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AUDITS 

45 Finance Housing Benefits  Reasonable 

46 Finance Main Accounting Reasonable 

47 Finance  Creditors Reasonable 

48 Finance Treasury Management Reasonable 

49 Housing  Housing Rents Reasonable 

 SCHOOL AUDITS 

50 Children’s Services  St Katherines Primary  Reasonable 

51 Children’s Services  Christchurch Learning Centre Reasonable 

52 Children’s Services  Somerford Primary Reasonable 

53 Children’s Services  Corpus Christi Primary Reasonable 

54 Children’s Services  St Walburga’s Primary Reasonable 

55 Children’s Services  Poole High Secondary Reasonable 

56 Children’s Services  Winchelsea Special Reasonable 

 COUNTER FRAUD AUDITS 

57 All service areas Contractor Selection & Payments  Reasonable 

58 All service areas Pre-employment Checks Reasonable 

59 Customer & Business Delivery Blue Badges Reasonable 

60 Adult Social Care Direct Payments Reasonable 

61 Finance  Serious & Organised Crime Reasonable 

 

Audits Carried Out Across 2021/22/23 - Completed 

 Service Area Audit Status 

62 Destination & Culture Project & Programme Management 21/22/23 Final report issued – Reasonable 

63 Finance Social Care Financial Assessments Final report issued – Reasonable 

64 Finance Non-Domestic Rates Final report issued - Reasonable 

65 Finance Council Tax Final report issued – Reasonable 

66 Finance Debtors Draft report issued - Partial  

67 Education  SEND  Draft report issued - Reasonable 

68 Development Smart Places Programme  Draft report issued - Reasonable 

    

Audits Deferred for Consideration In 2022/23 

 Service Area Audit Comment/ rationale 

69 Adult Social Care Partnerships 
Postponed until 2022/23, resource allocated to higher 

risk audits 

70 Children’s Social Care  Public Law Outline Area subject to recent Ofsted review 

113



71 Education Virtual School Area subject to recent Ofsted review 

72 Destination & Culture 
Cash Office and Arcade 

Income 

Postponed until 2022/23, resource allocated to higher 

risk audits 

73 Transport & Engineering Health & Safety 

Postponed until 2022/23, to concentrate on 

Construction, Design and Management (CDM) 

arrangements 

74 Communities Port Health 
Postponed until 2022/23 due to awaiting clarification of 

legislative requirements from Government 

75 Housing Non-rental income 
Following an analytical review, resource allocated to 

higher risk audits  

76 
Policy & Research Business Planning & 

Performance Management 

Scope of recent Corporate Peer Challenge included a 

review of this area 

77 PMO and Major Change 
Programme/ Project 

Management 

Considered more value at looking at individual projects 

in service areas. This work has been completed 

78 HR & Organisational Development  Payroll 

Postponed until 2022/23 as service under review. Note 

assurance gained from some 2020/21/22 work and all  

recommendations implementation 

79 Housing  
Housing Tenancy Data 

Matching 

Postponed until 2022/23 due to proposed changes in 

BCP housing stock management 

114



 Annexe 2: Key Financial Systems Opinions 

 

Assignment Title Service Area 2021/22 Opinion 2020/21 Opinion 2019/20 Opinion 

Council Tax Finance Reasonable* Reasonable Reasonable 

NDR Finance Reasonable* Reasonable Reasonable 

Housing Benefits Finance Reasonable Not reviewed Substantial 

Debtors Finance Partial** Reasonable Reasonable 

Main Accounting Finance Reasonable Reasonable Reasonable 

Creditors Finance Reasonable Reasonable Reasonable 

Payroll HR & Org Dev c/fwd to 22/23 Reasonable Reasonable 

Treasury Management Finance Reasonable Substantial Reasonable 

Housing Rents Housing Reasonable Partial Reasonable 

Social Services Financial Assessments Finance*** Reasonable* Reasonable Reasonable 

 

Notes  

*  Audits carried out across 2021/22/23 
** Debtors - Recommendations were made to improve controls over outstanding debt (Radius system) & debt monitoring and reporting. 
*** Social Services Financial Assessments – New combined service in 2021/22 (previously ASC and SVPP)  
 
 

115



Annexe 3 

 
BCP Internal Audit Assurance Map 2021/22 

INTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE 

Source of Assurance Internal Audit Assurance Work 

Internal Audit 

 

 All Service Directorates audited during 2021-22  
 68 out of 79 Audits completed (see Annexe 1 

for list of audits)  

 1 Substantial, 56 Reasonable and 10 Partial 
Assurance Level opinions were given during 
the year. 1 consultancy review was also carried 
out 

 There were no Minimal assurance opinions 

Counter Fraud 

 

 Audit assignments carried out during 2021/22 
have considered the risk of fraud including 
targeted high fraud risk reviews 

 Corporate Fraud Officer has provided support 
to service directorates on high risk external 
fraud areas (including housing allocation/ 
tenancy) 

 Several investigations carried out and 
recommendations made to improve controls 

 Participated in National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 
data matching exercise 

Asset Management (Estate Management) 

 

 Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on asset management (estates). High 
Priority Recommendations were made to 
improve arrangements over asset records, 
lease & rental information and the introduction 
of a corporate asset management plan 
resulting in a ‘Partial’ audit opinion 

Asset Management (Facilities Management)  Internal Audit carried out a recommendation  
follow up review on asset management 
(facilities management). A new High Priority 
Recommendation was made to ensure that all 
outstanding recommendations from the 
2020/21 audit review are reported to the 
Strategic Property Group for consideration and 
appropriate action which resulted in a ‘Partial’ 
audit opinion. 

Business Continuity 

 

 Regular reporting took place during the year on 
corporate emergency planning arrangements 
to Audit & Governance Committee 

 Corporate Resilience Strategy and Emergency 
Planning & Business Continuity Governance 
Framework are in place 

 Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on Business Continuity (‘Reasonable’ 
audit opinion) 

116



INTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE 

Source of Assurance Internal Audit Assurance Work 

Business Planning & Performance Management  Corporate performance reporting to Cabinet 
took place during the year.  

 The Corporate Performance Framework and  
Corporate Strategy were updated during the 
year 

 The LGA Corporate Peer Challenge 
considered the Council’s business planning & 
performance management arrangements  

 Internal Audit review on corporate business 
planning and performance management 
arrangements postponed until 2022/23 

Financial Management 

 

 Regular reporting took place in year to Cabinet 
and Council 

 Internal Audit review of Main Accounting 
system undertaken during the year 
(‘Reasonable’ audit opinion) 

Health & Safety (including Fire Safety) 

 

 Reporting of arrangements to Audit & 
Governance Committee took place in the year 

 Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on corporate Health & Safety (inc. Fire 
Safety) arrangements (‘Reasonable’ audit 
opinion) 

Human Resources  Audit review carried out on corporate Human 
Resources arrangements covering policies,  
mandatory training, and recruitment 
(‘Reasonable’ audit opinion) 

Information Communication Technology  Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on ICT Policies (‘Reasonable’ audit 
opinion) 

Information Governance  Information Governance Board in place and 
regular meetings occurring 

 Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on Information Governance 
(‘Reasonable’ audit opinion) 

Partnerships  Internal Audit carried out a consultancy review 
on Partnerships to follow up on the issues 
raised in the Annual Governance Statement.  

Procurement 

 

 Internal Audit review of Procurement carried 
out (‘Reasonable’ audit opinion)  

 See separate Annual Report on Breaches and 
Waivers reported to this committee  

Project & Programme Management  

 

 Specific programme/project management 
reviews were carried out in Destination & 
Culture, Transportation & Engineering and 
Development 

 Internal Audit review on Project & Programme 
Management postponed until 2022/23  

117



INTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE 

Source of Assurance Internal Audit Assurance Work 

Risk Management 

 

 Corporate Risk Management Strategies and 
frameworks in place 

 Regular risk management reporting took place 
during the year to Audit & Governance 
Committee and Senior Management 

 Audit review carried out on current 
arrangements for risk management 
(‘Reasonable’ audit opinion) 

Safeguarding   Internal Audit carried out an annual assurance 
review on corporate safeguarding 
arrangements. High Priority Recommendations 
were made to further improve arrangements 
over mandatory safeguarding training for all 
staff and completeness of Disclosure & Barring 
Service (DBS) checks resulting in a ‘Partial’ 
audit opinion 

Management Assurance Statements  Received from Corporate and Service Directors 
 Any potential significant issues raised were 

considered for inclusion on the Annual 
Governance Statement 

EXTERNAL SOURCES OF ASSURANCE 

External Audit Quality / Accreditation Schemes 

External Reviews & Inspections External Benchmarking 

Regularity Bodies Peer Reviews 

 

118



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of Financial Regulations 
Report 2021/22 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report sets out the breaches and waivers of Financial 
Regulations (the Regulations) which have occurred during the 

2021/22 financial year and highlights the following:  

 2021/22  2020/21 2019/20 

 Breaches Waivers  Breaches Waivers Breaches Waivers 

Total 
(count) 

4 77 5 116 8 66 

Total (£ 
value) 

£1,347,429 £6.3M £870,561 £12.6M £171,625 £13.8M 

The low number of breaches indicate that there was generally a 

good level of understanding of the Regulations. 

The Chief Finance Officer, or formally delegated representatives, 

agreed 77 waivers totalling £6.3M.  

It was reported this time last year, for 2020/21, that the higher 
number of waivers, compared to 2019/20, was materially due to the 

impact of covid19. During the pandemic, particularly the early stages 
in the spring and summer of 2020, the number of ‘Limited supplier’ 

waivers (did not invite or could not obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
increased because a significant number of suppliers were asked but 

could not supply a quote, or supply the goods, services or works to 

the Council. Some suppliers closed completely as a result of the 
Government’s ‘furlough’ scheme whilst others were running at 

reduced capacity. 

The lower number (77) of approved waivers in 2021/22 shows a 

reassuring drop from the exceptional covid19 impacted 2020/21 year 
(116). The comparison by £ value is more reassuring again as 

significantly less Council expenditure is now subject to an approved 

waiver, this means that a greater proportion of the Council’s total 
expenditure is subject to the full requirements set out in the 

Council’s Financial Regulations.  

Whilst full compliance can never be guaranteed and ‘under-

reporting’ of breaches, in particular, is an inherent possibility, 
arrangements were in place to detect instances of non-compliance.  

119

Agenda Item 15



An effective and transparent breaches and waiver governance 
process maximises the chances of the Council achieving value for 
money and complying with UK Procurement Legislation (Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR15)) principles when procuring 
goods, services or works under PCR15 thresholds. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Audit & Governance Committee note the breaches & 
waivers of Financial Regulations that occurred during 2021/22. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To comply with Financial Regulations which require that all breaches 
& waivers are considered annually by the Audit & Governance 
Committee. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

01202 128784  

  nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Financial Regulations (the Regulations) set out the procedures and standards for 

financial management and control, and specifically: 

 the purpose of each section in the relevant Part of the Regulations (why it is 

important); 

 the standards and controls that must be observed (how the Regulations serve to 

facilitate the good governance and the proper administration of the Councils 

financial affairs); 

 the specific roles and responsibilities of Councillors, the Chief Executive, the 

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) / S151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer and other 

named Officers in relation to doing so (the accountability framework); and 

 detailed procedure notes and relevant financial thresholds where these apply 

(what must be done and in what way). 

 

2. The Regulations require that all breaches and waivers of financial regulations are 

reported to the CFO / S151 Officer or their delegated officer along with details of any 

management action to address the issues arising. A combination of the Internal Audit 

and Strategic Procurement Teams maintained a record of all breaches and waivers to 

enable full, transparent and accurate reporting to Audit & Governance Committee. 

120



Breaches of Financial Regulations 

3. During the 2021/22 financial year four breaches of Financial Regulations have been 

identified, totalling £1,347,429 (compared to five breaches, totalling £870,561 in 

2020/21), and as summarised in the table below:  

 
Breach 

Ref. 

Service Unit Detail of Breach Value 

Br1 Children’s Services Failure to obtain CFO approval for payment 

in advance 
£200,000 

Br2 
Destination & 
Culture 

Failure to obtain CFO approval for income 
system prior to placing order 

£1,904 

Br3 Children’s Services 

Failure to ensure the engagement of a 
person via a contract of service (rather than 

a contract of employment) is assessed by 
the HHR for compliance with relevant 

legislation to determine if payments need to 

be ‘on payroll’ or ‘off payroll’ via invoice. 

£51,867 

Br4 Environment 

Failure to obtain formal written tenders (or a 
waiver) for the specialist procurement of 

several coroner’s services (£697,125, 
£175,750, £136,357, £57,226, £27,200)  

£1,093,658 

  Total £1,347,429 

 

4. It is the case for all breaches that had waiver forms been produced in advance of the 

procurement they would have been approved. Further explanations on the breaches are 

outlined below: 

 

 Br1, Children’s Services, £200,0000 

Payment in Advance was made for the services of a contractor to fill the role of 

Director Children’s Services (DCS) for BCP Council. The contract was for 6 months 

(April – September 2021) and paid in full in advance. 

The payment was made in advance due to a previous arrangement that had been 

put in place via a previous DCS (where a waiver was obtained), when the contractor 

in question was commissioned to support the Directorate. When the contract cost 

was increased and extended, the same payment terms remained in place but a 

further waiver was not obtained.  

Assurances were obtained that prior CFO approval will be obtained should further 

advance payments be required. 

 Br2, Destination & Culture, £1,904 

A contactless donation station was ordered for a museum without the prior approval 

of the CFO.  

The museum cancelled the order and plan to consider all options to accept 

donations in liaison with the Accountancy team to ensure future compliance with 

Financial Regulations.  

121



 Br3, Children’s Services, £51,867 

It was identified that an IR35 Tax liability had been caused by the incorrect treatment 

of a contract employee as a creditor rather than an 'off establishment ' employee 

paid via payroll. This arrangement did not have Head of HR (HHR) agreement as 

required under Financial Regulations. 

Arrangements to prevent recurrence have been agreed which include passing every 

IR35 screening template to the HHR, or representative, for review before agreeing 

any appointment.  

 Br4, Environment, £1,093,658 

As part of an Internal Audit review it was identified that several individual breaches 

of Financial Regulations Part G para 6 “Advertising and Competition Requirements 

for all Procurements over £25,000”, had occurred as part of Coroner's service 

procurement activity (aggregate contract values £697,125, £175,750, £136,357, 

£57,226 & £27,200). It is acknowledged that this is a specialist area of procurement 

activity and there are a limited number of service providers for this statutory service. 

Liaison with the Procurement team has been undertaken to prevent a recurrence 

including the setting up of a ‘Section 32 Procurement Notice’ for pathologists and 

the production of a waiver to cover the APT support staff.  

 

5. This low number of breaches again suggests a good level of understanding of the 

requirements amongst managers and officers and has resulted in good compliance with 

the Regulations. 

 

6. While it is not possible to say that there have been no further breaches, at the current 

time none have been brought to the attention of, or have been identified by, the Head of 

Audit & Management Assurance or the Head of Strategic Procurement for the reporting 

period considered here. 

Waivers of Financial Regulations 

7. Sometimes circumstances mean that it may not be possible for Senior Responsible 

Officers to comply with a specific part of the Regulations.  

 

8. As a result, the Regulations allow for a request to be made to the CFO / S151 Officer (or 

formally delegated representative) to waive normal practice requirements. The ability of 
the CFO to approve waiver requests was limited at all times to the specific requirements 

of UK legislation and/or directives. Consequently, some requests were declined, and the 

Regulations were followed in full.  
 

9. The CFO (or formally delegated representative) may approve a waiver in the following 
procurement circumstances: 

a) Accelerated procurement (in the case of urgency for example) where the Council 
would suffer significant negative impact if the full operational or strategic 
procurement approach is applied.  

b) Limited suppliers in the market (did not invite or could not obtain 3 quotes or tenders).  

c) Propose not to use an available Corporate Contract or available and existing in-
house service.  

d) Payments in advance for goods and services exceeding £25,000 or six months (and 
also over £1,000) ((except w here T&C’s approved by Legal Services apply). 

e) Any payment in advance for works (except w here T&C’s approved by Legal Services apply). 

122



10. During the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, a total of 77 requests were approved 

by the CFO. The contract value of these waivers totalled £6.3M (this is a rounded figure). 

 

11. A summary by classification type of waivers approved by the CFO is set out in the table 

below and more details of each waiver is set out in Appendix 1. 

  

Waiver Type Total  
2021/22 

Total  
2020/21 

Total  
2019/20 

a) Accelerated procurement 

including urgency 
27 34 9 

b) Limited suppliers (did not invite or 
could not obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 50 81 52* 

c) Not use an available 
Corporate Contract 

0 0 3 

d) Payments in advance for 
goods and services 

0 1 2 

e) Payment in advice for works 0 0 0 

Total (Count) 77 116 66 

Total (£ value in £M) £6.3 £12.6 £13.7 

* Four waivers reclassified into this category after further review 

 

12. It was reported this time last year, for 2020/21, that the higher number of waivers  
compared to 2019/20 was materially due to the impact of covid19. During the pandemic, 

particularly the early stages in the spring and summer of 2020, the number of ‘Limited 
supplier’ waivers (did not invite or could not obtain 3 quotes or tenders) increased 

because a significant number of suppliers were asked but could not supply a quote, or 
supply the goods, services or works to the Council. Some suppliers closed completely as 

a result of the Government’s ‘furlough’ scheme whilst others were running at reduced 

capacity. 
 

13. The lower number (77) of approved waivers in 2021/22 shows a reassuring drop from 
the exceptional covid19 impacted 2020/21 year (116). The comparison by £ value is 

more reassuring again as significantly less Council expenditure is now subject to an 
approved waiver, this means that a greater proportion of the Council’s total expenditure 

is subject to the full requirements set out in the Council’s Financial Regulations.  

    
14. There continues to be an impact on waiver numbers caused by ‘Transformation 

Programme’ activity where some incumbent supplier contracts have been extended to 
allow time for redesign, for new procurement processes to take place and to align the 

end date of legacy Council contracts to the same date. This is particularly common for 
some IT software and hardware related contracts. Where incumbent suppliers have been 

awarded extended contracts, these are shown in the ‘Limited suppliers’ category 
 

15. If a member of this Committee has a question pertaining to any specific waiver in the 

Appendix, then it may be necessary to answer the question outside of the committee 

meeting as the Head of Audit & Management Assurance may not have detailed 

explanations to hand for all 77 records.  

 

Options Appraisal 

16. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

123



Summary of financial implications 

17. An effective and transparent breaches/waivers/exemptions governance process 

maximises the chances of achieving value for money when procuring goods, services or 

works. 

Summary of legal implications 

18. An effective and transparent breaches/waivers/exemptions governance process 

maximises the chances of complying with Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (UK law).  

Summary of human resources implications 

19. There are no direct human resource implications arising from this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

20. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

21. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

22. There are no direct equality implications from this report 

Summary of risk assessment 

23. Failure to have appropriate financial regulations and procurement rules which ensures 

accountable and transparent processes are in place puts the Council at risk of challenge. 

Background papers 

None  

Appendices  

Appendix 1 - Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

 

124



Appendix 1 – Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

Waivers 

Count 
Waiver 

Ref. 
Project Title Supplier Waiver Type Waiver Value 

Adult Social Care 

1 W00690 
Client money and case management 
software for Court of Protection Deputyship 
function 

Trojan Consultants 

Ltd 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £44,980 

TOTAL £44,980 

Adult Social Care Commissioning 

2 W00658 
Carers Concession Card Business Support & 
Development 

Worldwide 

Procurement 
Service UK LTD 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£87,000 

3 W00659 Reablement Night Service Agincare Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £80,800 

4 W00678 Three Conversations Model Partners 4 Change 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

 

£40,000 

TOTAL £207,800 

Children’s Services 

5 W00695 Integrated Youth Support Software 
Servelec Youth 

Services Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£110,000 

6 W00703 
Learnertrack Management Information 
System 

Monterpoint 
Technologies Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£68,000 

7 W00657 Overseas Recruitment of Social Workers Tripod Partners Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £185,000 

8 W00710 
The Provision of 12 bed accommodation for 

young people aged 18-24 years 
BCHA 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£176,580  

9 W00683 
IT Support and IT Software Licensing at 
Hillbourne Primary School 

School Care 
Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 

Advertising - select specialist list used). 
£25,000 

10 W00676 Supply of Locum Educational Psychologists 

Provident Recruitment  
Tabla Psychology Ltd 
Embrace Psychology 

Provident Recruitment 
Spark Psychology 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £150,000 

11 W00619 Brilliant Parents - Parenting Programmes Brilliant Parents 
Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 

Advertising - select specialist list used). 
£37,800 

 

12 W00611 Catering Contract 
Forerunner Personal 

Catering Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£72,904 

 

TOTAL £825,284 

Communications and Marketing 

13 W00642 
Human-Centric Communication Engagement 
Platform 

Hello Lamp Post 
Limited 

A known number of limited suppliers in the 

market, prior to commencement of the 
procurement process (unable to invite or obtain 

3 quotes or tenders). 

£109,650 

125



Appendix 1 – Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

14 W00680 
Design, Print and Distribution of BCP News 

Magazine 

Community 
Information Services 

Limited 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£40,000 

TOTAL £149,650 

Communities 

15 W00670 
Funding for Citizens Advice BCP Urban 
Outreach Vehicle (COMF16) 

Citizens Advice 

Bureau 
Bournemouth and 

Poole 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£55,000 

16 W00640 Regulatory Services Software Civica UK Limited 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£147,649 

17 W00650 Seafront Medical Provision 
Enhanced Care 

Services Ltd (ECS) 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £117,880 

18 W00655 Residents Survey 2021 Enventure Research Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £48,410 

19 W00681 
Modular building for joint Parks & 
Environment & Communities ASPIRE project 

Prestige Kiosks 
Limited 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £149,000 

20 W00608 
Domestic Abuse Accommodation Needs 

Assessment 
Standing Together Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £30,000 

21 W00621 Fly-tipping and Fly-posting Enforcement Pilot 
Waste Investigations 

Support and 
Enforcement (WISE) 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£132,000 

TOTAL £679,939 

Customer & Business Delivery 

22 W00641 Disability Consultation Service DOTs Disability 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£84,081 

23 W00622 Content Management System Software Zengenti Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) 
£93,600 

 

TOTAL £177,681 

Destination & Culture 

24 W00687 
Management of Wedding Receptions & 
Provision of Bar & Front of House Staff 

Slick Events LTD 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£48,000 

25 W00708 
Freelance Manager for Cultural Compact 

Project 
Emma Kerr Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £54,550 

26 W00709 
Event Management Services for 
Bournemouth Hospitality Provision at 
Bournemouth Beach 

Slick Events LTD 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£60,000 

27 W00645 
Artistic Leader for the Arts by the Sea 

Festival 
From The Fields Ltd Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £40,500 

28 W00677 
Mudeford Beach House Cafe Re-build 
Professional Services 

PAD Studio Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £84,325 

29 W00697 
Seafront Electric Barbecues Phase 2 
Installation 

High Voltage Power 
Systems Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£81,770 

126



Appendix 1 – Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

30 W00698 
Social Media Services for Destination & 
Culture 

Sam Merrick T/A 
Soul Motion 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£105,000 

31 W00704 PA Provision for Major Festivals W E Audio LTD 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£28,060 

32 W00610 
Supply of 21m² LED screen for Festival 

Coast Live 

Premium Events 

Productions 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£114,802 

33 W00612 
Supply of Container Stages for Festival Coast 
Live 

CDB Design & Build 
Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£78,301 

34 W00613 
Projection Mapping of Town Hall: 
Confinement Connection 

Novak Media Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£53,930 

35 
W00623 

 

Environmental Innovation Hub, Durley Chine 

/ Timber Link International Ltd 

Timber Link 

International Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£60,000 

 

TOTAL £809,238 

Development 

36 W00646 
Urban Regeneration Company (URC) 
Branding & Communications Brief 

Make Studio 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£35,003 

37 W00652 

Engagement of an employer’s agent to 
advise on pre-contract issues and to 

represent our interests during the 
construction of the project due to start April 
2022. 

Frazer Garner 
Associates Ltd 

Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 
Advertising - select specialist list used). 

£79,000 

38 W00673 Bournemouth Towns Fund (Masterplan) PJA 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£24,800 

39 W00684 City identity – the Big Conversation 1HQ Limited 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£100,000 

40 W00692 
Footfall, Visitor Insight and Data Monitoring 
Solution for BCP Council 

Various 
Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 

Advertising - select specialist list used). 
£75,000 

41 W00693 

Purchase of antenna, radio gear and 

mountings for extending 4G/5G private 
networks with 12 months support 

AW2S 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£54,429 

TOTAL £368,232 

Environment 

42 W00705 Solar PV Panels for Former BLC Building 
Ambitions Academy 

Trust 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £50,000 

43 W00651 
Climate Emergency: Delivery of ‘Climate 

Action’ insulation scheme 

Ridgewater Energy 

Ltd 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £90,000 

44 W00696 BCP Litter Bins Greener Safer Campaign  Broxap Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£86,000 

 

45 W00686 
Poole Crematorium Decarbonisation 
Programme 

Watertite Heating 
Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£134,279 

TOTAL £360,279 

 

127



Appendix 1 – Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

Finance 

46 W00649 Aviation Insurance – Air Festival Haywards Aviation 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£50,400 

47 W00702 
Commercialisation of BCP Assets - Detailed 
Design 

KPMG LLP 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£83,000 

TOTAL £133,400 

Housing 

48 W00682 
Support Work for Community Land Trust 
Projects  

Middlemarch 

Community Led 
Housing CIC Limited 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£96,000 

49 W00685 Fernheath Sports Pavilion Works 

1. Turner Timber 
Frame Ltd 

2. Dixon Mechanical 
Services Ltd 

3. Davison Electrical 

Ltd 

Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 
Advertising - select specialist list used). 

£198,713 

50 W00688 
In-House Repairs and Maintenance 
Workforce Scheduling and Mobile Working 
System 

Advanced Computer 

Software LTD 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£119,726 

51 W00604 
Housing Asset Management System for 

Bournemouth Neighbourhood 
Civica UK Limited 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£96,311 

52 W00605 
Housing Management System for 
Bournemouth Neighbourhood 

Northgate Public 
Services Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£178,815 

53 W00609 
Housing Related Support - Edward May 
Court 

East Boro Housing 
Trust 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£37,065 

54 W00618 
Supported Accommodation for People with a 

Learning Disability  
2 Care 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£230,887 

TOTAL £957,517 

Planning 

55 W00700 Local Plan Review 
Cratus 

Communications 
LTD 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£35,000 

56 W00701 
Poole legacy Planning Application processing 

software 
Idox Group Ltd 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£36,209 

57 W00694 HMO Planning Enforcement Eplan Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£25,000 

58 W00656 
Permanent Recruitment Services Campaign 
for Planning Posts 

Hays Recruitment 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£90,000 

59 W00620 Planning Software System + Upgrades DEF Software Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£55,745 

 

TOTAL £241,954 

 

128



Appendix 1 – Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22 

Resources 

60 W00653 CRM Software for Poole and Christchurch 
Granicus-Firmstep 

Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£49,460 

61 W00654 
IT Consultancy Support for Microsoft and 
Anywhere 365 Products 

Transparity 
Solutions Limited 

Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 
obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 

£55,800 

62 W00689 MS Dynamics Annual Support Contract KPMG LLP 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£55,200 

63 W00691 Corporate Electronic Management System Idox Group Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£113,725 

64 W00699 Licence Manager Software Phoenix Software 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£36,423 

65 W00706 

IT Solution to administer Resident Grant and 

Discount Schemes to support Government’s 
£150 Council Tax Energy Rebate Scheme 

Ascendant Solutions 
LTD 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £26,411 

66 W00707 E-Learning Software (i-learn) for BCP Council 
Learning Pool 

Limited 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£32,970 

67 W00614 IT Service Management Software Sunrise Software Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£88,389 

68 W00615 Employee Assistance Programme 
Health Assured 

Limited 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £32,926 

69 W00616 Occupational Health 
People Asset 
Management 

Limited (PAM) 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £60,000 

TOTAL £551,304 

Transport and Engineering 

70 W00679 
Transforming Cities Fund Programme: 
Planning Advice 

Adams Hendry 
Consulting Ltd 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £12,600 

71 W00638 
Wessex Fields - Phases 1.1 outstanding 
works 

Hanson Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £60,000 

72 W00639 Red surfacing for stepped cycleways  WJ South West Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£445,400 

73 W00644 
Passenger Transport Logistic Planning 
Software 

Kappa Lambda 
Squared Ltd 

Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £155,387 

74 W00647 
Anti Idling Campaign outside Primary 
Schools 

Sustrans Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£31,840 

75 W00648 Hardwood piles for timber groynes 
Gilmore and Aitken 

Ltd 
Accelerated Procurement (Urgency) £30,000 

76 W00671 School Streets Officer Sustrans Ltd 
Limited suppliers (did not invite or could not 

obtain 3 quotes or tenders) 
£34,750 

77 W00674 Drainage Survey - Wimborne Road, Poole Clearview Surveys 
Accelerated Procurement (Not Openly 

Advertising - select specialist list used). 
£31,150 

TOTAL £801,127 

Grand Total £6,308,385 
 

129



T
his page is intentionally left blank

130



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 and Annual Review of 
Local Code of Governance 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015* require councils to 
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to accompany its 
Statement of Accounts.  

This report seeks approval of the draft AGS prior to the statutory 
inspection period.  The final AGS will be approved by this 
committee as part of the Statement of Accounts sign off process 
and report; any changes necessary to the AGS in the intervening 
period will be highlighted in this report. 

The AGS concludes that BCP Council “has effective and fit-for-
purpose governance arrangements in place in accordance 
with the governance framework”.  

After considering all the sources of assurance (for governance 
arrangements), BCP Corporate Management Board identified that 
the following significant governance issues existed:  

 Governance of Children’s Social Services 

 Governance Arrangements with External Bodies 

 Delay in the completion of the 2020/21 External Audit 

An action plan to address these significant governance issues has 
been produced and is being implemented. An update against the 
action plan will be brought to Audit and Governance Committee in 
January 2023. 

*and as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021  

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 a. The draft Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 is agreed 
prior to the statutory inspection period 

b. The annual update of Local Code of Governance is 
approved. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require authorities to conduct 
a review at least once a year of the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements and, following the review, approve an AGS which 
must accompany and be published with the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. 

131

Agenda Item 16



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance 

 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Ruth Hodges 

 ruth.hodges@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Audit Manager (Deputy Chief Internal Auditor) 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Decision  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to produce an Annual 

Governance Statement (AGS) following review of its governance framework. This review 

is carried out in accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government’ framework and guidance. 

 

2. The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by 

which the Council is directed and controlled, and by which it is accountable to, engages 

with and leads the community. 

 

3. BCP Council’s Local Code of Governance describes the Council’s governance 

framework using the seven principles of governance identified by best practice, shown in 

diagram 1 below.  

 

4. The AGS comments on the effectiveness of these arrangements and identifies any 

significant issues (weaknesses) for the Council to address. 

 

5. The AGS will be published as part of the statutory inspection period from 1st August 

2022, where the public have the right to inspect, challenge and ask the external auditor 

questions about the accounts. Any comments received will be considered by Corporate 

Management Board and necessary amendments made to the AGS prior to finalisation. 

 

6. The AGS is published with the Council’s Statement of Accounts and is required to be 

signed by the Chief Executive and Leader, who must be satisfied that the document is 

supported by reliable evidence. It is reviewed by External Audit as part of the 2021/22 

Audit. The Audit & Governance Committee is required to review the AGS and monitor 

the Council’s response to the issues identified in the action plan. 

 
  

132

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
mailto:ruth.hodges@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 
Diagram 1, taken from the ‘International Framework: Good Governance in the 

Public Sector’ 

 

 

Process for Compiling the AGS 

7. The AGS is compiled from a wide range of evidence sources across the Council, 
including in-year elements and a year-end assessment which includes:  

a. Completion of Management Assurance Statements by service directors and 
for group entities; 

b. Completion of Directors Assurance Statements by corporate directors; 

c. Internal documentation and reports; 

d. Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report 2021/22 (reported separately to this 
Committee); 

e. Findings from internal and external reports (e.g. external audit, OFSTED);  

f. Follow up of the previous year’s AGS Action Plan; and 

g. Consideration of any matters arising from the public inspection period where 
the draft Statement of Accounts (including the AGS) will be made available. 
 

133



8. A range of potential issues was identified during the evidence gathering process and 
was considered by BCP’s Corporate Management Board (CMB). CMB recognise 
whether an issue constitutes a significant governance issue is one of judgement 
rather than fact, however, the criteria below provides a framework for those 
judgements:   

a. has/may seriously prejudice or prevent achievement of a principal Council 
objective or priority; 

b. has/may result in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved, 
or has/may result in a significant diversion of resources from another service 
area; 

c. has/may led to a material impact on the accounts; 

d. has/may attract significant public interest or has/may seriously damage the 
reputation of the Council; 

e. has/may be publicly reported by a third party (e.g. Grant Thornton, Ofsted) as 
a significant governance issue; or 

f. has/may result in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial Officer 
and/or the Monitoring Officer. 

 
AGS Conclusion and areas requiring improvement  

9. The AGS concludes that BCP Council “for the year ended 31st March 2022 and to 
the date of the publication of the Statement of Accounts, it has effective, fit-for-
purpose governance arrangements in place in accordance with the governance 
framework.” 

10. Whilst overall governance arrangements are considered sound, the Council has 
identified three significant governance issues as follows:  

 Governance of Children’s Social Services  

 Governance Arrangements with External Bodies 

 Delay in the Completion of the 2020/21 External Audit 
 

11. Two of these issues, Children’s Social Services and Arrangements with External 
Bodies, were included as significant governance issues in the previous AGS 
(2020/21). Whilst significant progress has been made to address these, areas for 
further improvement remain. Therefore, they have been updated to reflect the 
changes during the year and included again in 2021/22. 

12. The Delay in the Completion of the 2020/21 External Audit is a new significant 
governance issue for the year.  

13. An action plan to address the first two issues has been put in place and high-level 
progress against these actions will be reported to Audit and Governance Committee 
in January 2023. However, the Delay in Completion of the External Audit is a national 
issue, the accounting treatment and auditing requirements of infrastructure assets, 
over which the Council has no direct influence. Consequently, whilst the Council has 
not produced an internal action plan to resolve this issue, officers continue to liaise 
with the External Auditor and engage in the national consultation to seek a 
resolution.  

14. Of the remaining potential issues considered by CMB, there were others which were 
either risks or minor weaknesses. Whilst these are not included in the AGS as 
significant governance issues, actions are in place to manage these areas. For 
example, the Council recognises that improvements to the governance of asset 
management are necessary. It has actions underway to address these, notably the 
development of a Corporate Asset Management Plan and addressing the issues 

134



from the Avison Young report. However, the governance is not considered a serious 
weakness, as, for example, proper decision making processes are followed and the 
corporate property group operates.   

15. As required by best practice, the AGS considers the impact of Covid-19 on the 
Council’s governance arrangements and reports on progress towards compliance 
with the Financial Management Code (FM Code).  

16. No immediate significant governance issues caused directly by the pandemic were 
identified, and it was considered that appropriate governance was in place to 
respond to the challenges of the pandemic and deliver business as usual. 

17. The FM Code provides guidance for good and sustainable financial management. 
The updated self-assessment against the FM Code concluded that BCP Council was 
compliant. Opportunities for further improvement remain and are monitored via an 
action plan.  

BCP Council – Local Code of Governance 

18. The BCP Local Code of Governance (see 3 and Diagram 1) is regularly reviewed to 
keep it as up to date as practicable. Since the inception of BCP Council, regular 
revisions have been necessary to reflect the evolution of the Council’s governance 
arrangements, such as replacing legacy arrangements with BCP specific policies and 
processes. As such, a revised version is attached in Appendix 2 for noting by Audit & 
Governance Committee.  

19. Changes and updates to arrangements will not always be reflected in the Local 
Code, as the new arrangements, such as the updated Overview and Scrutiny 
arrangements and the new BCP HR polices are referred to by the same name. 

Options Appraisal 

20. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report.  

Summary of financial implications 

21. The AGS is part of the annual Statement of Accounts and is reviewed by Grant 

Thornton, the External Auditor, to ensure it is consistent with their understanding of the 
organisation. Consequently, failure to produce an AGS and / or failure to properly 
disclose any matter known to the organisation would be reported by Grant Thornton.  

Summary of legal implications 

22. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to produce an AGS. 
Failure to comply would result in the Council not meeting its statutory requirements.                              

Summary of human resources implications 

23. There are no direct human resources implications from this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

24. There are no direct sustainability impacts from this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

25. There are no direct public health implications from this report.  

135



Summary of equality implications 

26. In respect of the Local Code of Governance, an Equality Impact Assessment 
Screening Tool has been completed and reviewed. The Council’s equality & diversity 
policy, supporting equality & diversity governance framework and equality impact 
assessment processes, which are part of the Local Code of Governance, are in place 
to ensure and promote positive equality outcomes for everyone. 

Summary of risk assessment 

27. There is a risk that failure to prepare the Annual Governance Statement in line with 
proper practice would breach the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015. 

28. If timely actions are not taken to address the issues in the Action Plan arising from 
the AGS, then there is a risk that the Council’s governance arrangements may not be 
adequate or consistent with good practice. 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – BCP Council AGS 2021/22 

Appendix 2 – Local Code of Governance (June 2022 update)  

 

 

 

136



AGS 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
BCP COUNCIL 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
2021/22 

 

 

 

July 2022 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Appendix 1 

137



AGS 2 
 

Scope of Responsibility 

1 BCP Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  
 

2 In discharging this overall responsibility, BCP Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, and arranging for the management of risk. 

 
3 To this end, BCP Council has adopted a Local Code of Governance which is 

consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. A copy of this Code is available on the Council’s 
website.  
 

4 The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) explains how BCP Council complied with 
the Code and met the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (and 
as amended by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021) in relation 
to its preparation, approval and publication. 
 

The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

5 The governance framework comprises of the systems and processes, culture and 
values by which the authority is directed and controlled, and by which it accounts to, 
engages with and lead its communities. It includes arrangements to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives led 
to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 
 

6 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It does not eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not 
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the 
Council’s policies, aims and objectives; to evaluate the likelihood and potential 
impact of those risks being realised; and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 
 

7 The key elements of the Council’s governance framework are identified in the Local 
Code of Governance which is consistent with the seven best practice principles of the 
International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector (CIPFA/SOLACE 
Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government) as shown in the 
diagram below.  
 
 

138

https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Code-of-governance.aspx
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Code-of-governance.aspx
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Code-of-governance.aspx
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/About-the-council/Code-of-governance.aspx


AGS 3 
 

 
 
 

8 BCP Council’s governance framework was in place for the year ended 31st March 
2022 and up to the date of the approval of the Statement of Accounts.  

 

Review of Effectiveness of the Governance Framework 

9 BCP Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including how it meets the principles 
above and the effectiveness of the system of internal control. This includes how its 
vision, priorities and objectives, as articulated in the corporate Strategy and Big Plan, 
are delivered, effectiveness of decision making, and governance of partnerships and 
group entities.  
 

10 The AGS is the method by which we record the outcome of this review. The AGS 
also includes the Council’s group entities as identified in its Statement of Accounts. 

 
11 As part of the review, the Council considers both in-year, continuous elements and 

year-end review processes. 
 

12 Many of the elements identified in the Local Code of Governance provided on-going 
review of the effectiveness of the governance framework during the 2021/22 financial 
year including: 

 Democratic processes, such as Full Council, Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny 
functions, which operated in line with the Council’s Constitution 
 

 The Audit and Governance Committee which provided independent assurance to 
the Council on the effectiveness of governance arrangements, risk management 
and the internal control environment 

139



AGS 4 
 

 Established arrangements for senior officers to meet as part of Corporate 
Management Board, Transformation Board and Directors Strategy Group 
 

 Statutory Officers Group, comprising of the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer, which met regularly throughout the year. The Head of 
Audit & Management Assurance also attended these meetings. 

 

 The role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) in terms of non-statutory codified 
professional practice, legislative and statutory responsibilities, and corporate 
governance requirements is set out in the Council’s Constitution. The Council’s 
financial management arrangements conformed to the governance requirements 
of the CIPFA Statement of the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2016). The Director of Finance is designated as the Council’s CFO 

 

 The Council’s assurance arrangements also conformed to the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 
(2019). The Head of Audit & Management Assurance was designated as the 
Council’s Head of Internal Audit 

 The Director of Law & Governance has been designated as the Monitoring Officer, 

whose functions include a duty to keep under review the operation of the Constitution 

to ensure it is lawful, up to date and fit for purpose  

 Review of and changes to the Constitution following the work of the Constitution 

Review Working Group and Monitoring Officer  

 The Council reached a good level of performance against the CIPFA Code of Practice 

on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption. This means the organisation has put 

in place effective arrangements across many aspects of the counter-fraud code and 

undertook positive action to manage its risks 

 Internal Audit, who provided an independent appraisal function and assurance on the 

adequacy of internal controls and of risks to the Council’s functions and systems  

 External Audit, to whom the Council provides support, information and responses as 

required, and ensures findings and recommendations are appropriately considered 

 External reviews and inspections, the results of which are reported and acted upon as 

appropriate. These included, for example: 

o The Corporate Peer Challenge (November 2021) 

o External assessment of Internal Audit (June 2021) 

o Ofsted/Care Quality Commission Joint Local Area SEND Inspection (July 2021) 

o Ofsted Inspection of BCP local authority Children’s Services (December 2021) 

 Regular scrutiny of financial monitoring reports by Councillors and Officers 

13 A year-end assessment of the effectiveness of the governance arrangements was 
undertaken, using sources of evidence including: 
 

 Completion of Management Assurance Statements by all Service Directors and 
for group entities 

 Completion of Directors Assurance Statements by Corporate Directors 

 Internal Audit documentation and reports 

 Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Report  

 Findings from internal and external reports 
 Follow up of the 2020/21 AGS action plan  

 

140



AGS 5 
 

Covid-19 – Impact of Pandemic on the Governance Framework 

14 During 2021/22, the Covid-19 pandemic continued to present significant and wide-

ranging challenges for public services nationally and for BCP Council to support its 
community, economy and maintain essential services. Covid-19 initiatives from 

2020/21 continued, including: 
 

 the #TogetherWeCan initiative provided a helpline, volunteers, food parcels and 
support to the vulnerable in our communities 

 delivery of PPE to health and social care services 

 support to NHS colleagues with setting up Covid-19 testing centres and a major 

vaccination centre, and 

 the processing of extensive business grants and financial support for local 
companies.  

 
15 During the year, as a result of the changing nature of challenges presented by the 

pandemic, BCP Council introduced additional responses, such as: 
 

 delivery of the local outbreak management plan via the COVID-19 Health 

Protection Board – from July 2020 until regulations were lifted in February 2022 

 Oversight and deployment of the Test and Trace Support Grant, and Contain 

Outbreak Management Funds in 2020-2022 

 Delivery of the local health protection response via the public health team’s day 

response and out of hours service – support to managing infections in high risk 
settings like care homes, schools, healthcare premises, and 

 Preparations for surge testing, if required, as part of Operation Eagle. 

 
16 Frontline teams, such as social care, refuse and street cleansing, parks and seafront, 

environmental health and enforcement, actively supported measures to keep 
individuals and the community safe. Council services continued to use adapted ways 

of working to ensure continued safe delivery of services, including online library 
services and online exercise classes offered through our leisure centres. In addition, 

over 5,000 staff worked from home or from active front-line services. 
 

17 Whilst the ongoing changes required to respond to the pandemic impacted on 

business as usual, with performance adversely affected in a range of areas, 
particularly those dependant on public access, such as libraries and museums, the 

Council continued to deliver its services and meet its statutory requirements to a 
significant degree. Pressure were particularly felt in the customer contact centre and 

in responsive services, including Planning. 
 

18 Staff redirection in the immediate response phase to the pandemic resulted in some 

capacity issues, which delayed planned improvements in some areas and impacted 
some business as usual activity such as timely processing of complaints and 

undertaking mandatory training. 
 

19 The Council worked in line with government guidance when facilitating a return to 
work, moving from remote working, through amended face to face arrangements as 

the pandemic developed. 

 
 

141



AGS 6 
 

20 During the year, the financial position of the Council was significantly impacted, both 
through the immediate impact of lost income in customer facing charged-for services 

such as car-parking and by significant additional costs incurred in responding to the 
pandemic. However, governance was in place to manage the budget position, 

through close monitoring and scrutiny, and communication and updates to Senior 
Management, Councillors and Committees. Government support is reflected in the 

year end budget position. 

 
21 In response to the financial constraints caused largely by the pandemic, the Council’s 

Transformation Programme has been rescheduled to deliver the large-scale savings 
required. Other significant projects, such as the Transforming Cities Fund, have 

continued to be delivered during the pandemic, but subsequent rising costs and 
supply-chain pressures have impacted on delivery timescales and had some impact 

on deliverables. 
 

22 Throughout the pandemic, the Council has ensured fit for purpose governance 

arrangements have been in place to respond efficiently and effectively to the risks 
presented by Covid. During the initial response phase, a ‘Corporate Incident 

Management Team’ comprising of the Council’s most senior officers and attended by 
the Leader (or representative) which, meeting as frequently as required, co-ordinated 

the Council-wise response and took key decisions supported by decision records. 
This was able to be stood down in April 2021 and Covid-19 decision making reverted 

to match normal service decision-making governance.      

 
23 The Council’s internal governance arrangements, such as Corporate Management 

Board (CMB) and Transformation Programme Board were able to operate during the 
year. 

 
24 From May 2021 decision-making councillor meetings had to revert to meeting 

physically and that required significant adjustments to meeting arrangements 

including face-to-face Council meetings involving all 76 councillors in external 
venues. This was a significant pressure on the decision-making processes of the 

Council, which were maintained in compliance with the legislative requirements. 
 

25 No immediate significant governance issues which were caused directly by the 
pandemic have been identified, the Council is now entering a period of reflection and 

learning in relation to its response, led by CMB.  Lessons learnt will be built into the 

future planning cycles and governance arrangements as appropriate. 
 

26 BCP Council’s Head of Internal Audit, in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, is content that the internal audit team have undertaken sufficient internal 

audit work during 2021/22 to issue a positive annual audit opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and 

control. The delivery of the audit plan itself was not adversely impacted by the 

pandemic; no limitation of scope statement was required. In addition, no significant 
governance concerns resulting directly from the pandemic were identified by IA 

during the year. 
 

Financial Management Code 

27 The Financial Management Code (FM Code) provides guidance for good and 

sustainable financial management in local authorities to provide assurance that 
authorities are managing resources effectively. 

142



AGS 7 
 

 
28 As required by best practice, senior officers at BCP Council have undertaken self-

assessments against the FM Code. Following the initial self-assessment in 2020/21, 
an action plan was produced and monitored with a mid-year update going to Audit & 

Governance Committee.  
 

29 An updated self-assessment for 2021/22 concluded that BCP Council was compliant 

with the FM Code. Progress against all the actions has been made, with a number of 
opportunities for further improvement remaining. An update against last year’s action 

plan is shown below:  
 Issue Recommendation Update at June 2022 

1 The children’s services 

capital strategy is 
under-developed with 

no new projects 
included in the 2021/22 

programme and a 

residual programme of 
less than £1milllion in 
future years.   

A children’s services 

capital strategy and 
detailed plan to be 

prepared -  aiming for 
Cabinet in July 2021 and 

going forward to be 

refreshed annually as 
part of the February 
budget report. 

Implemented – The February 

budget report for 2022/23 
included the Chidren’s services 

Capital Programme with other 
projects coming forward 

subsequently. The High Needs 

Block Deficit Recovery Board 
considers new projects as they 

are developed before going to 
Cabinet and Council if required.  

2 An analysis of the 

overall capital 

requirements of the 
council’s estate is not 

yet in place to inform a 
capital strategy or 

estate management 
arrangements. This is 

in progress supported 
by consultants. 

The physical estate 

needed to support future 

service delivery and 
corporate objectives 

should be established 
alongside future estate 

management 
arrangements to 

determine an appropriate 

corporate landlord model 
for the council. Capital 

strategy to be informed 
by the review.  

In progress - Report taken to 

Corporate Management Board 

from consultants Avison Young 
on 7 December 2021.  

A review of the corporate estate is 
underway to establish if activity 

can be further consolidated to 
release buildings for other 

purposes. Greater use of libraries 

for other services is being 
implemented.  

The council has commenced work 
on creating a specific Asset 

Management Strategy for BCP 
Council, and on creating a 

Corporate Landlord Model (next 

meeting Monday 20 June 2022). 

3 The council involves a 
range of stakeholders 

in setting the annual 
budget, this includes 

specific consultation on 

service-based savings 
plans but not general 

consultation with 
residents.     

Consideration of whether 
the budget process 

would be enhanced by 
any additional 
consultation processes. 

In progress - Budget simulator 

exercise is being considered to 

support the 2023/24 budget. 
Ongoing consideration is given to 

additional consultation events. 

Discussion with the Leader & 
Deputy Leader included a 

potential budget simulator 
process however other priorities 

such as the new ERP and staff 
turnover means it is unlikely 

during 2022. 

143



AGS 8 
 

4 The Council undertakes 

regular reporting of key 
elements of the 

balance sheet such as 
projected reserves and 

transformation costs in 

quarterly Cabinet 
reports. Collection fund, 

bad debt provision and 
collection rates are 
reviewed periodically.  

Determine if further 

balance sheet and other 
items (e.g. procurements 

undertaken) should be 
monitored by CMB.   

In progress - Transformation 

across the council should improve 
data management and reporting 

and self-service capability as well 
as providing new systems with 

the aim of releasing resources for 

more analytical activities from 
2023/24.    

5 The detail of fixed 

assets for accounting 
purposes is maintained 

on spreadsheets with 
the inherent risk of data 

corruption or loss going 
undetected with little 

system reliance. There 

is no link with the 
subsidiary systems that 

provide other asset 
management 
information.      

The main accounting 

systems, including for 
fixed asset recording, is 

an early work package 
for the strategic 

investement partner and 
will take time to 
implement.   

In progress - The Finance 

transformation programme, 
including the use of a fixed asset 

module, has progressed through 
the planning stages with the 

system design signed off in June 
2022.  Implementation of the new 

system is expected to start from 1 

April 2023 and will deliver savings 
and efficiencies. In the meantime, 

the current spreadsheet system is 
considered adequate supported 

by controls such as a 
reconciliation between the 

spreadsheet and the Technology 
Forge systems.  

 
  

144



AGS 9 
 

Evaluation, Conclusion and Significant Governance Issues 

30 Following review and evaluation of governance arrangements, BCP Council 
considers that, for the year ended 31st March 2022 and to the date of the 
publication of the Statement of Accounts, it has effective, fit-for-purpose 
governance arrangements in place in accordance with the governance 
framework.  

 
31 The Council’s Corporate Management Board (CMB) considered the effectiveness of 

the governance arrangements, including potential significant governance issues 
arising from the review, using the following criteria as a guide: 

 
a) The governance issue may, or has, seriously prejudice/d or prevent/ed 

achievement of a principal Council objective or priority; 

b) The governance issue may, or has, result/ed in a need to seek additional 
funding to allow it to be resolved, or may, or has, result/ed in a significant 
diversion of resources from another service area; 

c) The governance issue may, or has, led to a material impact on the accounts; 

d) The impact of the governance issue may, or has, attract/ed significant public 
interest or seriously damage/ed the reputation of the Council; 

e) The governance issue may, or has, be/en publicly reported by a third party 
(e.g. external audit, Information Commissioner’s Office) as a significant 
governance issue; 

f) The governance issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief 
Financial Officer and/or the Monitoring Officer. 

32 As a result, one new significant governance issues was identified for the 2021/22 

AGS: the Delay in the Completion of the 2020/21 External Audit. Please refer to 
Table 1 below for more details.  
 

33 The Council is committed to the continual improvement of its governance 

arrangements, established management processes, such as financial and 

performance monitoring, risk management and internal audit, have identified a 

number of governance issues for improvement during the year. These included, for 

example: 

 Asset Management;  

 Children’s Capital Programme; 

 Planning Service; 

 Transformation; 

 Budget Management; and  

 Complaints. 

 

CMB considered that these were either risks, rather than governance concerns 
and/or they did not meet the level of significance required for inclusion on the AGS. 

They are satisfied that the necessary actions being taken to address them. 
  

34 The 2020/21 AGS identified two significant governance issues as outlined below, for 
which an action plan was produced and monitored. A detailed follow up report was 
presented to the Audit and Governance Committee in January 2022.  
 

35 Progress against the two governance issues as at June 2022 is summarised below: 
 

145



AGS 10 
 

2020/21 Significant 
Governance Issue 

Progress as at June 2022 

Governance of Children’s 
Social Services  

Remain on AGS 2021/22 - Significant improvements have 

been made over the year, including the embedding of robust 
governance and oversight for the delivery of the action plan. 
However, some concerns still remain – see Table 1 below.  

Governance 
Arrangements with 
External Bodies  

Remain on AGS 2021/22 - Significant process has been 

made in improving parks governance. However, some 
governance issues remain and is shown in Table 1 below.  

 

36 Whilst significant progress has been made to address the governance issues from 

2020/21, some governance concerns remain. Therefore, these have been updated to 

reflect the changes during the year and are shown in Table 1 below, along with an 

updated action plan to address remaining issues. 

 

 
 

 

146



AGS 11 
 

 

 

1 Governance of Children’s Social Services 

A new, detailed 57-point Children’s Services Improvement Plan, is ambitious yet deliverable and there is a commitment both within the local authority and 

amongst key partners to rapidly improve the services provided to children and young people in BCP. The new leadership of Children’s Services brings a 

greater degree of transparency and accountability in the improvement agenda. The senior leadership will play a significantly more active role in the 

Improvement Board and delivery of the plan, and all staff will begin to see how they and their roles make a tangible difference to the quality of service. 

The arrival of a permanent Director of Children’s Services has been crucial in offering stability alongside a clear direction  of travel for the improvement 

journey.  

 

Through partnerships, key values that will underpin all future SEND work have been established. These are trust, honesty, transparency, empathy, 

communication, belonging and respect. There is a strong commitment to creating and embedding a culture that embodies these va lues, and the SEND 

system will be held to account on this in the future. Changes set out in the Written Statement of Action will be made as quickly as possible.  
 

To date, some progress and improvements across a number of areas have been made, however it is too early to evidence how well changes are 

embedded and the impact on the lives of children. In the June 2022 Monitoring visit ,Ofsted particularly noted that a well-considered and focussed quality 

assurance framework and governance framework is now in place  
 

The most significant challenge for children’s social care is the ability to recruit and retain a highly skilled workforce. High agency usage continues to 

mean tackling practice inconsistencies is difficult, hence recruitment and retention being a key priority moving forward.  
 

Children must be at the heart of the improvement journey, and their voices will run through every priority of the improvement plan. This plan will improve 

outcomes and experiences for children and young people; their voices, views and influence are integral to success.  
 

The 3 main pillars of Children’s Services – social care, SEND and inclusion practice in schools – all need further sustained improvement, and work is 

ongoing to integrate our improvements to become more efficient and effective in how we approach improvement programmes. There is also a need to 

become more consistent as well as working through the improvements at pace. The quality of practice needs to continually improve to impact on the 

lived experience of our children, young people and families.  
 

There is a highly committed and motivated workforce who are determined not just to withstand increased pressure, but to go on making the necessary 

improvements. It is recognised that further improvements at pace are still required, including changes to the operating culture in BCP. 

Action Points Responsible Officer Target Date 

Delivery of the Action Plan (as detailed above) Corporate Director – 

Children’s Services 

As per Action 

Plan 

 

Table 1 - ‘Significant Governance Issues’ and Action Plan  

 

 

 

 

Significant Governance Issue 2013/14 

Action/ 

Target Date 

2013/14 

Actions Taken 

    

    

    

 Table 2 - ‘Significant Governance Issues’ for 2014/15 are shown below, along with actions and target dates  

147



AGS 12 
 

2 Governance Arrangements with External Bodies 

In previous years’ AGS, the Council recognised that it needed to ensure that its governance arrangements with the organisations it engages with are 

sufficiently robust and fit for purpose. Last year, the areas of Parks Charities and Trusts, and Partnerships were specifically identified for improvement.  

 

During 2021/22, significant work has been undertaken to improve the governance in these areas. For Parks, this has included presentations to Audit & 

Governance Committee, implementation of many of the Internal Audit recommendations, and re-instigation of Board meetings for the Lower Gardens 
Trust (although these were not in place throughout 2021/22). However, several elements are still outstanding, notably complet ion of the legal review into 

Parks Trusts arrangements to achieve consistency and sound governance.  

 

As part of the Council’s Transformation programme, the Communities and Partnerships workstream is progressing work to strengt hen partnership 

governance. Good progress has been made on all the action points on last year’s AGS, a corporate partnership register, corporate oversight and 

guidance, however, this has yet to be completed and implemented.  

 

Action Points Responsible Officer Target Date 

1.  Parks, charities and trusts 

Completion of review of Parks Trust arrangements to ensure sound governance and achieve consistency  

Chief Operations 

Officer & Monitoring 

Officer 

31/12/22 

2. Partnerships 
BCP Council Partnership governance will be strengthened through the development of the following:  

a) Agreement of a partnership definition  

b) Production and maintenance of a Corporate Partnership Register  

c) Establishment of corporate oversight of partnerships 

d) Production of corporate partnership guidance to supplement Financial Regulations, which can also be 

used for compliance purposes 

 

This will initially be lead through the Communities and Partnership Transformation workstream but, if 

necessary, a new corporate lead will be identified and appointed to take these forward.  

 

Chief Executive 

 

Head of Community 

Engagement 

 

31/3/23 

 

 

148



AGS 13 
 

3 Delay in the completion of the 2020/21 external audit 

The Council considers that the delay to the completion of the external audit of the 2020/21 statement of accounts to be a governance weakness as this is 

a key source of assurance. The delay is caused by national issues regarding the accounting treatment and auditing of infrastructure assets which is 

affecting approximately 50% of local authorities, and therefore, out of the Council’s direct control to take actions to remedy the situation. However, the 

Council continues to work with the external auditor to provide necessary data and support and to respond to matters raised. In addition, the Council’s 

own mechanisms, such as internal accounting processes and controls, reporting to officers and Members, publication of account s and internal audit 
continue to provide assurance over financial management.  

Given that the matter is a national one outside of the direct influence of the Council, no internal action plan is appropriate.  

 

149



AGS 14 
 

This statement explains how BCP Council has complied with the principles of the 
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government and also 
meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  

 We have been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the effectiveness of 
the governance framework by the Audit and Governance Committee, and a plan to address 
weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.  

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the 
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor 
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 

 

 

 

 

    

G Farrant - Chief Executive of BCP Council   Date 

 

 

 

     

Drew Mellor - Leader of BCP Council   Date 

 

 

 

 

150



Local Code 1 
 

           Appendix 2 
                             

   

  

  

  

LOCAL CODE OF 

GOVERNANCE   

  

  

……………………………………………………………………………  

Finance   
  

  

 

  

  

Author:       Ruth Hodges  

Date:     5th July 2022   

151



Local Code 2 
 

  

Document Control  

 

Policy title  Local Code of Governance  

Policy owner  Head of Audit & Management Assurance   

Effective from date  1st April 2019  

Current version  V2.5  

Approval body  Audit & Governance Committee  

Approval date  28/7/22  

Review frequency  Annually   

Next review due  June 2023 
  

Revision History  

Date  Version  Significant Changes  

February 2019  v1  New Policy created   

October 2019  V2.2  Update to reflect the rapid changes in the new BCP  

Council and add in Section 6  

November 2020  V2.3  Update to reflect ongoing changes in BCP Council 

governance framework  

June 2021  V2.4  Update to reflect ongoing changes in BCP Council 

governance framework; Three Lines Model updated  
in line with best practice  

July 2022 V2.5 Update to reference new policies implemented in 
2021/22, including the Talent and Performance 

Enablement Policy 
 

 Minor Amendments and Editing Log  

The Head of Audit & Management Assurance has primary responsibility for maintaining 

the Local Code of Governance. It is recognised there may be a need to clarify or update 
certain elements of the Local Code of Governance from time to time; this may require 

minor amendments or editing. Minor amendments and editing changes will be made by 
the Head of Audit & Management Assurance, and these will be logged in the table 

below. The Local Code of Governance is presented to Audit & Governance Committee 

annually.    

Date  Description of amendments or editing  Page  

-  -  -  
  

152



Local Code 3 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment   

Assessment  

date  

15/7/22. The Council’s equality & diversity policy, supporting equality & 

diversity governance framework and equality impact assessment processes, 

which are part of the Local Code of Governance, are in place to ensure and 

promote positive equality outcomes for everyone.  

   

  

1.    Introduction  

  

1.1  The Local Code of Governance demonstrates BCP Council’s commitment to the 
highest standards of corporate governance. The Local Code sets out its 

governance arrangements in relation to the seven best practice principles in the 
CIPFA/IFAC ‘International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ 

(see Section 4) and as required by the CIFPA/SOLACE Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government Framework.    

  
2.  What is Corporate Governance?  

  
2.1      Corporate governance comprises of the arrangements put in place to ensure that 

the intended outcomes for service users and stakeholders are defined and 
achieved, while acting in the public interest at all times.  It is about doing the right 

things, in the right way, for the right people, in a timely, inclusive, open, 

transparent, honest and accountable manner.   

3.  Responsibilities for Corporate Governance  

3.1  All councillors and officers have a responsibility for upholding the principles of good 

governance. It is a key responsibility for the Leader of the Council and the Chief 

Executive.   

3.2   The Statutory Officers Group, comprising of the Monitoring Officer, the Chief 

Financial Officer and the Chief Executive are responsible for the 
development, delivery and review of robust corporate governance  

arrangements.  

  

3.3   The Audit & Governance Committee has responsibility for monitoring and 

reviewing the Council’s corporate governance arrangements.   

  

3.4   The Chief Auditor produces an Annual Report to Audit & Governance Committee  

on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s systems of internal control.  

  

3.5    The Annual Governance Statement is produced following a review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s corporate governance arrangements, as outlined in 

this Code. Any significant governance weaknesses are highlighted, and an action 
plan produced to address these issues, and monitored by the Audit & 

Governance Committee.   

153



Local Code 4 
 

4    The Governance Framework  

  

4.1   The diagram below, taken from the International Framework: Good 

Governance in the Public Sector, illustrates the various principles of good 
governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other.   

  

“Achieving the Intended Outcomes while acting in the   

Public Interest at all times”  

                       

  

  

4.2   BCP Council’s Local Code of Governance is based on this framework, and the 
table in section 5 demonstrates the Council’s governance arrangements in 

relation to it.  

154



Local Code 5 
 

5 How BCP meets the Principles of Good Governance  

  
BCP has strong governance arrangements across the organisation. In a small minority of 

cases, specific legacy or hybrid arrangements apply.  

Principles of 

Good 

Governance  

How we meet these Principles   

(A) Behaving with 

integrity, 

demonstrating  

strong 

commitment to 

ethical values, 

and respecting 

the rule of law  

The Constitution (which is reviewed by the Constitution Review Working 

Group)  

Member Code of Conduct  

Member-Member, and Member-Officer Protocols  

Decision making process for Committees and Members   

Committee forward plans, agendas, reports (including legal, financial, 

equalities and risk impact) and minutes (showing decisions taken and 

declaration of interests)  

Full Council and Cabinet   

Standards Committee  

Audit & Governance Committee  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee/s  

Member Registers of Interests and Registers of Gifts and Hospitality  

Member induction programmes and training plans  

Financial Regulations  

Statutory officers (including Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 

Officer) fulfil duties in line with regulatory requirements, and who meet 

as the Statutory Officers Group  

Officer Code of Conduct   

Officer induction programmes   

Behaviour Framework 

Mandatory learning including equality and fraud  

Officer Declaration of Interests, Gifts and Hospitality Policy  

Scheme of Delegations to Officers   

Decision making process for Officers   

155



Local Code 6 
 

Record of Officer decisions   

Record of Chief Executive’s Delegated Authority decisions  

Talent and Performance Enablement Policy and Reviews 

Corporate Complaints Procedure  

Equality and Diversity Policy and Governance Framework   

Recruitment and Selection Policy  

 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy  

 Whistleblowing Policy  

 Compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption   

Contractual arrangements  

Partnership Registers / Partnership Agreements   

Corporate Values   

Staff Surveys  

Local Plan Local Development Scheme   

Council People Strategy   

Council Operating Model  

Agreements with subsidiaries, partners, ALMO and external providers   

  

156



Local Code 7 
 

 (B) Ensuring 

openness and 

comprehensive 

stakeholder 

engagement  

Multi-channel public communications, including: email newsletters, BCP 

website, magazines, Facebook and Twitter  

Proactive publication and reporting   

Online Council Tax information  

Corporate Strategy & Delivery Plan  

Decision making process for Committees and Members   

Committee forward plans, agendas, reports (including legal, financial, 

equalities and risk impact) and minutes (showing decisions taken and 

declaration of interests)  

Record of Officer decisions   

Record of Chief Executive’s Delegated Authority decisions  

Corporate Complaints Procedure  

Social Care Statutory Complaints Procedure   

Public/residential surveys, including online  

Key national data. e.g.  the Census and Indices of Deprivation  

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

Consultation Planning and Guidance   

- Public and officer consultations  

- Staff surveys  

- Local Forums  

Internal Communications Strategy   

Media Relations Protocol  

Branding Guidelines  

Social Media Policy   

Partnership Registers / Partnership Agreements   

Neighbourhood Plans  

Statement of Community Involvement  

 

  

157



Local Code 8 
 

(C) Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 

economic, social, and 

environmental  

benefits  

  

Corporate Strategy & Delivery Plan  

Medium Term Financial Plan process  

Performance Monitoring Framework   

- Service business and action plans   

- Service performance monitoring   

- Corporate performance monitoring   

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

Consultation Planning and Guidance    

- Public and officer consultations  

- Staff surveys  

- Local Forums  

Risk Management Framework   

Capital Investment Strategy (Non-Treasury) 2020-2025  

Investment Strategy   

Decision making process for Committees and Members   

Committee forward plans, agendas, reports (including 

legal, financial, equalities and risk impact) and minutes 

(showing decisions taken and declaration of interests)  

Record of Officer decisions   

Record of Chief Executive’s Delegated Authority 

decisions  

Equality and Diversity Policy and Governance 

Framework  

Corporate Management Board  

Directors Strategy Group  

Capital Programme Board  

Transformation Board  

Operational governance groups:  

- Corporate Property Group  

- Asset Investment Panel  

Local Plan   

Contractual arrangements  

Partnership Registers / Partnership Agreements  
 

  

158



Local Code 9 
 

(D) Determining the interventions 
necessary to optimise the 

achievement of the intended 
outcomes  

  

  

  

Decision making process for Committees and Members   

Committee forward plans, agendas, reports (including 

legal, financial, equalities and risk impact) and minutes 

(showing decisions taken and declaration of interests)  

Record of Officer decisions   

Record of Chief Executive’s Delegated Authority 

decisions  

Performance Monitoring Framework   

- Service business and action plans  

- Service performance monitoring  

- Corporate performance monitoring   

Medium Term Financial Plan process  

Risk Management Framework   

Corporate Strategy & Delivery Plans  

“Our Big Plan”  

Benchmarking and research, including CFO Insights 

VFM Tool  

Capital Investment Strategy (Non-Treasury) 2020-2025  

Youth Justice Plan  

Council Safeguarding Strategy  

Pan-Dorset Safeguarding Children Partnership  

Transforming the Council   

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Panels and EIA 

processes  

Corporate Parenting Board  

Health & Wellbeing Board  

    

  

159



Local Code 10 
 

(E) Developing 
the entity’s 

capacity, 
including the 

capability of its 
leadership and 

the individuals 
within it  

  

Performance Monitoring Framework   

- Service business and action plans  

- Service performance monitoring  

- Corporate performance monitoring   

Benchmarking and research, including CFO Insights VFM Tool  

People Strategy    

Job descriptions for all employees   

Roles of Cabinet, individual Cabinet Members and all other Members 

and Committees defined  

Roles of statutory officers (Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and 

Monitoring Officer) and other senior officers defined   

Member-Member, and Member-Officer Protocols  

Scheme of Delegations to Officers  

The Constitution  

Member induction programmes and training plans  

Officer induction programmes  

Mandatory learning including equality and fraud  

Talent and Performance Enablement Policy and Reviews  

Standards Committee  

Councillor Development Framework  

Public/residential surveys, including online  

Key national data. e.g.  the Census and Indices of Deprivation  

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  

Consultation Planning and Guidance  

- Public and officer consultations  

- Staff surveys  

- Local Forums  

Corporate and HR policies and procedures, including those to support 

health and wellbeing   

ICT guidance and processes   

160



Local Code 11 
 

Peer Reviews and Inspections  

Smarter Structures Programme    

People Strategy  

Pay and Reward including Terms and Conditions   

Workforce Strategy for Children’s Services  

 

  

161



Local Code 12 
 

(F) Managing 
risks and 

performance 
through robust 

internal control 
and strong 

public  
financial  

management   

Risk Management Framework   

Performance Monitoring Framework  

- Service business and action plans  

- Service performance monitoring  

- Corporate performance monitoring   

Corporate Complaints Procedure  

Benchmarking and research, including CFO Insights VFM Tool  

Overview and Scrutiny Committee/s  

Internal Audit Charter operating to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  

Risk-Based Annual Audit Plan and Key Assurance Work  

Chief Auditors Annual Report   

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy  

Whistleblowing Policy  

Compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption  

Annual Governance Statement  

Audit & Governance Committee   

Information Governance Accountability Framework  

Medium Term Financial Plan process  

Financial Regulations  

Regular scrutiny of financial monitoring reports by Councillors and 

Officers  

Corporate Strategy & Delivery Plan  

Treasury Management Strategy  

Decision making process for Committees and Members   

Committee forward plans, agendas, reports (including legal, financial, 

equalities and risk impact) and minutes (showing decisions taken and 

declaration of interests)  

Record of Officer decisions  

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Panels and EIA processes  

Record of Chief Executive’s Delegated Authority decisions  

Corporate and HR policies and procedures   

Health & Safety Policy / Fire Safety Policy  

Emergency planning and resilience and arrangements (corporate)  

Compliance with the Statement of the Role of the Chief Financial Officer 

in Local Government  

 

  

162



Local Code 13 
 

(G) 

Implementing 

good practices 

in 

transparency, 

reporting, and 

audit to deliver 

effective 

accountability  

Multi-channel public communications, including: email newsletters, BCP 

website, magazines, Facebook and Twitter  

Proactive publication and reporting   

Annual Financial Statements  

External audit reports: Audit Findings Report, Annual Audit Letter and 

Certification Report  

External reviews, including Ofsted and Peer Reviews    

Annual Governance Statement   

Internal Audit Function operating to Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards   

Risk-Based Annual Audit Plan and Key Assurance Work    

Internal Audit recommendation implementation reported to Audit & 

Governance Committee   

Compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal 

Audit   

Partnership Registers / Partnership Agreements   

  

6 How BCP ensures Good Governance is delivered in practice     

  
6.1 The Three Lines model is widely recognised across both the public and private 

sectors as a best practice approach to implementing effective risk management and 

corporate governance. It is designed to provide organisations with resilience in 

these areas, with each Line complementing the others, as summarised below:  

  

163



Local Code 14 
 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT  
Actions (including managing risk) to achieve organisational 

objectives  

 First line roles:  
Provision of 

services to clients;  
managing risks 

 Second line roles: 
Expertise, support, 

monitoring and  
challenge on risk 

related matters 

 

 

 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
Independent assurance 

 Third line roles:  
Independent and 

objective  
assurance and 
advice on all  

matters related to  
the achievement of 

objectives  

 

 

Key:  

 
Accountability, reporting  

 
Delegation, direction, resources, 

oversight  
Alignment, communication, 

coordination, 

collaboration 

 
First Line: The First Line is responsible for the implementation of risk management and 

governance processes within the organisation. In BCP this is the responsibility of 

Management of all levels across all Services in the organisation.  
   
Second Line: The Second Line is responsible for the provision of advice, guidance and 

policy in support of risk management and governance processes. This Line is also 

responsible for monitoring compliance with risk and governance requirements by 
services in the First Line. Typically, this role is fulfilled by corporate functions with 

defined governance and policy remits, for example:  
• Emergency Planning  

• Health and Safety  

• Human Resources   

• Information Governance  

• Procurement   

• Risk Management  
  

Where there is no clear corporate function with responsibility for compliance, Corporate 
Management Board will pragmatically determine the need for this and who will act as the 

Second Line in a proportionate response to the scope and remit of the function.   
  
Third Line: The Third Line is responsible for providing independent assurance to Senior 

Management and Members on the effectiveness of the first two lines. In BCP this is the 

responsibility of the Internal Audit Service.  

Governing Body  
Accountability to stakeholders for organisational oversight 

Governing body roles :  integrity, leadership, and transparency 

164



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Forward Plan refresh 

Meeting date  28 July 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  This report sets out the reports to be considered by the Audit & 
Governance Committee for the 2022/23 municipal year in order to 
enable it to fulfil its terms of reference. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Audit & Governance Committee approves the forward plan 
set out at Appendix A. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure that Audit & Governance Committee are fully informed of 
the reports to be considered during 2022/23. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard  

Head of Audit & Management Assurance  

01202 128784  

 nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Recommendation Decision  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Good practice dictates that a forward plan should be agreed which sets out the 
reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance Committee over the next 12 
months. 

The Forward Plan 

2. The Forward Plan set out at Appendix A has been developed through discussion 
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Audit & Governance Committee, the S151 
Officer, and the Council’s External Auditors. The plan sets out proposals for the 
forward management of reports to be considered by the Audit & Governance 
Committee in order to enable it to fulfil its terms of reference. 

3. The Audit & Governance Committee should note that the plan does not preclude 
extraordinary items being brought before the Committee in consultation with the 
Chair and Vice Chair as necessary and appropriate, thus ensuring that Audit & 
Governance Committee business is consistent with the terms of reference. 

165

Agenda Item 17

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


4. The Chairman regularly asks committee members for any topics requiring this 
Committee’s consideration within its terms of reference and can be added at any 
time in the year or as they arise. These topics are generally shown in the 
‘Presentations’ section of the Forward Plan, Appendix A. The presentations are 
made available to the public with the meeting minutes.  

Options Appraisal 

5. An options appraisal is not applicable for this report. 

Summary of financial implications 

6. There are no direct financial implications from this report.   

Summary of legal implications 

7. There are no direct legal implications from this report. 

Summary of human resources implications 

8. There are no direct human resource implications from this report.   

Summary of sustainability impact 

9. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.   

Summary of public health implications 

10. There are no public health implications from this report.  

Summary of equality implications 

11. There are no direct equality implications from this report. 

Summary of risk assessment 

12. Development and agreement of the Forward Plan by the Audit & Governance 
Committee enables it to fulfil its terms of reference.  

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

Appendix A – Audit & Governance Committee - Forward Plan 2022/23   

166



   APPENDIX A    
 

 

Audit & Governance Committee – Forward Plan 2022/23 
 
 

 

 

REPORT 

28 
JUL 
2022 

8  
SEP 
2022 
(extra) 

27 
OCT 
2022 

1  
DEC 
2022 
(extra) 

12 
JAN 
2023 

16 
MAR 
2023 
(extra) 

13 
APR 
2023 

ANNUAL REPORTS        

Statement of Accounts 2020/21 & 2021/22  
 As timing requires 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 and Annual 

Review of Local Code of Governance (2 update on Action Plan 

only)  
 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

Chief Internal Auditor’s Annual Opinion Report 2021/22        

Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of Financial 
Regulations Report 2021/22 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts & 

Hospitality by Officers 2021/22 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and 
Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report 2021/22 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Annual Report of Internal Audit Counter Fraud Work and 
Whistleblowing Referrals 2021/22  

 


 
 

 
 

 

Emergency Planning & Business Continuity Update        

Health & Safety and Fire Safety Update       

Treasury Management Strategy Refresh/Approval for next 

financial year 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Assurance Framework & Internal Audit Planning 
Consultation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Information Governance Update        

Internal Audit Charter & Audit Plan for next financial year        

ANNUAL OR PERIODIC POLICY UPDATES       

43. Annual evolution of Policies for 2023/24: 

44. - Whistleblowing 

45. - Anti-Fraud and Corruption 

46. - Declaration of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality 

47. - Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) and 
Investigatory Powers Act (IPA)    

 

 

 

 

   

Financial Regulations - annual evolution for 2023/24.         

QUARTERLY / HALF YEARLY REPORTS        

Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update         

Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update        

Forward Plan (refresh)        

Treasury Management Monitoring Report         

AD HOC / OTHER REPORTS        

Constitution Review        

Risk Management Arrangements Review        

48. PRESENTATIONS (rather than formal reports)        

Presentations to be agreed during the year  49.  50.  51.  52.  53.  54.  

Insurance Arrangements Review  55.  56.  57.  58.  59.  60.  

EXTERNAL AUDITS REPORTS        

External Auditor – Audit Plan 2021/22 (3 2022/23)        3 

External Auditor – Audit Findings Report 2020/21 & 
2021/22 

  As timings require

External Auditor – Auditors Annual Report 2020/21 & 

2021/22 
  As timings require

External Auditor – Audit Progress & Sector Update        

167



This page is intentionally left blank

168


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 Treasury Management Monitoring Report
	Appendix 1 for Treasury Management Monitoring Report
	Appendix 2 for Treasury Management Monitoring Report

	9 Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update
	10 Internal Audit - Quarterly Audit Plan Update
	11 External Audit – Progress Update
	Appendix 1 for External Audit – Progress Update

	12 Annual Review of Declarations of Interests, Gifts & Hospitality by Officers 2021/22
	13 Use of Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act and Investigatory Powers Act Annual Report 2021/22
	14 Chief Internal Auditor's Annual Opinion Report 2021/22
	15 Annual Breaches & approved Waivers of Financial Regulations Report 2021/22
	Appendix 1 - Waivers of Financial Regulations 2021/22

	16 Annual Governance Statement 2021/22 and Annual Review of Local Code of Governance
	17 Forward Plan refresh
	Appendix A – Audit & Governance Committee - Forward Plan 2022/23


